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Despite the challenging external business environment including
uncertainties in global political and economic environment and
slowdown in the PRC economic growth, the Group strove to
seize development opportunities arising from the new market
trend through in-depth analysis on our own businesses and the
industry. The Chinese consumers have entered the era of rational
consumption with emphasis on product quality, reasonable
pricing and experience consumption. In addition, following the
worldwide passion for sports and health, the PRC government
also attached great importance to the nationwide sports and
fitness undertaking and actively promoted the development
of sports industry in recent years. In view of this, the Group
captured the opportunity to expand its brand and retail business.
HAHMETHBENIRE PRELBEERERWESFIE S
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In 2019, despite the shadow of the China-U.S. trade war, China’s
economy still managed to achieve a moderate growth. The total
retail sales of consumer goods exceeded RMBA4O trillion for the first
time, representing an increase of 8% over last year, becoming the
greatest driver of China’s economic growth for 6 consecutive years.
In recent years, the Group has been committed to promoting the
sports and retail business in response to the nationwide advocacy
of the “Sports for All (2RE®)) ", and has established “Mass
Consumption” as its future development direction to thoroughly
explore and unlock consumers’ demand potential.
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In view of the growing demand for sportswear throughout the world,
the Group completed the acquisition of the global trademarks and
patents of compression wear brand “SKINS” in September 2019,
to further expand the sports brand business and the Group’s
strategic layout. It is expected that the brand will contribute stable
revenue to the Group in the coming year. During the year, the
Group explored its own brand “PONY” with global trading partners,
and will gradually adjust its business strategy in the future to tap
the opportunities brought by the current resurgence of sports
trend. Furthermore, the “arena” swimming brand, a joint venture
of the Group in China, maintained a steady sales growth during the
year. In the future, the Group will launch more new products and
collaboration series to further increase the brand’s market share.

In addition, the Group’s Park Outlets project in Xiamen was
officially open for business in the fourth quarter of 2019, providing
a pleasant place for daily shopping and weekend trips for over
20 million residents in Xiamen, Zhangzhou and Quanzhou. As
many as 150,000 customers visited Xiamen Park Outlets in the
first week, laying a sound foundation for future operation and
development. It is expected that more famous brands will be
attracted to the outlets. Meanwhile, the Group’s Shenyang Park
QOutlets project in Liaoning Province, improved its operating
efficiency by making effective use of certain commercial area
after an early reconstruction. The Group has planned to expand
the commercial area in the north zone of its shopping mall in
the coming year to expand the management scale of the outlets.
Moreover, the CITS Park Outlets in Anyang has developed into
a landmark shopping mall that provides one-stop shopping and
entertainment experience to nearby residents.
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Additionally, the Group holds two community malls in Tianjin and
Chongging, have provided great convenience for citizens living in
the communities. Their prominent locations and complete transport
facilities will allow them to draw in steady traffic. After years of
hard work, the Group has developed “Park Outlets” into a chain
outlet brand in China with a variety of large shopping malls and
community malls.

Global political and economic situation remain uncertain in 2020.
Meanwhile, with the impact of the novel coronavirus epidemic
spreading across the world, global economic growth may further
slowdown, which is expected to have a temporary impact on the
Group's future operating results. However, the Group still considers
2020 a starting point for the new decade, and will adhere to the
development strategy of “sports brand + retail” in the past and
continue to prioritize improvement of its brand management and
expansion of retail scale. Finally, the Group would like to express
our sincere appreciation for the support of our partners, brand
tenants and customers, as well as the efforts and contributions of
all employees in the past year. In the coming year, the Group will
surely be able to achieve better results and continue to maximize
the value for our shareholders and investors.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MACRO ANALYSIS

In 2019, sports consumption became a buzzword as the State
Council issued the Opinions on Promoting National Fitness and
Sports Consumption, and Facilitating High-quality Development
of the Sports Industry to put forward 10 measures, including the
introduction of policies to encourage sports consumption and
the launch of pilot projects to promote with an aim to boost the
prosperity of the retail industry. As the concept of national fitness
campaign is taking hold, sports consumption activities such as
purchasing equipment, participating in training, experiencing
fashionable sports and matches are gaining popularity in people’s
daily life.
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MARKET TRENDS

According to Frost & Sullivan, the world’s largest enterprise growth
consulting company, Chinese residents’ engagement in sports
and consumption of sneakers and clothing still have much room
for growth compared with developed countries. With increasing
engagement in sports and rising consumption of sneakers and
clothing, the Group expects that the unfulfilled demand will
continue to drive the future development of China’s sports retail
industry.

In the age of the internet, health has become new wealth for
people. Nationwide participation in fitness activities has become
a trend, and people start to develop living habits that emphasise
health and personal appearance, driving the robust demand for
sports and leisure clothing.

ENTERING THE FIELDS OF PROFESSIONAL
SPORTS

During the year, the Group successfully acquired SKINS, an
international brand that designs and manufactures compression
garments for athletes and sports enthusiasts. It has more than
900 trademarks and patents of different categories and sells
over 160 kinds of compression products in major countries and
regions across the world. Currently, the Group is actively exploring
partnership with Asian business giants to jointly operate the global
business of SKINS, which is expected to bring stable and decent
revenue to the Group.

THE RISE OF SNEAKER & CLOTHING

Recent years, the combination of sports and fashion, brand story
communication and personalised wear have led the trends of the
times, boosting the penetration of shoes and clothing. The Group’s
sport brand “PONY” has a history of more than 45 years and has
won recognition and support from many sports superstars. After
adjusting its business model in the coming year, it is expected to
become a growth driver of the Group’s retail business.
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BOOMING SWIMMING INDUSTRY

In 2017, the Group set up a joint venture with Descente Limited
(Japan) to operate the brand “arena” in the Chinese market.
Since then, its sales have been growing steadily. In the future,
the Group will continue to optimise its product design and launch
co-branded series to consolidate the leading position of “arena”
in China's swimming market. In addition, the Group will build
a platform to promote swimming business by providing training
courses mainly for young students.

OPENING OF PARK OUTLETS

Xiamen Park Outlets, a flagship project of the Group in Fujian
Province, officially opened for business in November 2019. As of
now, over 200 brands have opened stores in the Outlets, including
international affordable luxury brands, first-class domestic and
overseas sports brands, outdoor brands, leisure and fashion
brands, and children wear brands, attracting residents of Xiamen
and neighboring cities such as Zhangzhou and Quanzhou to visit.
Another Park Outlets located in Shenyang, Liaoning Province, is also
performing quite well by following the gradual delivery of residential
units in surrounding communities. The Group has kicked off a
plan to expand the commercial area in the north zone of the mall
in the coming year. The Group believes that as more and more
international brands enter the mall, it will grow in popularity and
help improve the business atmosphere and consumption level in
Shenyang. Moreover, the Group also owns the CITS Park Outlets
project in Anyang, Henan Province. It has attracted more than 100
well-known domestic and foreign brands, providing local residents
with one-stop shopping and entertainment experience.
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In addition, the two community malls located in Chongging
and Tianjin invested and managed by the Group are running
smoothly for the better. During the year, a series of measures
were implemented to optimise the brand and business mix of
merchants, so as to boost sales per sg.m. of these malls. The
Group will employ up-to-date operating strategies and technology to
understand the basic information of mall visitors and the profile of
consumers, analyse customer behaviours in multiple dimensions,
and make accurate matches in a timely manner, so as to promote
the deep integration of interactions with online and offline
consumers.

RISING HEALTH AWARENESS

Benefitting from the increasing health awareness of consumers,
health-related industries have developed rapidly in recent years.
In 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of Supremium Bio-
Technology Limited, a health product manufacturer which provides
more than 1,000 independently developed and licensed products
for local retail networks to meet consumer demand for health
products. However, a drastic drop in outdoor activities during the
COVID-19 outbreak will have an impact on the local retail business.
The Group expects that after the incident, health awareness
amongst all will further increase, thus revitalizing offline retail
business.

DEVELOPMENT OF FINANCIAL BUSINESS

The Special Purpose Acquisition Company which was established
by the Group in partnership with an international fund in 2018,
completed the merger with a mobile digital media company
in February 2020. Its main business model is to provide novel
shopping experience through the integration of different lifestyle
contents, including short videos, online variety shows, online TV
shows, live broadcasts and mobile applications on business and
entertainment platforms, which will be beneficial to the Group’s
brand expansion in China.
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OUTLOOK

The COVID-19 outbreak has substantially reduced people’s outdoor
activities, resulting in a sharp drop in outdoor sports activities,
gym and other indoor multi-person workouts. Yet, the Group is
still optimistic about the medium and long-term development of
China’s sports market and expects to provide diversified products
and services to consumers by constantly improving its business
strength. Looking forward to 2020, amid the transformation of
the retail industry, the Group will continue to deepen its brand
business, enhance its capabilities in business operations, and offer
more services to brand owners and consumers to achieve stable
and sustainable operations, in an effort to create maximum value
for our customers and shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| would take this opportunity to extend my gratitude to my fellow
directors, members of our staff, banks, customers and business
partners for their continuous trust and support to the Group. | hope
the management and all our colleagues will continue to contribute
to the business and performance of the Group in 2020.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 December 2019
slightly increased from HKD381.8 million to HKD388.9 million
mainly attributable to the opening of Xiamen outlet mall.

The Group’s gross margin was 72% for the year ended 31
December 2019 as compared to 68% for the previous year largely
due to growth in turnover in outlet mall segment and financial
services segment.

Other income and gains decreased from HK$168.6 million to
HK$132.4 million mainly due to occurrence of the one-off gain
from disposal of subsidiaries and investment properties in 2018,
and (i) the fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and (ii) the gain on write back of other payables in
2019.
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Administrative expenses fell from HK$164.4 million to HK$129.7
million due to (a) better cost control, and (b) exclusion of rental
expenses under the adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS
167).

Finance costs moved up from HK$33.9 million to HK$53.7 million
mostly due to (i) increase in bank interest rate, (ii) increase in bank
borrowings, and (iii) interests on lease payment under the adoption
of HKFRS 16.

Fair value gain of investments properties decreased from
HK$112.3 million to HK$44.2 million in response to market
conditions.

As a result, profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company decreased from HK$118.2 million to HK$71.7 million.

Surplus arising on revaluation of properties increased from
HK$29.2 million to HK$452.3 million was mainly attributable to the
valuation gain as a result of the completion of Xiamen outlet mall
of HK$370.3 million and the improved value of other properties in
Shenyang, Hong Kong and Shanghai.

Property, plant and equipment increased from HK$857.4 million to
HK$1,688.1 million mainly reflecting the aforesaid completion of
Xiamen outlet mall, which was then accounted at fair value as at
31 December 2019, and as a result of other revalued properties.

As at 31 December 2018, Xiamen outlet mall was booked under
construction in progress amounting to HK$184.8 million. During
the year 2019, further construction costs of HK$401.4 million was
added. In November 2019, Xiamen outlet mall was completed with
total construction costs, after exchange loss of HK$3.1 million, of
HK$583.1 million. Up to 31 December 2019, depreciation and
exchange realignment for Xiamen outlet mall amounted to HK$1.2
million. As to the accounting policy over buildings under property,
plant and equipment, the Group adopts a revaluation model.
Accordingly, Xiamen outlet mall was revalued by 31 December
2019 with a valuation gain of HK$370.3 million. In aggregate, the
increase of carrying amount of Xiamen outlet mall for the year
2019 was HK$767.4 million.
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Investment properties rose from HK$1,319.5 million to
HK$1,503.3 million as a result of the fair value gain of investment
properties during the year and the adoption of HKFRS 16
recognising the lease arrangement for the commercial property in
Tianjin as investment properties.

Right-of-use assets of HK$495.5 million was recorded due to the
adoption of HKFRS 16 and inclusion of the finance-leased assets
and prepaid lease payments.

Intangible assets increased from HK$199.5 million to HK$241.5
million mainly attributable to the acquisition of SKINS global
trademarks and patents.

Trade and other receivables fell from HK$513.6 million to
HK$190.4 million mainly due to the receipt of the remaining 50%
consideration arising from the disposals of three parcels of land in
Shenyang.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss increased from
HK$72.5 million to HK$240.9 million as a result of increase of
portfolio and net fair value gain of financial assets.

As a result, total assets of the Group increased from HK$4,353.5
million to HK$5,160.4 million.

Due to the adoption of HKFRS 16 during the year, lease liabilities
in the amount of HK$184.9 million was recorded with inclusion of
finance lease payables.

Total bank borrowings increased from HK$1,281.1 million to
HK$1,410.9 million as a result of the increase in bank borrowing to
finance the Xiamen outlet mall.

Deferred tax liabilities increased from HK$169.5 million to
HK$287.1 million mainly attributable to surplus arising on
revaluation of Xiamen outlet mall and increase in fair value gain of
investment properties.

As a result, total liabilities of the Group moved from HK$1,739.6
million to HK$2,232.1 million.
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MARKET INFORMATION

During the year, revenue from the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), Hong Kong and other Asian countries comprised 97.4%
(2018: 97.1%) of the total revenue with the remaining 2.6%
(2018: 2.9%) shared between United States of America and other
countries.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank balances and cash
of HKD129,791,000 (2018: HKD131,590,000). The Group was
offered banking facilities amounting to HKD1,426,004,000 (2018:
HKD1,419,409,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group obtained bank borrowings in
the amount of HKD1,410,901,000 (2018: HKD1,281,054,000).
The Group has variable interest rate bank borrowings which carry
interest ranging from 4.10% to 6.03% (2018: 2.38% to 5.94%)
per annum. The weighted average effective interest rate of the
Group’s bank loans is 4.7% (2018: 4% per annum).

Debt to total assets ratio stood at 27.4% (2018: 29.6%), based on
total bank borrowings over total assets. The banking facilities were
secured by corporate guarantees from the Company and certain
of its subsidiaries, charge over certain restricted bank deposits,
certain right-of-use assets (2018: prepaid lease payments), certain
leasehold land and buildings, and certain investment properties of
the Group.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

The Group had pledged certain of its leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties, right-of-use assets (2018: prepaid lease
payments) and restricted bank deposits, with carrying amounts
of approximately HKD282,000,000, HKD1,314,428,000,
HKD269,063,000 and HKD37,174,000 (2018: HKD273,000,000,
HKD1,305,971,000, HKD281,470,000 and HKD31,396,000)
respectively, to secure banking facilities granted to the Group of
approximately HKD1,416,004,000 (2018: HKD1,409,409,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Group had the following
material contractual commitments not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements:

FAEEMEEHR

AEFECHRWEETHELHEET KRED
X EREEE (018F BENHEENE) R
PR I SR 17 7 ¢ BR H 1B 2 Bl 49 /282,000,000
7 7T~ 1,314,428,0007% 7T ~ 269,063,000/ 7T
37,174,000 7t (20184 : 273,000,000%
7t~ 1,305,971,000/% T ~ 281,470,0007% 7T &
31,396,000 7T) - BAERGE TEENRITE
J£471,416,004,0007% 7T (2018%F : 1,409,409,000
BT -

BEXRiE

MR2018F N2019F 12 A31H  AEBEEA A TR
BAMERENLRBBOEAS MM AR

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHT FH&IT
Contracted for but not provided: BRI A HEREE:
— Capital contribution of unlisted equity —BABINE LT
investment outside Hong Kong IR E 2 BRI/ A 51,415 51,682
— Construction costs of located in Shanyong and —(AERS R EFIRERETS
Xiamen, the PRC outlet malls buildings EiER AN = 199,605
51,415 051,287

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of potential tax liabilities in connection with the potential
penalty arising from the late filing of the PRC tax returns for
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax is disclosed in Note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the total number of employees of the
Group was 465 (2018: 454). Employee costs (excluding directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately HKD72,878,000 (2018:
HKD75,171,000).

In addition to competitive remuneration packages, double pay and
employee share options were offered to eligible staff of the Group
based on their performance and individual merits.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

No share-based payment expense for the year ended 31
December 2019 was recognised in relation to the grant of share
options. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the share-based
payment expense of approximately HKD328,000 was recognised at
HKDO.068 per share options granted by the Company.

There has been no change in the Group’s share option scheme
(the “Scheme”), details of which are disclosed in the Company’s
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, no share option was granted
under the Scheme and therefore no unrecognised share-based
payment expense expenses was recognised during the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: HKD328,000).

Particulars of the Scheme are set out in Note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, aged 56, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (appointed on 15 December 2014 and elected as the
Chairman on 23 December 2014, he was re-elected on 9 June
2017)

Mr. Cheng was further appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 30
September 2015.

He is an experienced investor in securities and also a seasoned
businessman engaging in securities and financing, consultancy,
hotel investment, real estate investment and development, import
and export of cigarettes, perfume and cosmetic products business
for many years. He is also a director of Goldsilk Capital Limited
(“Goldsilk”). Goldsilk is a substantial shareholder of the Company
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr. Cheng has been appointed as the executive director and
chairman of the investment and management committee of Lamtex
Holdings Limited (HKSE: 1041) on 19 March 2020. The company
is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary, aged 64 (appointed on 2 January 2014
and was re-elected on 9 June 2017 and 14 June 2019)

Mr. Chan was further appointed as Chief Operating Officer on 1
November 2014 overseeing all business units of the Group.

He possesses over 35 years of professional experience in
marketing, sales, distribution and management in fast moving
consumer goods with multi-national corporations such as LVMH,
British American Tobacco and Imperial Tobacco Group.

Mr. Chan holds an EMBA degree awarded jointly by the HKUST
Business School and the Kellogg School of Management of
Northwestern University. He has also attended management
courses at Stanford Law School, Harvard Business School, The
Wharton School.
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Mr. Lee Cheung Ming, aged 48, joined the Group in September
2014.

Mr. Lee was appointed as Executive Director on 1 January 2019.

He is responsible for the property development and investment in
the People’s Republic of China of the Group.

Mr. Lee possesses almost 20 years of experience in hotel and real
estate development cum investment in Mainland China.

He completed a business administration course with the Beijing
Economy Management Distance Learning College.

Mr. Lee is the brother-in-law of Mr. Cheng Tun Nei, the Chairman
and substantial shareholder of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Shum Pui Kay, aged 71 (appointed on 27 November 2013
and was re-elected on 8 June 2018)

He possesses over 30 years of experience in the retailing and
distribution of luxurious goods. He was instrumental in the
establishment and expansion of the renowned French leather good
brand Longchamp in the Asia Pacific region and has served as the
Chairman of the Asia Pacific region of the brand Longchamp since
1978.

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie, aged 53 (appointed on 27 November
2013 and was re-elected on 10 June 2016 and 14 June 2019)

He graduated from The University of Hong Kong in 1990 and
was qualified as a solicitor in 1992. Up until 1997, Mr. Wah was
a partner of a Hong Kong law firm. He is currently an executive
director of CST Group Limited (formerly known as NetMind
Financial Holdings Limited) (HKSE: 985). Mr. Wah used to serve as
the executive director of G-Resources Group Limited (HKSE: 1051)
until he retired on 15 June 2018. The aforesaid companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander, aged 73 (appointed on 15
December 2014 and was re-elected on 9 June 2017)

Mr. Chow possesses over 40 years of experience in commercial,
financial and investment management in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. He is currently also an independent non-executive director
of Playmates Toys Limited (HKSE: 869) and China Strategic
Holdings Limited (HKSE: 235), both companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director
of Top Form International Limited (HKSE:333) until 31st October
2019. Furthermore, he is also an independent non-executive
director of Aquis Entertainment Limited (ASX: AQS), a company
listed on Australian Securities Exchange.
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Senior Management

Mr. Benjamin Fitzmaurice, aged 45, joined the Group in
November 2019.

Mr. Fitzmaurice was appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of
SKINS. Prior to joining the Group, he spent the last 10 years in
the sports consumer industry in both brand and fabric supplier
sides of the industry in Management Board, Chief Operating
Officer and General Counsel roles. Prior to that, he was a practising
Barrister-at-Law at the Victorian and Tasmanian Bars specialising in
commercial law, trade practices, intellectual property, contract and
sports law. Mr. Fitzmaurice was a Panel Member of the Olympic
and Commonwealth Games Selection Appeal Panels and is a
member of the High Court of Australia, Supreme Court of Victoria
and Supreme Court of Tasmania.

He holds a Masters of International Business Law with Distinction
Honours from the University of Cumbria.

Mr. Simon Goodfellow, aged 45, joined the Group in August 2019.

Mr. Goodfellow was appointed as the Chief Commercial Officer of
SKINS. Prior to joining the Group, he had been working for various
consumer and sports industry brands in Chief Executive Officer
and International Sales Director roles. He has accumulated over
18 years of experience in sales, marketing, e-commerce and the
international distribution of branded products.

He graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Design from
Nottingham Trent University.

Mr. Wong Keong Yiew, aged 50, joined the Group in June 2015
and currently serves as Head of Pony operation.

He has almost 20 years of experience in general management,
sales & marketing and key account management across different
product categories including the fast moving consumer goods,
perfumes, cosmetics.

Mr. Wong graduated with a Bachelor of Engineering degree from
the National University of Singapore.
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Mr. Chan Chuk Hei Andersen, aged 41, joined the Group in
October 2019 and currently serves as Vice President for PONY
operation.

Mr. Chan has over 12 years of experience in sporting goods
industry, focusing on product and brand management. He worked
previously with Belle International, Swire Resources and Win
Hanverky.

Mr. Chan graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree from The
University of Hong Kong.

Ms. Li Hua, aged 54, joined the Group in 2009.

Ms. Li focuses on brand marketing and has been responsible for
arena business from January 2017 onwards.

She has worked with Henkel, Reckitt Benckiser and Wacoal during
her 26 years in sales and marketing in FMCG and sports/fashion
industries.

Ms. Li graduated from Jilin Normal University with a Bachelor
degree in English Literature.
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Ms. Liu Li-jun, aged 49, joined the Group in December 2014.

She is currently the general manager of Shenyang Park Outlets and
Xiamen Park Outlets.

Ms. Liu has almost 30 years of experience in business operation
and management. She possesses extensive and practical
management skills and experience in luxury product distribution
and management, administration, property and human resources
management. Since 2016, she has been responsible for the overall
operation of Shenyang Park Outlets. Under her stewardship,
Shenyang Park Outlets was awarded various honors.

Ms. Liu graduated from the School of Continuing Education,
Northeastern University majoring in financial management.

Mr. Tsui Shing Lung Eric, aged 43, joined the Group in February
2011.

He is currently the general manager of Supremium Bio-Technology
Limited.

Mr. Tsui possesses 20 years of operations & management
experience in retail, wholesale, manufacturing and business
development across various industries including consumer
electronics, duty-free goods and health care products in Mainland
China, Taiwan and Hong Kong.

He holds a Diploma of Business Management from Hong Kong
Baptist College (now known as Hong Kong Baptist University).
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Mr. Liu Kam Lung, aged 56, has been working with the Group
since October 2014.

He is the chief executive officer who oversees the compliance and
business operation of the financial services business of the Group.
He possesses over 29 years of experience in the financial industry.

Mr. Liu is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. At the same time, he is an associate
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and admitted
as an associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators of the United Kingdom. He is also a full member of
the Society of Registered Financial Planners and an associate of
the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.

Mr. Liu holds a Diploma of Business Administration from Hong
Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University).

Ms. Chow So Ying Anna, aged 56, has been working with the
Group since June 2004.

She is the named company secretary of the Group.

Ms. Chow is a solicitor admitted in the Supreme Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and possesses over 20 years
experience in legal and regulatory compliance matters. Her legal
practice used to focus on the capital markets covering IPO, bank
financing, securities and regulatory compliance, joint venture
documentation and private equity investments.

Ms. Chow graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Arts degree.
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Ms. Fung Kim Wan Ewim, aged 57 joined the Group on 1 July
2014.

Ms. Fung currently oversees the financial services business of the
Group.

With over 33 years of experience in business administration,
operational and customer relationship management, Ms. Fung has
been one of the key management member of a leading tobacco
and liquor company in Hong Kong, her main responsibilities
include supervising and managing the distribution and duty-free
business.

She graduated from the City College of Commerce in the discipline
of business studies.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Symphony Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda on 24 November 1993 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and its shares have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 1
March 1995. The address of the Company’s registered office is
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and
its principal place of business is 10th Floor, Island Place Tower,
510 King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) are mainly consist of: (i) retailing and provisions of
sourcing services for branded apparel, swimwear and accessories,
and sourcing, manufacturing and trading of healthcare products;
(ii) development and management of “PONY” and the newly
acquired “SKINS” trademarks; (iii) property investment and
holding; (iv) management and operation of outlet malls; and (v)
provision of financial services (including securities brokerage,
margin financing, money lending, underwriting and placing of listed
securities and financial consultancy services); and (vi) operation of
duty-free shops.

The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
set out in Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group including the challenges
faced and ways to tackle them together with a discussion of
the Group’s future development are provided in the Chairman’s
Statement. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
is included in the Operation Review. A description of the financial
risks including but not limited to foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, equity price risk are found in Note
39(B) to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 65 to 66
of the annual report.

No interim dividend was declared or paid during the year. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board recommends
the payment of a final dividend of HKDO.008 per Share (2018:
HKDO0.012 per Share) to the Shareholders, amounting to
approximately HKD23,794,000 (2018: HKD35,688,000) in
aggregate.

The proposed final dividend is expected to be paid on 15 July
2020 (Wednesday) to Shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company as at the close of business on
Monday, 22 June 2020. The payment of dividend is subject to the
approval of Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held
on 12 June 2020 (Friday).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued at
31 December 2019. The revaluation resulted in a surplus of
approximately HKD452,286,000 which was credited directly to the
properties revaluation reserve.

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group's investment properties at 31 December 2019 were
fair valued by an independent firm of professional property valuers
base on comparable sales available in the market. The net increase
in fair value of approximately HKD44,217,000 was credited directly
to profit or loss.

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group

during the year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

BONUS WARRANT

On 18 March 2016, the Company announced a proposed bonus
issue of warrants on the basis of one warrant for every five shares
held on the record date (i.e. 17 June 2016). On 6 July 2016,
approximately 539,733,000 units of warrants was issued. Each
warrant entitles the holder thereof to subscribe in cash for one
share at the initial subscription price of HKD1.00 per share subject
to adjustments. The warrants are exercisable at any time during
a period of three years commencing from the date of issue of
the warrants (i.e. 6 July 2016). Details of the bonus warrants are
disclosed in the Company's circular dated 29 April 2016.

During the year, the qualifying shareholders of the Company
exercised a total number of approximately 192,000 units (2018:
3,222,000 units) of warrants at an exercise price of HKD1.00
(2018: HKD1.00) per warrant, and therefore approximately
192,000 ordinary shares (2018: 3,222,000 ordinary shares) was
issued by the Company. As a result, approximately HKD19,000
and HKD173,000 (2018: HKD322,000 and HKD2,900,000) were
credited to share capital and share premium account respectively.

On 5 July 2019, the subscription right to exercise the warrants for

subscribing the shares of the Company granted to its qualifying
shareholders was expired.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 37 of the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

i
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2019 2018

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FHET

Share premium [ 10 & (B 1,071,657 1,071,484
Contributed surplus B 586,774 586,774
Retained profits B 15 m 60,737 93,133
1,719,168 1,751,391

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
balances in a company’s contributed surplus and share premium
accounts are available for distribution. However, the company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for believing
that:

(a) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the assets of the Company would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium accounts.

The Company’s share premium account may be applied to pay

up unissued Shares to be issued to the Shareholders as fully paid
bonus shares.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Kar Lee Gary
Mr. Lee Cheung Ming

Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie
Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander

In accordance with the existing Bye-laws 87 and 88 of the
Company, Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (“Mr. Cheng”) and Mr. Chow Yu
Chun Alexander (“Mr. Chow”) will retire as Directors by rotation
and being eligible, both Mr. Cheng and Mr. Chow offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Group which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executives and their associates of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”), or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Code”), were as follows:
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LONG POSITIONS

Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each in the Company:

RE

RAFEIREEC. 108 T H) EBA -

Number of ordinary shares held by

FRERTLERYE Percentage
Spouse Total of the
and/or number of issued share
children Controlled ordinary capital of
Notes  Beneficial owner under 18 corporation shares the Company
5423
ERBR/ 3% BT
Director - Mz ZHA  I8RUTFXH Bk - LERAYE BRAER
Cheng Tun Nei (“Mr. Cheng’)  EJE[E ([E5x4]) 1 72,380,000 - 1,071,040,000 1,143,420,000 38.44%
Chan Kar Lee Gary =7 9,000,000 - - 9,000,000 0.30%
Shum Pui Kay (“Mr. Shum”) wEE(DLEED) 2 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 0.34%
Lee Cheung Ming (“Mr. Lee”)  ZR$& ([F5%4]) 3 94,050,000 2,000,000 - 96,050,000 3.23%

Notes: B
1. Mr. Cheng owns the entire issued share capital of Goldsilk Capital Limited 1. 5 4 5 A Goldsilk Capital Limited ([Goldsilk | ) % &b
(“Goldsilk”). As at 31 December 2019, Goldsilk was directly interested in BT A - 2019412 A31H » GoldsilkE #Z# &
1,071,040,000 Shares. The 160,366,000 Warrants held by Goldsilk expired on 1,071,040,0000% % 17 * Goldsilk#% & #9160,366,0001%
5 July 2019. Mr. Cheng was also directly interested in 72,380,000 Shares. He RREBN2019F7ACH Em B AR EREES
was thus deemed to be interested in 1,143,420,000 Shares. 72,380,0008% % 17+ A It - b 45 18 A5 H1,143,420,000

&R 5 o
2. As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Shum beneficially owns 10,000,000 Shares. 2. 2019912 A31H /b %t £ & 22 45 5 10,000,0000% I
The 2,350,000 Warrants held by him expired on 5 July 2019. 193 ok e 45 A #92,350,00015 7R A% 4 75 1201947 A5
H &

3. Mr. Lee was directly interested in 94,050,000 Shares. He was deemed to be 3. Z= 5 4 H %  594,050,0000% % 17+ ftb 4% 45 A A E R

interested in 2,000,000 Shares held by his spouse. The 14,810,000 Warrants
held by Mr. Lee and the 114,000 Warrants held by his spouse expired on 5
July 2019. He was deemed to be interested in 96,050,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above and in the section “Share Option Scheme”
included in the consolidated financial statements, none of the
directors, chief executives nor their associates had any interest or
short position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31 December
2019.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE OR REDEEM
SHARES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate. In addition, the Company has not redeemed any of its
shares during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the margin financing and JV and Distribution of “arena”
products arrangements as disclosed under the heading of
“Continuing Connected Transactions” from page 48 to 50 of the
annual report, no Director of the Company had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party subsisting
during or at the end of the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the directors’ emoluments are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors and their respective close associates has any
competing interests which need to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors
of the Company is currently in force throughout the year.

R B 2 RE o] B 153 Y <2 ik

RAFEENEAERER - AR T REEMHEA
A EZ2REA LB NERRREREBALRL
) 3 (] E A A A B 88 /O B £ 3K B 25 T 2 15 7
g e b SN AR BN ERARAE BEER D

EFNERESHNER

BARFEREFISHEHEFL0HE [HEBERS]
BREETMEENREESREREE AR NS
$H [arena | EmEHEIN BIBARFEFEREL
MENRAQRSRETMAKBARNERNKEZD
BAFEANMIVEHAERESRMEBERED
RERE AN

EEHt

EERHBEEHNEAMBRRMZIIA -

EFNRENRGNER

HERERANERMEA LT BECAET Y
60 R RIS LT RAIES 10 AT B
B TR 25 <

& AT B 38 18 15 3C

ARRIEMEBFRHEFOREGR (ERBR
BB RN AHEDIFEABR) RF RN £ -

31  2019F E#RE



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERE

1515 8 2 T M ) 336 5 AR T AR A FIB TR A
T EREERMAT - A A REREN2019412
A31B#EAATEBHTIRANIER RS AR
mF -

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at
31 December 2019, the following shareholders had notified the
Company of their relevant interests and short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company

Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each of the Company AR B FR0.1078 TR 19

Number of issued ordinary shares held

ERTRHEE
Percentage of
the issued
share capital
Direct Deemed Total of the
Name of shareholder Notes  Capacity interests interests interests Company
15421
w5 BT
134 (.t EEED REEL BEL [iZN=1)174
Mr. Cheng 1 Beneficial owner and Interest of 72,380,000 1,071,040,000 1,143,420,000 38.44%
controlled corporation
e ERARZEME
Ms. Li Wa Hei (“Madam Li") 1 Spouse - 1,143,/420,000  1,143,420,000 38.44%
FEETT ([F4t]) fic 8
Goldsilk 1 Beneficial owner 1,071,040,000 - 1,071,040,000 36.01%
ZHEA
Or Ching Fai (“Mr. Or") 2 Beneficial owner and spouse 350,000,000 120,000,000 470,000,000 15.80%
TR AE (TR % E]) X ARERE
Wong Lai Ning (“Madam Wong") 2 Beneficial owner and spouse - 470,000,000 470,000,000 15.80%

ERELL ([ERt])

RaARHES
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Notes:

1. Mr. Cheng owns the entire issued share capital of Goldsilk. As at 31
December 2019, Goldsilk was directly interested in 1,071,040,000
Shares. The 160,366,000 Warrants held by Goldsilk expired on 5
July 2019. Mr. Cheng was also directly interested in 72,380,000
Shares. He was thus deemed to be interested in 1,143,420,000
Shares. Madam Li is the wife of Mr. Cheng and she was also
deemed to be interested in 1,143,420,000 Shares.

2. As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Or was directly interested in
350,000,000 Shares. Mr. Or also held 120,000,000 Shares jointly
with his spouse, Madam Wong. Therefore, Mr. Or and Madam
Wong were deemed to be interested in 470,000,000 Shares. The
70,000,000 Warrants held by Mr. Or and the 24,000,000 Warrants
held jointly with his spouse, Madam Wong expired on 5 July 2019.

The Company has not been notified of any other relevant
interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2019.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive directors independent.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
totalling approximately HKD30,000 (2018: HKD30,300).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's employee emolument policy is reviewed by the Board
taking into account the qualifications and experience of the Group’s
employees and the market conditions.

The Group is committed to providing staff with a pleasant, safe and

healthy working environment. Competitive remuneration package
and share option incentive are provided to eligible employees.
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The emoluments of the directors of the Company are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by
the Board, as authorised by shareholders at the annual general
meeting, taking into account the operating results of the Group,
individual performance and the market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the
emoluments of the directors and senior management. The
Company has adopted share option scheme as incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of the Scheme are set out
in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 37 to 51 of
this Annual Report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting in the
following manner:

Shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the voting rights at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written request to
the Board or the company’s secretary, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such written request.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
DISTRIBUTORS

During the year, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 18% of the total sales for the year and sales to
the largest customer included therein amounted to 6%. The
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 95% of the Group’s
total purchases and amount which 76% is attribute to the largest
supplier for the year.

The Group’s largest supplier that accounts for 76% of the
total purchases is Shanghai Descente. Shanghai Descente has
appointed the Group’s indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary Arena
Shanghai to be its exclusive distributor for the People’s Republic
of China from 2017 to 2021. Shanghai Descente is contractually
bound to supply swimwear products to arena Shanghai during the
term of the distribution agreement. Further details are found in
the Company’s announcements dated 27 February 2017 and 22
March 2017.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors or any
of their close associates or any shareholders who holds more than
5% of the Shares has any interests in the customers and suppliers
disclosed above.

We are committed to offer a broad and diverse range of life-style,
value-for-money and good quality products with our brand to
our customers. We stay connected with our customers through
maintaining VIP database, ongoing communications, telephone,
emails, marketing materials and social media. Training are also
provided to sales personnel to provide quality and value-added
customer services.

In addition, the Group will continue to widen the customer base by
utilizing and maximising current network.

We have developed long-standing relationships with our suppliers
and take great care to ensure that they share our commitment to
quality and ethics. We carefully select and assess our suppliers
through track record, experience, reputation and ability to provide
quality products.
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We distribute certain products to end customers through third-
party distributors. We work with our distributors like business
partners and ensure that they also share our view for upholding
brand value and customer services, specifically focusing on
attracting and retaining customers in order to drive sales growth.
We also monitor regularly the financial position and repayment
history of these distributors and their sales performance.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by BDO Limited who
will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHAIRMAN
Cheng Tun Nei

Hong Kong, 20 March 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company firmly believes in the value and importance
of achieving high standard of corporate governance through
transparency, as well as effective risk and internal control system.
With the merger and acquisition of new businesses, the corporate
governance system is constantly reviewed and meticulously
re-assessed, by the Board to ensure that shareholders’ and
stakeholders’ interests are safeguarded. The Company has adopted
and complied with the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2019, except for the deviation from code provisions
A.1.1,A2.1 and A.4.1 of CG Code.

The Board continues to monitor and review the Company’s
corporate governance practices and makes necessary changes at
appropriate times.

Under the code provision A.1.1, the Board should meet regularly
and board meeting should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Due to overseas travel which
is required for ongoing business discussions of certain board
members last year, three board meetings were held in last year.
However, board members continued to participate in company
matters through electronic means or group meetings.

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of the Chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Cheng Tun Nei currently
serves as both the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

In view of the evolving business environment in which our Group
operates, the Board is of the view that currently vesting the roles
of both the chairman and chief executive of the Company on Mr.
Cheng Tun Nei will provide the Group with strong and consistent
leadership while permitting more effective and timely business
planning and decision-making process.
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Under code provision A.4.1, Non-Executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term and are subject to re-election.

All Non-Executive Directors of the Company were not appointed
for specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading, directing and supervising
the Group’s affairs to enable the long term success of the Group.
It sets strategic objectives with focus on value creation and risk
management. It also ensures the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience for achieving internal control and
transparency requirements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Board consisted of 6 Directors
(including the Chairman of the Board), amongst which three are
executive Directors and the remaining three are independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors are involved in the day-to-day operations of the
Group. Independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) are involved
in scrutinising the Group’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives and monitor performance reporting
process. As they are not involved in the daily management of the
Group, they bring an independent judgment to bear on issues
of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conduct. Their presence help to
enhance the Board’s balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives.
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Board diversity requirement is achieved through skills, professional
or industry knowledge and experience, age, cultural and
educational background, age, race, technical skills and experience.
The Company will develop diversity based on its own business
model and specific needs from time to time.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all INEDs independent.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing business strategy and managing day-to-day
administration and operations of the Group’s business to the Chief
Operating Officer and the senior management. While granting
management with substantial autonomy to run and develop the
business, the Board is proactive in reviewing the results of the
delegated functions and work tasks on an ongoing basis.

Every newly appointed director will receive briefing and
professional development so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of his duties and
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory
and regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates and presentation
on the business development of the Group. The Directors are
regularly briefed on the latest development of the Listing Rules
and other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. All Directors
are encouraged by the Company to participate in continuous
professional Development to develop and refresh their professional
knowledge and skills.
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To enable them to be kept abreast of the latest changes in RARFEBEBEBMIMOEINEM  RMHF
the business, legal and regulatory environment in which the B REEERAERELEER T HEEMNE
Group conducts its business, the Company provides continuous B ERERERBE TSNS LREFERE
professional training to Directors through circulating Hong Kong ERo

Stock Exchange updates to Directors.

Type of
Directors CPD programme*
HmiEdl
= HREEE"
Executive Directors BITES
Cheng Tun Nei EE v
Chan Kar Lee Gary PR 5= 71 v
Lee Cheung Ming TR 4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFEHITES
Shum Pui Kay LR E 4
Wah Wang Kei Jackie BN v
Chow Yu Chun Alexander BF% v
* including briefings, regular information updates, reading materials relating to * PEER THEFNEN MEEEAETHNEMER
regulatory updates and business visits. N IR ©

All Directors have full, timely and direct access to the services and 2REFHI2AE BN EERAARTNAA
advice from the company secretary of the Company. WEHEISG MEHEES -
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During the year, the Board conducted 3 meetings, attendance of
the Directors at the board meetings and annual general meetings is
set out as follows:

RER EFSHEHR=
EERBFAENEZHFA

S
INE

B $ REFE
CERATN

Number of meetings attended

HEERZRE
Annual
General
Board Meeting
Directors BE=E EEE REEEXE
Executive Directors BITESE
Cheng Tun Nei gER 3/3 11
Chan Kar Lee Gary bR 3% A 3/3 /1
Lee Cheung Ming TR 3/3 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAEBITESE
Shum Pui Kay ThEE A 3/3 11
Wah Wang Kei Jackie BN 3/3 171
Chow Yu Chun Alexander BAFE& 3/3 1/1

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chow So Ying Anna, the Company Secretary of the Company,
is a full time employee of the Group. She reports to the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. She has duly complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules. Her biographical details are set out on page 23
of the annual report.

The Board delegates the responsibility for performing corporate
governance duties to the committees. The core committees of the
Board are nomination, audit and remuneration committees. The
chair seat of the audit and remuneration committees are currently
held by an INED. Majority members of the three committees are
INEDs.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) was set up for the purpose of advising the Board on
and reviewing the remuneration benefit policy of the Board and
senior management. The aim is to motivate, retain and attract the
best talents for the Group so as to maximise shareholder value.

Remuneration package is performance-based and the
recommended remuneration package includes salaries,
discretionary bonus and share options. During the year,
the Remuneration Committee reviewed and considered the
remuneration packages of the Directors, taking into account the
experience, qualifications, business performance, market practices
and competitive market conditions. Non-executive Directors are
compensated with the aim to fairly represent their efforts and time
dedicated to the Board.

MEMBERS OF REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
was established with specific written terms of reference. The
Audit Committee oversees the audit process and provides an
independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process and the internal control procedures.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee met
in March and August to review with the Chief Financial Officer, the
external auditor and senior management the interim and annual
results of the Group. During those meetings, the accounting
principles and practices being adopted together with auditing and
financial reporting matters were discussed.
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An independent internal audit service provider also reviewed the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019. No material findings had been
identified.

MEMBERS OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chow Yu Chun Alexander (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) is made up of three Directors, out of which 2 are
INEDs. The key role of the Nomination Committee is recruitment of
board members. It evaluates and assesses the optimal composition
of the Board, taking into account the Group’s strategies and
objectives. Apart from making recommendations on the proposed
changes to the Board, assessing the independence of INEDs,
making recommendation to the Board for the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors, the Nomination Committee is mindful of
the need to refresh the Board regularly to avoid entrenchment and
attract fresh thinking.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Policy for the Directors is embedded in the
Committee’s Terms of Reference. The policy stipulates the key
nomination criteria and principles of the Company for nominating
directors and provides what the Committee should do in order to
give effect to the Policy:

(a) review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;
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(b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and select or nominate or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

(C) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

MEMBERS OF NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (Chairman)
Mr. Shum Pui Kay
Mr. Wah Wang Kei Jackie

BOARD/COMMITTEES MEETINGS AND
MINUTES

During the year, management provided information to the Board
members in a timely manner to keep them abreast of the latest
developments of the Company. The attendance of individual
members of the Board for the financial year ended 31 December
2019 is set out in the table below:
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Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Committee Committee Committee
B BZEEE FINEET RBEEEE
Executive Director BITESE
Cheng Tun Nei EEE N/AZT 38 A N/AN 3 A 171
Independent Non-executive Directors  BIIFEHITESE
Shum Pui Kay Rz 2/2 11 11
Wah Wang Kei Jackie /N 2/2 1/1 1/1
Chow Yu Chun Alexander BF#& 2/2 1/1 N/AZ 38 3

44

Annual Report 2019



Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committees meetings
have been recorded. Draft and final versions of minutes of the
Board and other Board Committees were circulated to all Directors
or Committees members for comments within a reasonable time
after the meeting.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Under the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors (including INEDs)
must retire, from office by rotation and every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting. Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (“Mr. Cheng”) and Mr. Chow
Yu Chun Alexander (“Mr. Chow”) will retire and being eligible, both
Mr. Cheng and Mr. Chow offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Details of the biographies of Mr. Cheng and Mr. Chow are set out in
the circular to be sent to the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, INTERNAL
CONTROL, GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk identification and control is the Board’s responsibility. When
the Board pursues the Group’s long term strategic objectives, it
also deals with internal control issues including the Group's risk
appetite, risk and return trade-offs, risk management and internal
control systems.
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Procedures are designed to identify and manage risks that might
adversely impact the Group’s business operations. Through the
establishment of policies and internal guidelines such as the
approval of detailed operational and financial reports, budgets and
plans provided by the management of the business operations;
inhouse code for the approval and control of expenditures; periodic
review of actual results against budget or forecast; annual review
by the Audit Committee of the ongoing work of the Group’s
internal audit and risk management functions, the effectiveness
of the internal control systems is ensured. An independent
service provider was appointed to assist the Board to monitor
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system of the Group. The service provider performed annual
risk management and internal control review of the procedures,
systems and controls of the Company in accordance with “Internal
Control Integrated Framework”. A Risk Management and Internal
Control Review Report was submitted to the Audit Committee and
the Board on a half-yearly basis so that remedial actions can be
taken by formalizing management policies to manage risk in a
systematic manner.

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those with
significant impact on the Group. As far as the Company is aware
of, the Group has complied, in material respect, with the relevant
rules and regulations promulgated by the relevant regulatory bodies
to which the Group operates its business in and holds the relevant
required licences for conducting certain licensed activities.

46

i3 38 I AT ER R A0 A BDAZ Fr DA R Bl Ko B T AT RE
AEBEEBFETNZE EREHHETER
BlRXHAFEEELAMBHRE BEMEHT
g FJH MG AR TR REERNER
X mERZEeFEEHNELAEENBESR
HERERBENFELE ABEZERRNE
I FREH G IAMER - — BB L RGHEHES
T UppEEEERARERREIER AP
REGHARE - ZRBHEBSFIUARFH
B ZRMEERE [EBEHIRE ERE ] #
THEERRERERARMETRS - —DRERER
LAMERECRECRFFEEETRERTE
REEGLEFS UERBEERRUBRS
AATERRRYREEENRETH

REBEHIEERIEF  ARRETRHRERE
BELERZENERAN - RAFIER A
RAEFH AREDET REAE@ HEHEHK
S8 T M ) AR R IR DR M B0 AR BB AR R SR AR
RBETXME LB IR EMERE-

Annual Report 2019



AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

A summary of remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, BDO Limited, for the audit services and non-audit
services for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 is as

12 BB B =

BE2019F12A31A MM EBRFE - X TFAR
ABUZEMAR L ERREAMESMERLD
AIFTER AV IR M IR IR BN 45 B 4D

follows: Ik
2019
HKD’000
FHET
Nature of services IR ME
Audit services EI AR 2,030
Non-audit services IEEET RS 340

The Group’s external auditor is BDO Limited, their independence is
a fundamental governance principle.

The lead audit partner of BDO Limited is subject to rotation
every seven years pursuant to the International Federation of
Accountants rules on independence of external auditors. As part of
the rotation, the current lead audit partner was first appointed for
the 2017 financial year end audit.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, each of them confirmed his compliance
with the required standard set out in the Model Code for the
financial year ended 31 December 2019. Relevant employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Group are also subject to compliance with
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

With the assistance of the finance department, the Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
and confirm that the consolidated financial statements contained
herein give a true and fair view of the results and state of affairs of
the Group for the period under review. The Directors consider that
the financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the
statutory requirements and the applicable accounting standards.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance can
be found in the Operation Review section of this annual report
from page 10 to 16. Further explanation as to how the Company
generates or preserves value over the longer term and the strategy
for delivering the Company’s objectives is found in the Chairman’s
Statement from page 2 to 9.

To maintain and promote better and effective control within the
Group, the Directors have reviewed the soundness, adequacy
and application of accounting, financial and other controls of the
Company.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into
the following disclosed connected transactions with its connected
Persons:

(i) under a margin financing agreement collectively signed
by Mr. Cheng Tun Nei (“Mr. Cheng”) (a director of the
Company), Goldsilk Capital Limited (a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Cheng) and the subsidiary of the Company
on 31 December 2018, the aggregate margin financing loan
facility was set at HKD10,000,000 for a fixed term of three
years;
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(iii)

(iv)

under a margin financing agreement signed by Ms. Fung
Kim Wan Ewim, a director of the subsidiary of the Company
and a subsidiary of the Company on 31 December 2018,
the aggregate margin financing loan facility was set at
HKD10,000,000 for a fixed term of three years.

under a margin financing agreement signed by Mr. Lee
Cheung Ming, a director of the Company and a subsidiary
of the Company on 30 October 2019, the aggregate margin
financing loan facility was set at HKD10,000,000 for a fixed
term of three years.

The transactions adhere to the Margin Financing Policy of a
subsidiary of the Company, which is defined as per guidance
from the Securities & Futures Commission. All transactions
(including but not limited to exposure limit and margin loan
outstanding) are subject to review and monitoring on a daily
basis by the Responsible Officer, whereby margin calls if any
shall be followed up with remedial action accordingly.

after conducting an annual review of the 2018 business
performance of arena, an amendment to the JV agreement
and Distribution Agreement (as supplemented by the
Amendment Agreements, collectively the “Revised
Agreements”) were entered into by the Group on 7 May
2019 under which the (a) the price for the “arena” products
and (b) the minimum level of purchase for arena products
were revised.

The price for the arena products is revised as the
recommended retail price of the “arena” products times
a rate specified in the Revised Agreements. The annual
minimum level of purchase of the “arena” products was
reduced to RMB60,345,000 (2019), RMB86,629,000
(2020) and RMB96,139,000 (2021) respectively. All the
foregoing annual minimum level of purchase excludes tax.
The minimum purchase for the contract years is adjusted
taking into account the current China retail market conditions
and it is foreseen that the adjustment will improve both the
business performance and the flexibility of the joint venture.

Details of the Revised Agreements can be found in the
announcements of the Company published on 8 May 2019.
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The transactions are reviewed and monitored by designated
internal team.

The INED of the Company believed that the above continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(b)  on normal commercial terms; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.

BDO Limited, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report
on the Group’s disclosed continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. BDO Limited
has issued its unqualified opinion letter containing its findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an effective
two-way communication with its stakeholders. Designated
members of the management meet with institutional investors
on an on-going basis providing them with the latest and
comprehensive information about the corporate developments of
the Group. In addition, stakeholders can click into the Company’s
website (www.symphonyholdings.com) to obtain updated
information in a timely manner.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group realises the importance of environmental protection in
pursuing long-term sustainability. In particular, the Group promotes
water and energy saving, recycling of materials at its offices such
as putting up notices in the restrooms and pantry reminding
staff members to save water, switching off idle lightings, air-
conditioning and electrical appliances. The Group also encourages
the use of recycle papers and doubled sided printing. The Group
is committed to improving environmental sustainability and
will closely monitor the performance. In accordance with Rule
13.91 of and Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, the Company’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Report will be available on
its website within three months from the publication of this annual
report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company aims to provide consistent increases in dividends,
linked to the earning performance of its business. The Board takes
into account the Company’s future business funding need and the
Company’s financial position when deciding the dividend amount
to be paid.

Dividends are normally paid out once per year.

Shareholders who fail to receive their dividend warrant should
notify the Company’s Share Registrar by writing to them or
complete a form which can be downloaded from the Share
Registrar’'s website. A replacement dividend warrant or
replacement dividend cheque will be sent to shareholders around
4 weeks from the date the Company’'s Share Registrar receive
shareholders’ notification of non-receipt of dividend warrants.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{§H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF SYMPHONY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Symphony Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 65 to 322, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follow:

- Fair value of investment properties, leasehold land and
buildings, and buildings classified as level 3 recurring fair
value measurements;

- Impairment assessment of trade and other receivables and
loans receivables; and

- Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets.

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 111 and 116 respectively.

At 31 December 2019, the Group's investment properties,
leasehold land and buildings and buildings which were classified
as property, plant and equipment, with the carrying amounts
of approximately HKD1,503,312,000, HKD308,288,000 and
HKD1,345,473,000 (2018: HKD1,319,475,000, HKD299,780,000
and HKD331,295,000), were measured at fair values respectively.
All of the fair value of these properties were classified as level
3 recurring fair value measurements under the definition of
HKFRS13 “Fair Value Measurement” given that there were certain
key inputs used for determining the fair values of these properties
were not largely based on observable market data and involved
management’s significant judgements and high level of estimation
uncertainty in the selection of key inputs incorporated in the
valuations of these properties.

For the valuations of these properties, the management has
engaged independent qualified professional valuers to support the
fair value measurements of these properties with reasonable and
appropriate key assumptions and methodologies.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

The valuations of investment properties were determined by three
separate methodologies: (i) direct comparison approach for Beijing,
Shanghai and Chongging properties, where all located in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and a Hong Kong property;
(i) discount of rental income approach for Tianjin property in
the PRC; and (iii) capitalisation of rental receivables approach
for a Hong Kong property. All of these methodologies required
management’s significant judgements by taking into accounts of
the following factors: (i) characteristics of the properties, which
included the location, size, timing, floor level, view, age and quality
against comparable sales evidence available in the market nearby
for the direct comparison approach; (ii) rental yield, rental growth
rate, adjustment rates on the length of lease term or the Group's
credit rating and market unit rent for the discount of rental income
approach; and (iii) term yield, reversionary yield and market unit
rent for the capitalisation of rental receivables approach before
deriving appropriate amounts of fair value of the investment
properties.

The valuations of leasehold land and buildings and buildings,
which were classified as property, plant and equipment, were
determined by two separate methodologies: (i) direct comparison
approach for a Hong Kong property and a Shanghai property,
where located in the PRC; and (ii) discount of rental income
approach for Shenyang and Xiamen properties, where located in
the PRC. Both methodologies required management's significant
judgements by taking into accounts of the following factors: (i)
characteristics of the properties, which included the location, size,
timing, floor level, view, age and quality against comparable sales
evidence available in the market nearby for the direct comparison
approach; and (ii) rental yield and market unit rent for the discount
of rental income approach before deriving appropriate amounts of
fair value of the leasehold land and buildings and buildings.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

We identified the fair value of investment properties, leasehold land
and buildings and buildings classified as level 3 recurring fair value
measurements as a key audit matter because of the management'’s
significant judgements and high level of estimation uncertainty
involved in the valuations of these properties and the carrying
amounts involved are significant to the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

Our audit response to the key audit matter:

- Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent qualified professional valuers;

- Assessed the appropriateness of methodologies and
reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the
valuations of the properties and whether they are consistent
with our knowledge of current business operations and data
available in the property markets;

- Performed testing, on a sample basis, on the accuracy and
relevancy of the key inputs used in the valuation of properties
provided by the management to the independent qualified
professional valuers by checked to the available supporting
documents and data available in property markets.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Refer to Notes 23 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies from pages 140 to 145 respectively.

At 31 December 2019, the Group has trade and other receivables
and loss allowances of approximately HKD190,369,000 and
HKD15,395,000 (2018: HKD513,594,000 and HKD37,424,000)
respectively. In addition, the Group has loans receivable and loss
allowances of approximately HKD167,193,000 and HKD6,800,000
(2018: HKD166,088,000 and HKD6,800,000) respectively.

Under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”), the
expected credit loss (“ECL") for these financial assets required
the management’s significant judgements and involved high level
of estimation uncertainty. It includes key assumptions such as
probabilities of default rates, expected recovery rates from loss
given default and forward-looking information specific to the
debtors and macroeconomic environment.

We identified the impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables and loans receivable as a key audit matter because
of the management’s significant judgements and high level
of estimation uncertainty involved in the development and
implementation process of the ECL models and the carrying
amounts involved are significant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) FASEETEE (8)

Az BE H R B B R T FIRAV DI FE -

Our audit response to the key audit matter:

Assessed the overall operating effectiveness of key controls
over the design and implementation which govern the
internal credit control, debt collections, recording and
monitoring of the ECLs on the trade and other receivables
and loans receivable;

To assess the appropriateness of the ECL models, we
challenged the reasonableness of key assumptions and
inputs used by the management in estimating the ECLs,
including performed testing, on a sample basis, on the
accuracy and relevancy of the historical default rates
whether they are appropriately adjusted based on the recent
loss experience and forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and macroeconomic environment, including key
economic parameters and assumptions used in different
scenarios. We also examined whether the actual losses
recorded during the year has caused any changes of the
key assumptions and inputs used in the ECL models and
assessed whether there was any indication of management’s
bias when forming the loss allowances on the trade and other
receivables and loans receivable;

For a sample of exposures that was subject to impairment
assessment other than a simplified approach, we tested
whether there is any significant increase in credit risk when
categorising into different stages of default on the trade and
other receivables and loans receivable against the criteria
under HKFRS 9; and
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

- Verified the key inputs used by the management in assessing
the probability of default rates against the internal documents
and tested the recovery rates from loss given default in the
ECLs calculations by taking into account the realisable value
of collaterals on the trade and other receivables and loans
receivable where appropriate.

Refer to Notes 21 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 105 and 127 respectively.

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives, net of impairment loss, with
the carrying amounted of approximately HKD141,401,000
and HKD194,733,000 (2018: HKD147,501,000 and
HKD149,100,000) were required to be tested for impairment at
the end of reporting period, irrespective of whether there is any
indication of impairment. During the year, impairment loss on
goodwill of approximately HKD6,100,000 (2018: HKD nil) was
recognised in profit or loss given that the recent adverse financial
performance of the healthcare product business in Hong Kong due
to the outbreak of social incidents.

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s intangible assets with finite
useful lives amounted to approximately HKD46,754,000 (2018:
HKD50,350,000) were required to be tested for impairment when
there is an indication of impairment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Management concluded that except for the impairment loss on
goodwill arise from the acquisition of healthcare products business
as explained above, there was no impairment loss in respect of
the rest of goodwill and intangible assets at 31 December 2018
and 2019. This conclusion was based on the determination of
the recoverable amounts of the cash generating units allocated
based on the value-in-use calculations carried out by independent
qualified professional valuers. The determination of recoverable
amounts required management’s significant judgements and
key inputs used in the cash flow projections, including revenue
projection, long-term growth rates, gross margins and discount
rates.

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets as a key audit matter because of the management’s
significant judgements and high level of estimation uncertainty
involved in the determination of the recoverable amounts and
useful lives and the carrying amounts involved are significant to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Our audit response to the key audit matter:

- Checked the arithmetic accuracy of the cash flow projections
used in the impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets;

- Assessed the reasonableness of key inputs used in the cash
flow projections included revenue projection, long-term
growth rates, gross margins and discount rates based on the
knowledge of business for the impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

- Discussed with the management about the current
technological, market, economic and legal environment
and the economic performance of each cash-generating
units to assess whether the management has identified any
impairment indicators of goodwill and intangible assets at the
end of reporting period; and

- Checked the key inputs of cash flow projections against the
internal documents, including the approved budgets, internal
market research and analysis to assess whether there is any
material difference against the budgets.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

TANG Tak Wah

Practising Certificate Number: P06262

Hong Kong, 20 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12318 It F &

2019 2018
NOTES HKD'000 HKD'000
k3 FH#ET FET
Revenue LON 7 388,944 381,848
Cost of sales SHERA (109,831) (122,145)
Gross profit EM 279,113 259,703
Other income and gains H g A Rz 10(a) 132,422 168,558
Distribution and selling expenses DEMEERY (114,086) (126,363)
Administrative expenses THAX (129,711) (164,394)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses FEREHERT (54,254) (53,099)
Finance costs BERA 8 (53,691) (33,933)
Other expenses Hipp % 10(b) (28,668) (17,662)
Increase in fair value of investment properties BEMEATEBELEMN 44,217 112,267
Share of results of joint ventures ERETEERE 5,315 19,955
Share of result of an associate H—ABECEER - (2,326)
Profit before income tax expense B TS R X A 7 10(c) 80,657 162,706
Income tax credit/(expense) Fra®Esn,/ (Fx) 9 1,248 (50,034)
Profit for the year FZ i 10(c) 81,905 112,672

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: FE{E 2T (BEE) :
Owners of the Company KRBERA 71,705 118,213
Non-controlling interests TR 10,200 (5,541)
81,905 112,672

Earnings per share: BEEF:

Basic earnings per share FRERZF 13 HK2.41 cents il HK3.99 cents 7l
Diluted earnings per share BREERN 13 HK2.41 cents #4l HK3.98 cents 71l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

2019 2018
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
i FHERT FET
Profit for the year F 25 A 10(c) 81,905 112,672
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax H b Z U - BRF1E
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: & EFHHEEIER
KIIE B :
Surplus arising on revaluation of properties MESHES A% 452,286 29,150
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation of VEEMEA Y
properties BELERIEEE (111,346) (5,328)
340,940 23,822
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to ~ H#E B &5 HE
profit or loss: ZEEMIER :
Share of other comprehensive income of HEEPEIEEM
joint ventures ZEKEE (542) (2,763)
Exchange differences arising on translation of BMEBINETEEER
foreign operations EHITEER (32,457) (124,727)
Translation reserve released to profit or loss RSB AR EEE
on disposal of subsidiaries B AE X - 27,273
(32,999) (100,217)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax ~ FEHM 2 E U B Ei% 307,941 (76,395)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE2EWELE 389,846 36,277
Total comprehensive income for the year B2 E s 48R :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARERA 383,148 46,734
Non-controlling interests eI M 6,698 (10,457)
389,846 36,277
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2019 }A2019F12A31H

2019 2018
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
ik F#T FHET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment EN YR 14 1,688,077 857,382
Investment properties HEME 15 1,503,312 1,319,475
Right-of-use assets THESE 16 495,515 -
Prepaid lease payments BNHEERE 17 = 499,834
Intangible assets BV EE 18 241,487 199,450
Interests in joint ventures BECE I ER 19 65,868 95,962
Interest in an associate N—EBErE ER 20 = -
Goodwill [5ES 21 141,401 147 501
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBEE 29 21,691 9,623
Club debenture SHES 1,876 1,876
Restricted bank deposits SR HIRITER 27(a) 3,356 34,814
Statutory deposits for financial services business CRRBEBNEEFR 200 200
Total non-current assets FREEELE 4,162,783 3,166,117
Current assets nREEE
Inventories rE 22 67,958 85,380
Trade and other receivables 2 5 R E AR 23 190,369 513,594
Amounts due from joint ventures JEI A & ¥R 19 10,048 8,170
Amount due from an associate JE U — e Bt 2 (b 2 FR0A 20 18,081 35,343
Advances to customers in margin financing REFRESRERFZ
B 24 122,648 144,145
Loans receivable EWE R 25 167,193 166,088
Prepaid lease payments BNHEEREA 17 - 14,833
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFEIAERR
TRAE 26 240,953 72,453
Restricted bank deposits IR HIRITE 27(a) 37,174 -
Bank balances and cash — held on RITHEBERE
behalf of customers -REFPHE 27(b) 13,415 15,761
Bank balances and cash WRITEBRRERS 27(c) 129,791 131,590
Total current assets MEBEERE 997,630 1,187,357
Current liabilities pid ) =L
Trade and other payables B REMEMER 28 309,054 231,908
Amount due to a related party JE S —FE BB R B IR 33 112 10,541
Lease liabilities HEBE 32 11,692 -
Finance lease payables ENRERE 31 - 120
Bank borrowings BITER 30 198,822 307,026
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 30 7,804 6,461
Tax payable FERI IR 30,092 30,248
Total current liabilities RBEBERAE 557,576 586,304
Net current assets REEEFE 440,054 601,053
Total assets less current liabilities EELERRDAR 4,602,837 3,767,170
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As at 31 December 2019 2019412 831H

2019 2018
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
st F#T FET

Non-current liabilities *REBERE
Loan from non-controlling interests REFEEREZER 47 2,114 9,249
Lease liabilities HEAR 32 173,207 -
Finance lease payables ERRERE 31 = 531
Bank borrowings RITER 30 1,212,079 974,028
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHEAE 29 287,112 169,495
Total non-current liabilities FRBBELE 1,674,512 1,153,303
Net Assets EETHE 2,928,325 2,613,867

Equity i

Share capital [ 34 297,422 297,403
Reserves G 37 2,620,065 2,273,425
Equity attributable to owners of the Company /NG Y =N E Fa 2,917,487 2,570,828
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR 47 10,838 43,039
Total Equity WS EE 2,928,325 0,613,867

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 322 were BN FEEOEFI22A MR A MIEHRETIBA AR A
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 F R N20209F3 B20 B #it#x MR 1% - W0 A

March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: TIEEREREE:
Cheng Tun Nei Chan Kar Lee, Gary
BER PR E=F
Director Director
EE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #;Z20194 12831 H [t F &

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RRAIER AL
Properties Share Non-
Share  Contributed Share  revaluation options  Translation ~ Statutory  Retained controlling
capital surplus — premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
NEEMR Bl FERR

hA E&ES  BROEE 1 B EXRE ETEE BREV &5t 3 &5t
HKD'O00 ~ HKD'000 ~ HKD'000 ~ HKD'000 ~ HKD'000 ~ HKD'000 ~ HKD'000 ~ HKD'000 ~ HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000
ThT  TEr  TAxT  TEx  TERT  TEx  TER  TExT  TEx  TERT  TiEn

(Note 34) ~ (Note 37)  (Note 37)  (Note 37)  (Note 37)  (Note 37)  (Note 37)  (Note 37) (Note 47)
(Wit3a)  (Wa37)  (W#37)  (W#E37)  (Wi37)  (Wi37)  (W#37)  (Hid37) (Hy:247)
Balance at 1 January 2018 201851 71H
as originally presented s 23 295581 523213 1,056,760 219,956 1,102 28,340 2479 416436 2,543,867 53496 2,597,363
Initial application of HKFRS 9 & R A B85
HEBIE9%R - - - - - - - (20813)  (20813) - (20813

Adjusted balance as at 201851 A1H

1 January 2018 EHE
(as per below) (I TFIR)

295581 523213 1056760 21995 1,102 28340 2479 395623 2523054 53496 2576550
Profit/(loss) for the year FEREN/ (BE) - - - - - - - 118213 118213 (5,541) 112672

Surplus arising on revaluation MEEREMEEZ

of properties B - - - 29,150 - - - - 29,150 - 29,150
Deferred tax liability arising ~ #1 £ EEMELZ

on revaluation of properties  ELFIBEE - - - (5,328) - - - - (5,328) - (5,328)
Share of other comprehensive 1A 4 MNEHE M

income of joint ventures EXLON - - - - - (2,763) - - (2,763) - (2,763)
Exchange differences BEENER

arising on translation of MEAMELZR

foreign operations - - - - - (119811) - - (119811) (4916)  (124,727)
Translation reserve released 1A H &M B L 7B

to profit or loss on disposal ~ EIEZEF 2

of subsidiaries ERFE - - - - - 27,273 - - 27,273 - 27,273
Other comprehensive income & £ 2E KA

for the year - - - 23822 - (95,301) - - (71,479) (4916)  (76,395)
Total comprehensive income & 2 IR A £

for the year (as per below) (W TFIR) - - - 2382 - (95301) - 118213 46734 (10457) 36277
Adjusted balance 20185 1A1H

asat 1 January 2018 BHE

(as per above) (ITETR) 295,581 523,213 1,056,760 219,956 1,102 28,340 2479 395623 2,523,054 53,496 2,576,550
Total comprehensive income % /& 2 EIR A\ %8

for the year (ITETR)

(as per above) - - - 23,822 - (95,301) - 118213 46,734 (10,457) 36,277
Share-based payments LAR{A A - - - - 328 - - - 328 - 328
Exercise of share options b iRARE

(Note 35) (fi72235) 1,500 - 1182 - (1,024) - - - 12300 - 12300
Lapse of share options BRERK

(Note 35) (f7:235) - - - - (406) - - 406 - - -
Exercise of warrants (Note 36) 17{# BB IEE

(Hy:236) 32 - 2,900 - - - - - 3222 - 3222
Transfer from statutory reserve # B % F 8 - - - - - - (2,479) 2479 - - -
Dividend paid (Note 12) BRRE (Hi#12) - - - - - - - (148100  (14810) - (14810)
Balance at 31 December 2018 #2018%12H31H 297,403 523213 1,071,484 243,778 - (66,961) - 501911 2,570,828 43,039 2,613,867
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RATHFAEN
Properties Non-
Share Contributed Share revaluation Translation  Retained controlling
capital surplus  premium reserve reserve profits Total interests Total
MEER 1300
BAx EBEHER RYEE fE ELfE SR st 5 @t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000  HKD'000
TiET FET FiER FiER FiET FHET TR TR FET
(Note 34)  (Note 37)  (Note 37)  (Note 37)  (Note 37)  (Note 37) (Note 47)
(Bii34) (Bi##37) (HaE37)  (Bi#37)  (HaE37)  (Bi#37) (Hitaz)
Balance at 1 January 2019 201951818 297,403 523,213 1,071,484 243,778 (66,961) 501,911 2,570,828 43,039 2,613,867
Profit for the year EEHRH - - - - - 71,705 71,705 10,200 81,905
Surplus arising on revaluation MEERMELZRNR
of properties - - - 452,286 - - 452,286 - 452,286
Deferred tax liability arising MEEGFEEZEBE
on revaluation of properties HEAR - - - (111,346) = - (111,346) - (111,346)
Share of other comprehensive HRELEREMR2ETA
income of joint ventures - - - - (542) - (542) - (542)
Exchange differences arisingon ~ REBIMEBFHELEM
translation of foreign operations ~ ERZER - - - - (28,955) - (28,955) (3,502)  (32,457)
Other comprehensive income FEEEBZERA
for the year - - - 340,940 (29,497) - 311,443 (3,502) 307,941
Total comprehensive income FEREKANGE
for the year - - - 340,940 (29,497) 71,705 383,148 6,698 389,846
Exercise of warrants (Note 36) TTERERRHE (Afit36) 19 - 173 - - - 192 - 192
Acquisition of non-controlling £l 4
interests (Note 47) (Hizt47) = = = - (991) = (991)  (38,899)  (39,890)
Dividend paid (Note 12) ERRE (H12) - - - - - (35,690) (35,690) - (35,690)
Balance at 31 December 2019 ®2019%12R318 297,422 523,213 1,071,657 584,718 (97,449) 537,926 2,917,487 10,838 2,928,325
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12318 It F &

2019 2018
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
iz FH#ET FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEEEEBZRETE
Profit before income tax expense B PSR S AT 2 A 80,657 162,706
Adjustments for: R
Interest income FBMA (4,656) (2,778)
Finance costs BER AR 53,691 33,933
Share of results of joint ventures HEETEER (5,315) (19,955)
Share of result of an associate A ECEER = 2,326
Fair value gain on re-measurement of equity EFFEE—AE ¥R
in a joint venture AT EBENE 49 - (5,363)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE- -BELSETE 32,548 34,751
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 18,110 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE 70 & a5 = 14,752
Amortisation of intangible assets BREESH 3,596 3,596
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BEREHERE
plant and equipment (42) (290)
Write off of property, plant and equipment ME - BB K EME 292 830
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREMEWE - (31,660)
Increase in fair value of BRECERMENLFEEE
completed investment properties 0 (44,217) (112,267)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB A WE 48 = (117,764)
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets AT EIAEZR
at fair value through profit or loss CRMEENATE
(Wezs) /B8 (88,843) 2,443
Bad debts written off [mEiEibedi 304 331
Impairment loss on financial assets CTREEREBEERE 3,023 7,184
Impairment loss on loan to an associate ERT-BECEREEE - 3,670
Impairment loss on amount due from an associate JRE M Bt i (> EFUEREE B 11,631 1,761
Impairment loss on goodwill (SEEREY 5 6,100 -
Gain on write back of other payables (2] 42 HL i B < BR R A M s (17,503) -
Write off of obsolete inventories REFEME 12 13
Provision of allowance for inventories FEHEREE 8,951 838
Share-based payment expenses AR X = 328
Operating cash flows before movements in REESEEYRMLE
working capital BeR 58,339 (20,615)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories HFEREL,/ (Em) 8,191 (22,889)
Increase in trade and other receivables 2 5 I H e U AR 5138 0 (2,530) (26,921)
Decrease/(increase) in advances to customers REFRESBERP
in margin financing 28I () 21,497 (33,287)
(Increase)/decrease in loans receivable W E T (Zm),wW> (1,105) 49,244
Increase in financial assets at fair value BRATFEIIAEBER
through profit or loss CRVEEEM (76,545) (65,778)
Decrease in bank balances and cash RITEBEBR SR
— held on behalf of customers -REFHE 2,346 8,247
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R E b A R FE A0 (4,818) 39,851
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KRELEEBEE,/ (FA)
Be 5,375 (72,148)
The PRC and foreign tax paid B E REINMIIR (2,965) (7,529)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREEFER (578) (3,560)
Net cash from/(used in) operating activities KEEETHELE
(FA)MIR&FEE 1,832 (83,237)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

2019 2018
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
i FHERT FET
Cash flows from investing activities REREEEHZRERE
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired Wi F B A 7]
(f0RRFTE &) 49 (10,000) (54,673)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of HEWB A
(MNBxAHEzRE) 48 - 250,505
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling interests W& FFIERG S B % 47 (40,490) -
Advances to non-controlling shareholder of RETIHERRES
joint ventures AETE (16,389) -
Advances to joint ventures RUEALELERR (1,925) (12,595)
Dividends received from joint ventures EEPENENRE - 2,175
Repayment from/(advance to) an associate WE, (4R 4%) —MB &%
2R 5,429 (11,157)
Proceeds from reduction in share capital of EEPERDRAY R
joint ventures 34,867 -
Payments for additions of property, NENE BEMREERS
plant and equipment (7,532) (27,201)
Proceeds from disposals of property, REWE - BERHERA
plant and equipment 49 904
Payments for additions of construction in RNEEZEIRENEEMHS
progress and buildings (287,555) (196,410)
Praceeds from refundable deposits BNEERENREF S
for acquiring land-use rights BB 41,667 13,585
Increase in refundable deposits on construction ERIRMRETSIEMN
in progress - (34,187)
Proceed from disposal of HECRMIBREME N
a completed investment property - 52,360
Praceeds from disposals of investment properties HETRREME NG
under construction 314,365 -
Payments for additions of intangible assets RNEBFEESH (45,633) -
Increase in restricted bank deposits IR AIERITE UG (5,915) (9,849)
Interest received B S 4,225 2759
Net cash used in investing activities AREEEHHLFE (14,837) (23,784)
Cash flow from financing activities KREREEBZRERE 50(B)
Proceeds from issue of new shares under RE B R BT
share option scheme M 2 s - 12,300
Proceeds from issue of new shares upon BRI R B BT
exercise of warrants T 2 W 192 3,222
Principal element of finance lease payment REMERBEHNES D - 651
Proceeds from bank borrowings SBITER W 299,947 639,041
Repayments of bank borrowings RITEFER (163,584) (516,141)
(Repayment to)/advance from a related party RE—R @A
(BR) /23K (10,369) 10,541
(Repayment to)/advance from non-controlling A FEERARER
shareholder (&), B% (6,485) 8,649
Repayments of lease liabilities HEBBEEN (11,516) -
Dividend paid BERRE (35,690) (14,810)
Interest paid BERFE (37,743) (31,724)
Net cash from financing activities REMEEBHEFE 34,752 111,729
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

2019 2018
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
k23 FHETT FHET
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents HeRINLEEZHiEm 21,747 4,708
Cash and cash equivalents FVRERBLEEY
at the beginning of the year 50(A) 125,129 137,326
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEERXEEHRS R
on cash and cash equivalents ReEBYevE (24,889) (16,905)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, ERHLRINLLEY
representing bank balances and EMRITHBR RIS R
cash and bank overdrafts RITEX 50(A) 121,987 125,129
Analysis of the balances of cash and HeRINEEEYMEGRZ
cash equivalents: ot
— Bank balances and cash —RITEH MRS 129,791 131,590
— Bank overdrafts —RITEX 30 (7,804) (6,461)
121,987 125,129
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

GENERAL INFORMATION

Symphony Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 24 November 1993 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and its shares have been
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Main Board”) since 1 March 1995. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its
principal place of business is 10th Floor, Island Place Tower,
510 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are mainly consist of: (i) retailing and
provision of sourcing services for branded apparel, swimwear
and accessories, and sourcing, manufacturing and trading
of healthcare products; (ii) development and management
of “PONY” trademarks and the newly acquired “SKINS”
trademarks; (iii) property investment and holding; (iv)
management and operation of outlet malls; and (v) provision
of financial services (including securities brokerage, margin
financing, money lending, underwriting and placing of listed
securities and financial consultancy services); and (vi)
operation of duty free shops.

The principal activities of the Company’s principal

subsidiaries are set out in Note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs, which included Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
relevant to the Group’s accounting policies and
business operations adopted for the first time prepared
and presented on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the financial year beginning on or after 1
January 2019:

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
HKFRS 9 Compensation

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3,

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle Business Combinations

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 11,
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle Joint Arrangements

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 12,
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle Income Taxes

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 23,
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle Borrowing Costs
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in
accounting treatment for lease accounting,
primarily for accounting for lessees. It
replaces HKAS 17 “Leases” (“HKAS 177),
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease” (“HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4”), HK(SIC)-Int 15 “Operating Leases —
Incentives” (“HK(SIC)-Int 15”) and HK(SIC)-Int
27 “Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease” (“HK(SIC)-
Int 27”). From a lessee’s perspective, almost
all leases are recognised in the statement of
financial position as a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability, with the narrow exception to this
principle for leases which the underlying assets
are of low-value or are determined as short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less. From a lessor’s perspective, the accounting
treatment is substantially unchanged from HKAS
17 except when the Group act as an intermediate
lessor detailed in section (iv) of this note. HKFRS
16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aims
to enable users of the financial statements to
assess the effect that leases have on the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows of
an entity.

2.

RNEEMBREEL (5)

(i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
(Continued)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 by using the
modified retrospective approach at 1 January
2019. Under this approach, HKFRS 16 is
adopted retrospectively and recognised all of
the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at 1 January 2019, and the comparative
information presented in 2018 has not been
restated and continued to be reported under
HKAS 17 and related interpretations as permitted
under the transitional provisions in HKFRS
16. For details of HKFRS 16 regarding its new
definition of a lease, its impact on the Group's
accounting policies and the transition method
adopted by the Group as allowed under HKFRS
16, please refer to section (ii) to (v) of this note.

2.

RNEEMBREER (5)

(i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(i)

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the
right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.
A contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time when
the customer, throughout the period of use,
has both: (a) the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset and (b) the right to direct the
use of the identified asset. The Group elected
to use the transition practical expedient allowing
the standard to be applied only to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of
initial adoption. Contracts that were not identified
as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
was not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of
lease under HKFRS 16 has been adopted only to
contracts entered into or changed on or after 1
January 2019.

2.

RNEEMBREEL (5)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(i)

The new definition of a lease (Continued)

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, a lessee shall allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, unless the lessee apply the
practical expedient which allows the lessee
to elect, by class of underlying asset, not to
separate non-lease components from lease
components, and instead account for each
lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

The Group has elected not to separate the non-
lease components and account for all each
lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all
leases of which the Group is a lessee.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FANEEUBRREEL (8)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(i) fEBRBEAZEFEE

(iii) Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease
as an operating lease or a finance lease based on
the extent to which risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of a lease asset lie with the lessor
or the lessee. If a lease is determined as an
operating lease, the lessee would recognise the
lease payments under the operating lease as an
expense over the lease term. The asset under the
lease would not be recognised in the statement
of financial position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of
they are operating leases or finance leases) are
required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but HKFRS 16 provides accounting
policy choices for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases
and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset
is of low-value. The Group has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with
those leases have been expensed on straight-line
basis over the lease term. The Group recognised
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the
date of adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January
2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FNEEUBREEL (8)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(i) fEBRBEAZEEE (4)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property or a class of property,
plant and equipment to which the Group applies
the revaluation model, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment loss, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liability.
Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the recognised right-of-use asset
shall be depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term. For right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of an investment property, they are
carried at fair value and for right-of-use asset
that meets the definition of a lease hold land and
buildings held for own use, they are carried at
fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FANEEUBRREEL (8)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(i) fEBRBEAZEEE (4)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

For the Group, leasehold land and buildings
that were held for rental or capital appreciation
purpose would continue to be accounted for
under HKAS 40 and would be carried at fair
value. For leasehold land and buildings which is
held for own use would continue to be accounted
for under HKAS 16 and would be carried at fair
value. The adoption of HKFRS 16 therefore does
not have any significant impact on these right-
of-use assets. Other than the above right-of-use
assets, the Group also has leased a number of
properties under tenancy agreements which the
Group exercises its judgements and determines
that it is a separate class of asset apart from
the leasehold land and buildings which is held
for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FNEEUBREEL (8)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(i) fEBRBEAZEEE (4)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments shall be discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group shall use the
Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable;
(i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at commencement date of lease; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as expense in the period of
which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(iii) Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

(iv)

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, a
lessee shall measure the lease liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and (iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications,.
e.g. a change in future lease payments arising
from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

The accounting policies applicable to the Group
as a lessor remain substantially unchanged from
the requirements under HKAS 17.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FNEEUBREEL (8)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(iv) fEBUHHEAZEEE (4)

(iv) Accounting as a lessor (Continued)

At 1 January 2019, the Group has leased out
its investment properties to various external of
tenants and also sublease the leased properties
to tenants. Except for the sublease contracts
as explained below, the adoption of HKFRS
16 does not have a significant impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements as the
Group previously elected to apply HKAS 40 to
account for all of its investment properties as at
31 December 2018. These investment properties
continue to be carried at fair value.

Under HKFRS 16, when the Group acts as an
intermediate lessor in a sublease arrangement,
the Group is required to classify the sublease
as a finance lease or an operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use assets arising from
the head lease, instead of by reference to the
underlying asset. The adoption of HKFRS 16
does not have a significant impact on the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements in this regard.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Transition

Same as disclosed in part (i) of this note,
the Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjust
the opening balance to recognise the right-of-
use assets at the amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the existing
lease contracts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position immediately
before 1 January 2019. There were no onerous
lease contracts that would have required a
significant adjustment to the right-of-use assets
at the date of initial adoption on 1 January 2019.
The comparative information is not restated and
continued to be reported under HKAS 17 and
the related interpretations as permitted by the
specific transition provisions of HKFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities
at the transition date of HKFRS 16 at 1 January
2019 for leases previously classified as operating
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4, and measured those lease liabilities at the
present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 and presented
separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Transition (Continued)

The Group has elected to recognise all the right-
of-use assets at 1 January 2019 for leases
previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17 as if HKFRS 16 had been applied since
the commencement date, but discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial adoption. For those applied the fair
value model in HKAS 40 “Investment Property”
(“HKAS 40") as if the right-of-use assets that
meet the definition of investment property in
HKAS 40. The carrying amount of right-of-use
assets were measured at the amount of the lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position immediately before 1 January
2019. All these right-of-use assets, the Group
has applied HKAS 36" Impairment of Assets”
at 1 January 2019 to assess if there was any
impairment as on that date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Transition (Continued)

The Group elected to present the right-of-use
assets separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position. This includes lease assets
that recognised previously and included in
property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments of approximately HKD747,000
and HKD514,667,000 respectively, being
derecognised at 1 January 2019. In addition,
newly recognised lease assets that meet the
definition of investment properties under HKAS
40 measured at fair value of approximately
HKD160,740,000 were recognised as part of
the investment properties in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 January
2019.

The Group also leased its motor vehicle which
was previously classified as a finance lease
under HKAS 17 of HKD651,000. As the Group
has elected to adopt the modified retrospective
approach over the adoption of HKFRS 16, for
this finance lease under HKAS 17, the right-of-
use asset and corresponding lease liability at 1
January 2019 was the carrying amount of the
lease asset and leas liability under HKAS 17
immediately before that date. For this lease, the
Group has accounted for the right-of-use asset
and the lease liability applying HKFRS 16 from 1
January 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Transition (Continued)

The Group has applied the following practical
expedients: (i) applied a single discount rate
to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics; (ii) applied the exemption of
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with term that will end within
12 months of the date of initial adoption (1
January 2019) and accounted for those leases
as short-term leases; (iii) exclude the initial direct
costs from the measurement of the right-of-use
asset at 1 January 2019; (iv) used hindsight
in determining the lease terms if the contracts
contain options to extend or terminate the leases;
and (v) relied on its assessments of whether
lease were onerous by applying HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” immediately before 1 January 2019 as
an alternative to perform an impairment review.

In addition, the Group has also applied the
practical expedients such that: (i) HKFRS 16 is
applied to all of the Group’s lease contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease” and
(i) not to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
not previously identified as containing a lease
under HKAS 17 and HK (IFRIC)-Int 4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Transition (Continued)

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the
Group, as a lessee, is required to recognise
interest expenses accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation
of the right-of-use asset, instead of the previously
policy of recognising the rental expenses
incurred under the operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. The result in
a positive impact on the reported profit from
operations in the Group's consolidated statement
of profit or loss, as compared to the results if
HKAS 17 had been applied during the year.

In the consolidated cash flow statements, the
Group, as a lessee, is required to split rentals
paid under capitalised leases into their capital
element and interest element. These elements
are classified as financing cash outflows,
similar to how leases previously classified as
finance leases under HKAS 17 were treated,
rather than as operating cash outflows, as was
the case for operating leases under HKAS 17.
Although total cash flows are unaffected, the
adoption of HKFRS 16 results in a significant
change in presentation of cash flows within the
consolidated statement of cash flow.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

2. FPNEENBREED (F)

(CONTINUED)
(v)  Transition (Continued) (v) #BE(E)
Impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 BEREBYEIHREEAELIS
idio) 44
The following table summarised the impact TR BEEEEMERE
of transition to HKFRS 16 on the Group's AR 1655 4 A & B # £2018
consolidated statement of financial position as of F12A318 Z#H 20191 A1
31 December 2018 to that of 1 January 2019. AMERE SRR E -
The information presented for 2018 has not been E|EYIF201SFEFME R -
restated.
HKD’000
FET
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets fFRAEEESEN 521,306
Increase in investment properties =L/ ESE DIl 160,740
Decrease in property, plant and equipment Y R E MR L (747)
Decrease in prepaid lease payments FEREERTIERD (514,667)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 K& H b e R OB (46)
Increase in total assets BEEEN 166,586
Liabilities Bf&
Increase in lease liabilities HEBEEM 185,468
Decrease in finance lease payables &1 Be & & SRR A (651)
Decrease in trade and other payables 2 5 N H M JE T ER FOR (18,231)
Increase in total liabilities e EEN 166,586
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. EWEEMBHREEL (&)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)
(v)  Transition (Continued) () BiE(E)
Impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 BEREEYEHREEAZELS
(Continued) W ZE ()
The following reconciliation explains how the VAR ¥ BR B8 1t ;32018412 A31
operating lease commitments disclosed applying AERKEREESFTEAE
HKAS 17 at the end of 31 December 2018 could 7R BB L HEREEAR
be reconciled to the lease liabilities at the date EEM2019F1A1H LA B
of initial adoption of HKFRS 16 recognised in BARAKRFERRNE XIRANE
the Group's consolidated statement of financial 75 B T R 22 B 22 1655 B BR ey
position as at 1 January 2019: HEARNBHRER:
HKD'000
FHET
Operating lease commitments as of HZE2018F12A318 2
31 December 2018 KT B AR 382,834
Weighted average lessee’s incremental MR20191A18 Z hitEF5
borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019 ERGIES 6.85%
Discounted operating lease commitments R2019F1A1H 2 B 8hIR
as at 1 January 2019 B TE B AE 185,859
Less: WA
Operating lease commitments relating B B #2019 12 A31H
to short-term leases for which lease ZHIERZEHREER
terms end within 31 December 2019 and REBEBEEHERE
leases of low-value assets 40 T B (1,042)
Add: 4y -
Finance lease payables recognised HZE2018F12A318 R
as of 31 December 2018 REHE RN IE 651
Total lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 M2019F1H1H 2
HERERR 185,468
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RNEEMBHREED (H)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)
(v)  Transition (Continued) (v) #BE(E)
Impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 BEREBYEIHREEAELIS
(Continued) bidiol 2 2€-)
The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use AEE 2019941818 &2019
assets and lease liabilities upon the transition of FI2AABEZR BV HEH
HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 and 31 December EEAFISRZ2EAEEER
2019, and the movements the year then ended HEaBEZEAENNERZ
are as follows: RIEE2EEBFRAT
Right-of-use assets
EREEE
Prepaid Property,
lease plant and Lease
payments Buildings equipment Total liabilities
BErEE ERN T
A ¥ RiRE @t HEERE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHT FHT FHT THT THT
As at 1 January 2019 #2019F1A1R 514,667 5,892 747 521,306 185,468
Additions NE - 1,614 - 1,614 1,614
Depreciation nE (14,112) (3,843) (155) (18,110) -
Interest expenses FIBFX - - - - 12,762
Repayments BR - - - - (11,516)
Exchange realignment i 5 E3 (9,228) (67) - (9,295) (3,429)
As at 31 December 2019 20196124311 491,327 3,596 592 495515 184,899

The Group recognised rental expenses for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets of
approximately HKD23,491,000 for the financial
year ended 31 December 2019.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(CONTINUED)

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group's accounting policies and business
operations, have been issued, but are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group to
prepare the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to Definition of Material’
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?
Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020
2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments continue to be permitted.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
Material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation
of “material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework, and
incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into
the definition.

2.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. FNEEUBREEL (8)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify that a business must include,
as a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs, together with providing extensive guidance on
what is meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of replacing
any missing inputs or processes and continuing to
produce outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of
“outputs” and a “business” to focus on returns from
selling goods and services to customers, rather than on
cost reductions. An optional concentration test has also
been added that permits a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. EWEEMBHREEL (&)
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or BERUBREERFBIORREEE
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its BRFE287ERIEFT X — REZEL R
Associate or Joint Venture BrEGLELEZHNEEL £
B’A
The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses ZEBIABEFERBREBRE D
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes LEEPERESITIAEBER BT
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the WRZWGEHEBIEE - EXHP R
transaction involves a business, the gain or loss is —IBEGK - BIARR D B SUE
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction BeoRzZ BRGHENTEK—IBE
involves assets that do not constitute a business the BeEBER AIEERTHERES
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the NG & 2 e S 1D 2 s R RN
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or e ETIE -
associate.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment AEBR FHEZET T REERTE
of what the potential impact of these new and VBB 15 5 2RI TR HARO R 2R & R R AR
amended HKFRSs is expected to be in the period of HETREEEANTE MARGES
initial adoption in the future, and the directors of the ([BF)) WARZEE BT EHMEE
Company (the “Directors”) are not yet in a position to AR B g YRS EEEFEERITBR
assess whether these HKFRSs will have a significant MORERES) T NEEERTEE
impact on how the Group’s results of operations and HEE i 2 E BB ISR E R R 2K
financial position are prepared and presented. These Alge e BHERE NV B ANRRE R
HKFRSs may result in changes in the future as to how E2VHANEEEH-

the results and financial position are prepared and
presented.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance which concern the preparation
of consolidated financial statements. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except
for certain investment properties, leasehold land
and buildings, and buildings and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the Group’s accounting policies set out
below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make critical accounting judgements, estimations
and assumptions based on historical experience and
various factors that are believed to be reasonable on
the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which involved key sources of estimation uncertainty
and significant risks of causing material adjustments to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities presented
in the Group's consolidated financial statements
when those areas have high degree of judgements or
complexity of estimations since the actual results may
differ from these judgements and estimations and not
readily apparent from other sources.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

As a result, the management review, on an ongoing
basis, to revise any changes of those critical accounting
judgements and estimations, and recognise in the
period when it is revised or in the period of the revision
and future periods as if the revision affects both. For
details of the critical accounting judgements and
estimations that have significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements are further discussed
in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides an
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the losses is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at fair
value on the acquisition date. The Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at fair value on the acquisition date and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests that represent
the present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value on the acquisition
date. Subsequent adjustments to the consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value on the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

99

4. EEESTER (8)

2019 [E &

LAl PNCIEE S R 7N
R-WBRADRMBEEE ME
ERERASE (ERKET)ETT
Z RN IEE B A FEEARRT
E-MBBRI B EERMEER
BAEZREEE AR FEER
B AEE SRR RS T R
NKBEEANAFEESENTE M
PTEE A r W e B 1R AU R 25 R
AREBARER R HEEEBZ QT
BESIZEEREBETAIHNEE
FFER L PIRT EREMNE A R A
BREDSNIFERER RIFFBH
BRELNZBERESEEE TR
et EmEEEaI R FER
it 8 PRE A MU R B R AT R
X BRIFZERATIRNETRATR
RELS EZBERT BEKATIR
-

7 U A B R E IS ARE ThiZ
Wi Az A EEER - HARYK
BRAHRRFEENTENHE (&R
B4 s B BREET 1218 A ) PR BT &
PR T e R A iR
REZHRBAR -HUMEEIER
BEEXBBENIAREERAREIRN
1B an T ER o



For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amounts
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

De-facto control exists in situations where the Company
has the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee without holding the majority of the
voting rights. In determining whether de-facto control
exists, the Company considers all relevant facts and
circumstances, including:

The size of the Company’s voting rights relative to
the size and dispersion of other parties who hold
voting rights;

Substantive potential voting rights held by the
Company and other parties who hold voting
rights;

Other contractual arrangements; and

Historic patterns in voting attendance

In the Company’'s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at costs less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable during the year.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
when the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the investee’s net asset
including goodwill.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policy decisions.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at costs and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group's interest in the associate are not recognised
unless the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates for those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor's share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying amount of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred, they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the investment
in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
the same way as other non-financial assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In the Company's statement of financial position,
interest in an associate is carried at cost less
impairment loss. The result of the associate is
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable during the year.

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where
there is a contractual arrangement that confers joint
control over the relevant activities of the arrangement
to the Group and at least one other party. Joint control
is assessed under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements
as either:

° Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to
only the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

Joint operations: where the Group has both rights

to assets and obligations for the liabilities of the
joint arrangement.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

the structure of the joint arrangement;

the legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

the contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint ventures in
the same manner as interest in an associate (i.e. using
the equity method — see Note 4(C) to the consolidated
financial statements).

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the investment in a joint venture. Where
there is an objective evidence that the investment in a
joint venture has been impaired, the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests in joint operations
by recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses in accordance with its contractually
conferred rights and obligations.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are stated at
cost less impairment losses, if any. The results of the
joint ventures are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable during
the year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. EEESTER (8)

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities exceed the aggregation of the fair value
of consideration paid, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in
the acquiree on the acquisition date, the excess is
recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date
immediately after the re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses,
if any. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units that are expected to be
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets. A cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount against its
recoverable amount (see Note 4(S) to the consolidated
financial statements), and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising from an acquisition during a
financial year, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount to each asset in the unit. However, the loss
allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual
asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less
cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value-in-use (if
determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not
reversed in subsequent period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value-added tax or other sales-related taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates, right
of return or allowances.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
services may be transferred over time or at a point
in time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance included in the
following criteria:

° provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment of performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at the contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For
contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i)  Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods directly to customers
is recognised at a point in time when the control
of goods have been passed to customers, which
is primarily upon the goods are delivered to and
have been accepted by customers. There is
generally one performance obligation for sales of
goods for all categories of customers. For goods
sold to wholesale customers, payment is normally
due from 30 to 60 days. For goods sold to retail
customers, payment is normally due immediately
when the customers purchase goods. For goods
sold to e-trading customers, payment is normally
due within 30 days.

107

ar ended 31 December 2019 2, £2019F 12831 H [ FE

4. FEERTBR (&)

EANTESRMERD  ZBREKD
REPREBB —FORmIREE

EEE M E AN R W iR YR
ERBREME EABRREIR %

BERERRREAEEREFEARL
RARBHNERSREXI ST - EAHF
BE@MERD  ZREND /AKH
RUBAMBHEE  AHOE THER
MR BERRERNEEEANEE
ENMESNNERX -REFNRES
BEAEERAREHOHERAS—FRHE
RMEHNME XBEREABE LM
BREEREIRTPERERE 25
TEHEAREMO T EIFLH

%%o

on i &

KEERHERRTELPHEK
SRAREHESERFNE
B (E2RXMEmAEPE
EEmi) ER -BmiEETHM
BEAEFPME —MAE A
BHEME -ETHETFE
i & - REIREE T F 30
HE60H -BRETTERTFHE
mins —REREPREBER
B R - RETETFHE
BEFEHEmms @ M HRAE%E
73308 -

(i)

2019 [E &



For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Sale of goods (Continued)

Invoice amounts are net of value-added or other
sales-related taxes. Sale contracts normally
provides no trade discounts, volume rebates,
rights of return, or allowances that may give rise
to variable consideration in the sale contracts.

Commission income from concessionaire sales
Commission income from concessionaire sales
is recognised over time when the underlying
services are provided to the relevant retail
stores located in the PRC outlet malls based
on certain commission rate made by the
concessionaire sales generated from the retails
stores in accordance with the agreed terms of
the contracts. No minimum guarantee income
is restricted those retail stores to generate
concessionaire sales during the contract.
Invoices are issued on a monthly basis and are
usually payable ranged from 30 to 60 days.

Royalty income

Royalty income represents licence fee for rights
to access the Group's intellectual property
right, not limited to design, manufacture,
package, sale, distribution and marketing of the
“PONY”and “SKINS” branded products in the
foreign licensed territories. Most of the licensing
agreements include minimum guarantee and
sales-based royalty payments. Management
considers that the intellectual property rights are
significantly affected by the Group's activities. As
a result, the minimum royalty guarantee element
is recognised over time rateably over the terms
of licence, any additional sales-based royalty
element in excess of the minimum guaranteed
element would be subject to the royalty exception
and recognised in the period accordingly when
the usage occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(iv) Brokerage commission

(v)

(vi)

commission income from securities brokerage
services, net of commission income waived for
certain customers, is recognised on execution
date of the trades at a point in time based on
agreed commission rates of the transaction
value of the trades executed in accordance with
the agreed terms and conditions stated in the
account opening agreements. Invoices are issued
on a monthly basis to customers and payment is
normally due within 30 days.

Underwriting and placing income

Service income from underwriting, sub-
underwritting and placing of listed securities
for fund raising activities of the capital market
which is recognised at a point in time in
accordance with the agreed terms and conditions
of the underwriting, sub-underwriting and
placing agreements or mandate letters, where
appropriate, once the relevant activities have
been completed. Invoice are issued when the
activities have been completed and payment is
normally due within 60 days.

Financial consultancy income

Revenue from the provisions of financial
consultancy services is recognised over time
as the customers simultaneously receive and
consume benefits when they request for any
consultancy services not limited to legal and
compliance, corporate finance or merger and
acquisition advisory service from the Group. The
services performed by the Group are normally
charged at a fixed monthly fee regardless of
any services performed. Invoices are issued on
a monthly basis to customers and payment is
normally due from 30 to 60 days.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Other services income

Services income is recognised over time
when the underlying services are rendered to
customers. Invoices are issued on a monthly
basis to customers and payment is normally due
from 30 to 60 days.

Rental income

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
relevant lease terms, except for the contingent
rental income which is recognised when it arises.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a timely basis, with reference to the amont
principal outstanding and calculated at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the net carrying amount of the asset on
initial recognition.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group's
right to receive the dividend is established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Owner-occupied leasehold land and buildings are
stated at revaluation amounts less accumulated
depreciation. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period. Increases in value arising on
revaluation are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of “properties revaluation reserve”. Decreases in
value arising on revaluation are first offset against
increases on earlier valuations in respect of the same
property and thereafter recognised in profit or loss. Any
subsequent increases are recognised in profit or loss
up to the amount previously charged and thereafter to
the properties revaluation reserve.

Upon disposal, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released from the properties revaluation reserve to
retained profits on the date of disposal of properties.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at

cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will
flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part of asset is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Other than construction in progress of the PRC outlet
mall, property, plant and equipment are depreciated
so as to write off their cost or revaluation amounts, net
of expected residual value, over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FESTHE(E)

(CONTINUED)

The below items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the
straight-line method, their annual depreciation rates
are as follows:
Leasehold land and buildings in Shorter of useful lives and
Hong Kong and the PRC
Buildings

the remaining lease term
Shorter of useful lives and

the remaining lease term
Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful lives and

the remaining lease term

Plant and machinery 9% - 45%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9% - 20%
Motor vehicles 16% - 20%
Vessel 10%

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its usage has changed
as evidenced by the end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item, at the date of transfer, is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
properties revaluation reserve. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits on
the date of sale or retirement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net sales proceed and the carrying
amount of the asset, which is recognised in profit or
loss on the date of disposal or determined as no future
economic benefit.

An item of property, plant and equipment is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if its
carrying amount is higher than the asset's estimated
recoverable amount. Details of the determination of
recoverable are set out in Note 4(S) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over
its expected useful life on the same basis as owned
assets, or where shorter, the relevant lease term.
Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January
2019, the asset is depreciated the finance lease asset
under the category of right-of-use asset from the
commencement date to the end of useful life of the
underlying asset if the lease transfers ownership of the
underlying asset to the lessee by the end of the lease
term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the
construction in progress is transferred to the
appropriate class of property, plant and equipment
when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect
of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Investment properties are properties held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that is
being constructed or development for future use as an
investment property.

When the Group holds property interests under an
operating lease to earn rental income, which has met
the definition of investment properties, the Group
should classify and account for the property interests
as an investment property using the fair value model.

115

4. FEERTBR (&)

2019 [E &

ERETRIIZRARBEEERR-
RABIEEEZEKNANRER R Z
KHHENMEZEER L - EEER
ANBETE P2 P B0 4 TR R BIGEAX
B ZERANTBERNE MAERZ
TRABREDE BERREBZE
AR - AR T RENR T R ERE
PR S A EHRIERITE -

REMEDEFBEARDNESHIEER
AIBEREAMERSE BALIFNA
FEBBETRAIFHE FIFEEX
HEERKBHERITERENTE-
BB TR ER R R A BEAS R A
BERAHREREREDE-

HAEBNGEEERAYERERIA
MBS WA BERAREMENTE
B AKEERBZEMEAEDZ DA
RAFEEARSKEDSE-



For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair
value models, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting date and
their fair value cannot be reliably determined at that
time. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of the investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

For any construction costs incurred for investment
properties under construction are capitalised as part of
the carrying amount of the investment properties under
construction, if any.

If an investment property becomes an item of property,
plant and equipment because its usage has changed
as evidenced by the commencement of owner-
occupation, the property’s deemed cost for subsequent
accounting is determined with reference to its fair value
at the date of change in use.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the investment property,
calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the property is
included in profit or loss for the period in which the
item is derecognised or deemed as no future economic
benefits will be derived.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contact conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all eases.

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy
choices exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise,
when: (i) leases which are short-term leases and/
or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-
value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019 (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (ii) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition
of an investment property or a class of property,
plant and equipment to which the Group applies the
revaluation model, the Group measures the right-of-
use assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-use at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses (see Note 4(S) to the consolidated financial
statements), and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability. For right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of an investment property, they are carried
at fair value and for right-of-use asset that meets the
definition of a leasehold land and buildings held for
own use, they are carried at fair value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019 (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation purpose
under HKAS 40 and are carried at fair value. The
Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings which
is held for own use under HKAS 16 and are carried at
fair value. Other than the above right-of-use assets, the
Group also has leased a number of properties under
tenancy agreements which the Group exercises it
judgements and determines that it is a separate class
of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-
use asset arising from the properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised
cost and interest expenses is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019 (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (ii) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the substance of fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset. When the lease liability is remeasured
in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to nil.

The Group presents the right-of-use assets that do not
meet the definition of investment property and lease
liabilities separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

For the accounting policies applied from 1 January
2019 (Continued)

Accounting as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying asset to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified
as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

The Group has leased out its investment property to
a number of tenants. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an expense on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
lease are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption criteria, then the Group classifies the sub-
lease as an operating lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

For the accounting policies applied until 31
December 2018

In the comparative period, leases are classified as
finance leases whenever the terms of the leases
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the relevant
lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense on the straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessee

Asset held under a finance lease is initially recognised
as asset at its fair value or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments
are analysed between capital and interest. The interest
element is charged to profit or loss over the period
of the lease and is calculated so that it represents a
constant proportion of the lease liability. The capital
element reduces the balance owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

For the accounting policies applied until 31
December 2018 (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

Investment properties

For the property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
was classified as an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as an investment
property, was accounted for as if held under a finance
lease (see Note 4(H) to the consolidated financial
statements).

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless
it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

For the accounting policies applied until 31
December 2018 (Continued)

Payments for leasehold land held for own use under
operating lease

To the extent that the allocation of the lease payments
for acquiring a long-term interest of lessee-occupied
property can be measured reliably, interest in leasehold
land arise from the payment is accounted for as an
operating lease and presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. It is stated at cost on the initial recognition
and is amortised over the relevant lease term, on a
straight-line basis, except for that is classified and
accounted for as an investment property under the fair
value model.

(i)  Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated impairment
losses. For the details of impairment assessment
are set out in Note 4(S) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Acquired intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets with finite useful lives

For the intangible assets with finite useful lives,
amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis
over their useful lives, and amortisation expense
recognised in profit or loss. The following
intangible assts with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date when they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as
follows.

Customer relationship 15 years
Both of the period and method of amortisation
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

For the intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives comprise of: (i) the intellectual property
right, not limited to the design, manufacture,
package, sale, distribution and marketing of the
“PONY” and “SKINS” branded products, which
are granted for licensing periods ranged from 7
to 15 years by the local government agencies
in the foreign licensed territories; (ii) the rights
to manufacture, market, distribute and sell of
the healthcare products under certain patents
and trademarks in Hong Kong, with a renewal
option when the licensed periods expired; and
(iii) trading rights granted by the Hong Kong
Exchange and Clearing Limited, which allows the
Group to trade securities on or through The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong
Futures Exchange Limited.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Acquired intangible assets (Continued)
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
(Continued)

According to the past experience, all of those
patents, trademarks and trading rights can be
renewed indefinitely at little or even no cost to the
Group, and are expected to generate net cash
inflows to the Group in an indefinite manner.
The Group intends to renew those patents,
trademarks and trading rights indefinitely
given by the evidence to support its ability and
intentions. As a result, they are regarded as
having indefinite useful lives.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.
If not, the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to definite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite useful lives as set
above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested
for impairment when there is an indication that
an asset may be impaired. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives and intangible assts
not yet available for use (if any) are tested for
impairment annually, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they may be impaired.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment by
comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts (see Note 4(S) to the
consolidated financial statements).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as revaluation
decrease to the extent of its revaluation surplus.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount;
however, the carrying amount should not be
increased above the lower of its recoverable
amount and the carrying amount that would have
resulted had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. All reversals are
recognised in the profit or loss immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions entered into by these
group entities in currencies other than the currency
of the primary economic environment in which they
operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded
at the exchange rate ruling when the transactions
occur. At the end of reporting period, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates ruling at that date. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates ruling on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary assets and liabilities, and on the retranslation
of monetary assets and liabilities, are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except
for exchange differences arising on a monetary
asset or liability that forms part of the Company's
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of “translation reserve” and will be
reclassified from translation reserve to profit or loss
on disposal date of the foreign operation. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
assets and liabilities carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period, except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
assets and liabilities in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. EEESTER (8)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, all assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period,
and income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the year, in which case, the exchange rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in translation reserve (attributed
to minority interests as appropriate). Exchange
differences recognised in profit or loss of the group
entities’ separate financial statements on the translation
of long-term monetary assets and liabilities forming part
of the Group'’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation, of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in translation reserve in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of
the Company that operation up to the date of disposal
are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit
or loss of such disposals. In addition, in relation to
a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not result
in the Group losing its control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests
and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposal of an associate
or a joint arrangement that does not result in the
Group losing a significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss up to the date
of disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the translation reserve.

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets until such assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from borrowing costs being capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

(i)  Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits)
including salaries, discretionary bonus,
paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which
the employees render the related service. The
related salaries, welfare and other expenses are
recognised in profit or loss when the employees
render the related service. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(ii)  Defined contribution retirement plans
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax expense for the year represents the sum of
tax currently payable and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

For both income tax currently payable and movements
in deferred tax, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and also take into account
when the Group intends to settle on a net basis and
they related to the same taxable entity and realise the
significant amounts of deferred tax arise from different
taxable entities with the intention to realise and settle
the current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis or
simultaneously.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

Current tax

The tax currently payable is expected based on the
taxable profits arise from ordinary activities for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable in respect
of prior year. Taxable profits differs from accounting
profits as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for financial reporting purposes because
it excludes income or expenses that are non-taxable
or non-deductible for tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes, and
unused tax losses accumulated in prior financial years.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate
to the expected manner in which the carrying amount
of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period. The measurement of deferred
tax should reflect the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of reporting period, to recover or settle that
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Except for goodwill and recognised assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same tax
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary differences or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to be reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss can be utilised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if those
temporary differences arise from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit, and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
controlled entities to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in measuring
deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted, the
deferred tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would apply on
sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such deduction
in reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Club debenture is carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment loss.

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all of the costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present locations
and conditions. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated cost of completion and the
estimated cost necessary to make the sale readily.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

Then inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expenses in the period
in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments included financial assets and
financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
financial instrument.

Financial assets (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss. For a trade receivable without a
significant financing component, it is initially measured
at the transaction price.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose
for which the asset was acquired. The Group’s
financial assets are classified into the categories
of financial assets as fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL") and amortised cost. All regular
purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised or derecognised on the trade date
basis, i.e. the date when the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. A regular way
purchases or sales is purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest, if applicable.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. The following are
the two measurement categories into which the
Group classifies its financial assets:
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost:

Financial assets at amortised cost including
trade and other receivables, amounts due
from joint ventures, amount due from an
associate, advances to customers in margin
financing, loans receivable, restricted bank
deposits and bank balances and cash. These
assets are non-derivative financial assets not
quoted in an active market that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows in a fixed or
determinable manner where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. They
arise principally through the provisions of goods
or services to customers and also incorporate
other categories of contractual monetary assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried
at amortised costs using the effective interest rate
method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on “impairment loss on
financial assets” as defined below).

The effective interest rate method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition. Interest income recognised
on an effective interest basis, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss in which the period of
derecognition incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”):

Financial assets at FTVPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FTVPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income,
debt instruments may be designated at FVTPL
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Equity investments:

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in
other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis.
Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair
value. Dividend income are recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
are not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value. Dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECL") on trade receivables
and other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, except the financial assets at FTVPL not
subject to the ECL assessment. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12-months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime
ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial
asset. The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The expected cash
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate. The
maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future
macroeconomic conditions. ECLs are measured
on either of the following bases: (i) 12-month
ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and (ii) lifetime
ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result
from all possible default events over the expected
lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on
historical credit loss experience, time value of
money and adjustments on the reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information specific
to the debtors and macroeconomic environment
where the debtors operate available to the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For other financial assets at amortised cost,
the ECLs are based on the 12-months ECLs.
However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial assets
since initial recognition, the loss allowances will
be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
current and forward-looking information
specific to the debtor and the macroeconomic
environment at the end of reporting period.

The following information has also taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

o failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

° an actual or expected significant
determination in a financial asset’s external
or internal credit rating (if available);
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

o an actual or expected significant
determination in the operating results of
the debtor; and

° existing or forecast changes in the
technological market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor's ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial assets,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis
or a collective basis. When the assessment is
performed on a collective basis, the financial
assets are grouped based shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and
credit risk ratings.

The Group rebutted the presumption of default
under ECL model mainly for trade and other
receivables, loans receivable, advances to
customers in margin financing, and amounts
due from joint ventures and an associate over
90 days past due based on the good repayment
records for those customers or counterparties
having a continuous business with the Group.
They are assessed collectively based on provision
matrix with reference to historical credit loss
experience, adjusted by current and forward-
looking factors. The Group considers a financial
asset to be credit-impaired when: (1) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising securities collateral, if
any is held; or (2) the financial asset is more than
180 days past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes
the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
if the financial asset is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
asset is determined to have low credit risk if: (i)
it has a low risk of default; (ii) the borrower has
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in near term; and (iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrowers to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

ECLs are re-measured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial asset’s credit risk
since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial assets
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowances) of the financial assets. For non-
credit-imparied financial assets, interest income
is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Write-off policy of financial assets

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is reasonable and supportable information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account of legal advice where
appropriate. Subsequent recoveries made of a
financial asset that was previously written off
are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred. Equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group classifies its financial liabilities at
initial recognition, depending on the purpose
for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, amount due to a related party,
bank borrowings, bank overdrafts and loan
from non-controlling interests are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period. The related interest expenses
is recognised in profit or loss on an effective
interest basis.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the financial liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEERTBR (&)

(iii) BAFHEREH

(iii)  Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments
at the time the guarantee is issued to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because of a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms
of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by
the Group and not designated as at FVTPL
is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract
at the higher of: (i) the amount of the loss
allowance, being the ECL provision measured
in accordance with the principles set out above;
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, the cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the principles
of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”.

The fair value of financial guarantee contract is
determined based on the present value of the
difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument
and the payments that would be required without
the guarantee, or the estimated amount that
would be payable to a third party for assuming
the obligation. Where guarantee in relation
to loans or other payables of associates are
provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as
part of the cost of the investment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(iv) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial assets expires or when
the financial assets has been transferred and
the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition
in accordance with HKFRS 9. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial assets and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss when the financial asset is derecognised.

Financial liabilities is derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
either discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liabilities derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss when the financial liability is
derecognised.

When the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid
is recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)  Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position, if and only if,
there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously at

the reporting date.

Where share options are awarded to directors, key
management personnel, employees and others
providing similar services, the fair value of the services
received is measured by reference to the fair value
of the options at the date of grant. Such fair value is
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period with
a corresponding increase in the share options reserve
within the equity. Non-market vesting conditions are
taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of each
reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of
the options granted. As long as all non-market vesting
conditions are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective
of whether the market vesting conditions are satisfied.
The cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to
achieve a market vesting condition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
transactions with parties other than directors, key
management personnel, employees and others are
measured at the fair value of the goods or services
received, except where the fair value cannot be
estimated reliably, in which case they are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the Group obtains the goods or
the counterparty renders the services. The fair value
of goods or services received is recognised in profit or
loss unless the goods or services qualify for recognition
as assets. A corresponding increase in equity is
recognised. For cash-settled share based payments,
a liability is recognised for the goods or services
acquired, measured initially at the fair value of the
liability. At the end of each reporting period until the
liability is settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair
value of the liability is re-measured, with any changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following non-financial
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

° property, plant and equipment under cost model;
Intangible assets;

goodwill;

right-of-use assets (applicable from 1 January
2019)

prepaid lease payments (applicable until 31
December 2018);

investments/interests in subsidiaries, an
associate and joint ventures; and

club debenture

If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash
generating unit (see Note 4(E) to the consolidated
financial statements), discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash
generating unit. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Except for goodwill, where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable to result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at the
date of acquisition are initially recognised at fair
value, provided that the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher
of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined as aforesaid. Contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at

the date of acquisition are disclosed as aforesaid.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants whose
primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred revenue in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets. Government grants
that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s

family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company's parent.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).
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(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(b)

4. FEEFTBR (&)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply: (Continued)

(vii)

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of

key management personnel of the entity (or

of a parent of the entity).

(viii)
of which it is a part,

The entity, or any member of a group
provides key

management personnel services to the

Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

dependents of that person or that person’s

spouse or domestic partner.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4. FEERTBR (&)

(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management and also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flow.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(i)

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group has developed criteria required
management’s significant judgements and
estimations to determine whether a property
qualifies as an investment property. According
to the accounting policies as set out in Notes
4(G) and 4(H) to the consolidated financial
statements, investment property is a property
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group’s management
considers whether a property generates cash
flows independently from the Group’s other
assets used and services provided, whereas
owner-occupied property generate cash flows
attributable not only to the property but also
to the Group’s other assets used and service
provided. If the Group provides any ancillary
services to the occupants of a property it
holds, the Group shall treat such a property as
investments property only if the services are
insignificant to the operation arrangements as a
whole.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(i)

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties (Continued)
Included in the carrying amounts of the
Group's right-of-use assets (2018: prepaid
lease payments) and buildings which was
classified as property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2019 were approximately
HKD491,326,000 and HKD1,345,473,000
(2018: HKD514,667,000 and HKD331,295,000)
related to the leasehold land and building
interests for the outlet malls where located
in Shenyang and Xiamen, the PRC. Based
on the operation models, the concessionaire
sales generated is largely dependable on the
performance of retail business of the retail
stores located in the PRC, which the Group
has the power to exercise significant operating
and financing decisions regarding to the daily
operations of the outlet malls. As a result, the
directors of the Company are in the opinion
that the outlet malls is in the nature of owner-
occupied properties in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policies as set out in Note
4(G) to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(ii)

(iii)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives and related depreciation
expenses for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment based on the historical experience
and the expected usage of property, plant and
equipment with similar nature and functions.
The Group's management takes into account
and will revise the depreciation expenses where
the useful lives changed from those previously
estimated, or whether it will further write-off or
write-down its carrying amount as if there is
any technological obsolescence, changes in the
market demand or service outputs has been
reduced significantly to abandon or sell the
assets.

Useful lives of intangible assets

According to the Group’s accounting policies
as set out in Note 4(J) to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s management
takes into account of historical experience and
market information whether the events and
circumstances continue to support for those
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

5. FEEFIETRMETTHBEAR
BIEZRIE ()

(iii) BEEEZCTREHFEH (&)

(iii)  Useful lives of intangible assets (Continued)

For the intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives comprise of: (i) the intellectual property
right, not limited to design, manufacture,
package, sale, distribution and marketing of the
“PONY” and “SKINS” branded products, with
licensing periods from 7 to 15 years (2018: 7
to 15 years) granted by the local government
agencies in the foreign licensed territories; (ii) the
rights to manufacture, market, distribute and sell
of the healthcare products under certain patents
and trademarks in Hong Kong, with a renewal
option when the licensed periods expired; and
(iii) trading rights granted by the Hong Kong
Exchange and Clearing Limited, which allows the
Group to trade securities on or through The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and The Hong
Kong Futures Exchange Limited.

According to the past experience, all of those
patents, trademarks and trading rights can be
renewed indefinitely at little or even no cost to the
Group, and are expected to generate net cash
inflows to the Group in an indefinite manner.
The Group intends to renew those patents,
trademarks and trading rights indefinitely
given by the evidence to support its ability and
intentions. As a result, they are regarded as
having indefinite useful lives.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

5. FEEFIETRMETTHBEAR
BIEZ KR ()

(iii) BEEEZCTREFFERY (&)

(iii)  Useful lives of intangible assets (Continued)

For both “PONY” and “SKINS” trademarks
acquired through business combinations, the
Group’s management has also considered the
fact that the Group is expected to hold and
support both trademarks for an indefinite period
in terms of spending a relatively significant
amount on consumers’ marketing and
promotional support since both trademarks are
well-known and accumulated public awareness
throughout their creations over many years and
considered to provide considerable and stable
economic benefits to the Group. Given that the
Group has demonstrated its financial ability to
protect the legal rights in the absence of any
regulatory, economic or competitive factors that
could truncate the useful lives assessments.

However, the directors of the Company are
aware that any changes of strategic decision,
not limited to withdrawal of marketing support
from these trademarks or weakening of
customers’ preferences may result changes in
the assessments of useful lives from indefinite
to finite. When an intangible asset is defined
as having a definite life, annual amortisation
expenses will be recognised that would reduce
both operating profits and the carrying amounts
of intangible assets presented in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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5. FEEFIETRMETTHBEAR
BIEZRIE ()

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(iii) BEEEZCTREHFEH (&)

(iii)  Useful lives of intangible assets (Continued)

For those patents and trademarks of healthcare
products business and trading rights granted by
the Hong Kong Exchange and Clearing Limited,
the Group’s management expects the renewal
costs is little or even no cost to the Group and
expected it can generate net cash inflows to
the Group in an indefinite manner given by the
evidence to support its ability and intentions.

The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to determine
whether the indefinite useful life assessments
continue to be supportable. If not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to definite is accounted for prospectively from
the date of change and in accordance with the
Group'’s accounting policies as set out in Note
4(G) to the consolidated financial statements.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

5. FEEFIETRMETTHBEAR
BIEZ KR ()

(iv) Fif#RRMHE

(iv) Income and other taxes

The Group is subject to taxation exposures
mainly in Hong Kong, the PRC and foreign
tax jurisdictions. The Group’'s management
significant judgements and estimations is
required to determine an appropriate amount of
provisions for taxes and the timing of the related
payments. Significant extent of transactions and
calculations may exist for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises
provisions for taxes only to the extent for the
anticipated tax amounts based on prevailing
tax regulations and estimations of additional
taxes to be due. Where the final tax outcome
is different from the amounts initially recorded,
such differences will impact on the provisions for
taxes in the period in which such determination
is made.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(iv)

Income and other taxes (Continued)

Providing that the Group has recognised a
significant amount of deferred tax assets arise
from the unused tax losses to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax losses
can be utilised. The Group’'s management
significant judgements and estimations is
required to determine an appropriate amount
of deferred tax assets to be recognised based
on the likelihood of timing and level of future
taxable profits to be generated, together with the
consideration of future tax planning strategies in
accordance with the accounting policies as set
out in Note 4(N) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

)

Determination of control of subsidiaries, joint
control of joint arrangements and power to
exercise significant influence

The directors of the Company is required to
exercise significant judgements and estimations
to determine when the Group has control of
subsidiaries, joint control of joint arrangements
and power to exercise significant influence. This
require an assessment of the relevant activities
and when the decision in relation to these
activities are under the control of the Group,
require unanimous consent under the joint
arrangements or exercise significant influence in
an investment of an entity.

In determining the classification of a joint
arrangement between a joint venture and a joint
operation, evaluations of rights and obligations
arising from such joint arrangement is required.
Where the Group holds less than 20% of voting
rights in an investment of an entity but the Group
has the power to exercise significant influence,
such investment of an entity is treated as an
associate. Alternatively, when the Group holds
over 20% of voting rights (but not over 50%) and
the Group does not have the power to exercise
significant influence, such investment of an
entity is classified as a financial instrument in
accordance with the requirement of HKFRS 9.
Differing conclusions around these judgements
and estimations may materially affect how these
investments presented in the consolidated
financial statements, either in a full consolidation
method, an equity method or a proportionate
consolidation method.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

5. FEEFIETRMETTHBEAR
BIEZRIE ()

i) EBEEZIFEER

(vi) Determination of functional currency

The Group measures foreign currency
transactions in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries.
In determining the functional currencies of
the group entities, judgement is required to
determine the currency that mainly influences
sales prices for goods or services and of the
country whose competitive forces and regulations
mainly determines the sales prices of its goods or
services. The functional currencies of the group
entities are determined based on management’s
assessment of the economic environment in
which the entities operate and the entities’
process of determining sales prices.

(vii) Acquisition of subsidiaries

The Group determines whether an acquisition
of subsidiaries defined as an acquisition of
business in accordance with HKFRS 3 “Business
Combination” (“HKFRS 3”) through business
combination or as an acquisition of assets.
The Group’s management require to exercise
significant judgements and consider the nature
and substance of the acquired subsidiaries to
determine whether it is a business under the
requirement of HKFRS 3. In case the acquisition
of subsidiaries is not a business, it shall be
classified as an acquisition of assets.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in the

consolidated financial statements, other key sources

of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of

resulting a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities presented in the Group’s

consolidated financial statements within the next

financial year as follows:

(i)

Impairment of interests in joint ventures

The Group determines whether interests in joint
ventures has any impairment indicators with
reference to the requirements under HKFRS 11
“Joint Arrangements” and HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” and involves management’s significant
judgements and estimations. In order to
assess the impairment indicators, the Group's
management estimates the recoverable amounts
of the interests, being the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use. The value-in-
use of the underlying business of the interests is
determined based on the share of present values
of future estimated cash flows to be generated
from the underlying business and proceeds to
be received upon the ultimate disposal of the
interests, discounted by suitable discount rates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(i)

Impairment of interests in joint ventures
(Continued)

Among the cash flow projections, management’s
significant judgements and estimations is
required such as long-term growth rates,
discount rates and fair value of the interests upon
the ultimate disposal is required to be taken
into account. Independent qualified professional
valuers may be required when it involves fair
value estimations of the interests and value-in-
use calculations, where appropriate. Where the
actual cash flows are less than the expected
cash flows projections, impairment loss may
arise in the profit or loss to the extent when the
recoverable amounts exceed the carrying amount
of the interests in joint ventures.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(ii)

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible
assets has suffered any impairment required
management’s significant judgements and
estimations. According to the accounting
policies as set out in Notes 4(E) and 4(J) to
the consolidated financial statements, the
recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
where allocated to both goodwill and intangible
assets have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require
the Group’s management significant judgements
and estimations on the expected future cash
flows arise from the cash-generating units or
assets, and determine suitable discount rates
in order to calculate the present values of those
cash flows with the assistance of independent
qualified professional valuers. The Group’s
management has also taken into account on the
past performance and expectations of market
development by identifying any specific risks is
relevant to the businesses when determining
appropriate growth rates and discount rates in
the underlying cash flow forecasts, exit prices of
intangible assets, marketing costs to maintain
the intangible assets and various macroeconomic
factors affecting the goodwill and intangible
assets. These significant assumptions and
estimations reflect the management’s best
predictions but it involved inherent uncertainties,
which is outside the control by the management.
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5. FEEFIETRMETTHBEAR
BIEZRIE ()

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(iii)  Fair value measurement (i) 2 F(EEE

A number of assets and liabilities included in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements require
measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
utilises market observable inputs and data as far
as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value
measurements are categorised into different
levels based on how observable the inputs used
in the valuation technique utilised are (the “fair
value hierarchy”):

° Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect
inputs other than Level 1 inputs; and

° Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not
derived from market data)

The classification of an item into the above levels
of the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of the item.
Transfers of items between levels are recognised
in the period when they occur.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(iii)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(iv)

The Group measures a number of items at
fair value as follows at the end of the reporting
period:

. Leasehold land and buildings (Note 14);

o Buildings (Note 14)

. Investment properties (Note 15); and

° Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Note 26).

For more detailed information in relation to the
fair value measurement of the items above,
please refer to the applicable notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Provision for inventories

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of
inventories at the end of reporting date to
determine whether the inventories are carried
at lower of cost and net realisable value in
accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy set out in Note 4(P) to the consolidated
financial statements. Management estimates
the provisions for inventories based on ageing
analysis and estimated net realisable value, with
reference to historical experience and current
market situation on similar inventories. This
assessment involves management’s significant
judgements and estimations. When the actual
outcome in the future is different from the
original judgements and estimations. When the
actual outcome is the future is different from
the original judgements and estimations, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of
inventories and provision to be recognised or
reversed, which will affect the Group’s profit and
net asset value in which such judgements and
estimations has been changed.

172

5. FEFFIETRMETTHABER
HIEZRE (8)

(iii) 2 FEEE (4)
AEERBEHFUAFEE
HELTEA :

e MELHMEEF (W
14) :

o EF (FIFE14)

o WEWE (ME15): &

e  EATEIABEZNSRE
&E (M5E26) ©

AR LEdmE A FEEFED
E— BT FLREEMHR
RZBRAMEE -

(iv) HFE#E

REBRRE BB RIERE
FEZERRE UWEETHFERE
BRI S B IS5 3R R M E4(P)FT
A AR E B G BRI A K&
AISRFERER 2REEA
BR-BEB2RBELHR LA
FEMIETTR  RIERE DT
RETAIEBFEGAEER
o ZAHE S R ERERNEXRH
B R fdat - B AR ERA RS
RS HIE R AT R RS BREAE
BT EFENREERET
MR B MEE ERYEE
FAHIET R Gt BT B AL
5 ) & B EFE -

Annual Report 2019



For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

)

ECL assessment of financial assets at
amortised cost

The Group’s management exercise significant
judgements and estimations for measuring the
loss allowances of financial assets at amortised
cost by using the ECL models to calculate
the risks of default and ECL rates of debtors.
According to the Group's accounting policies as
set out in Note 4(Q) to the consolidated financial
statements, when the Group’s management
measure the loss allowances and determines
whether there is any increase in credit risk of
a financial asset at amortised cost has been
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue costs or effort. This include both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
current and forward-looking information
specific to the debtor and the macroeconomic
environment at the end of reporting period.
If those financial assets at amortised cost is
pledged by collaterals, the Group’s management
takes into account of its market value when
performing the assessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

(v) ECL assessment of financial assets at

amortised cost (Continued)

In order to determine the most appropriate ECL
models in estimating the loss allowances for
each category of financial assets at amortised
cost, the Group’s management identifies
appropriate key drivers of credit risks as well
as future movements of different economic
drivers and how these drivers affect each other
in the contractual period of financial assets at
amortised cost. Where the judgements and
estimations is different from the original, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of
financial assets at amortised cost and thus
the loss allowance in the period in which such
judgements and estimations is changed. The
Group regularly reassesses the ECL models
of financial assets at amortised cost in the
contractual period.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
to both directors and key management personnel, the Group
is broadly classified into six different operating segments
based on the categories of major products and services
provided in different geographical locations, with reference
to the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”. The
operating segments are identified by the directors and senior
management of the Company (together as “Chief Operating
Decision Maker”) to monitor the results separately among
the operating segments for the purpose of making decisions
on the resources allocation and performance assessment
of each unit. Financial information of segment revenue and
results classified by business segments and disaggregation of
revenue, segment assets, segment liabilities, other segment
information, geographical information and information about
major customers is regularly provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker to serve the above purpose.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

A summary of the Group's reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 is as follows:

- Retailing and sourcing: (i) retailing and provisions
of sourcing services for branded apparel, swimwear
and accessories in the PRC region; and (i) sourcing,
manufacturing and trading of healthcare products in
Hong Kong;

- Branding: development and management of “PONY”
and the newly acquired “SKINS” trademarks to derive
revenue from sale of goods and royalty income in a
worldwide basis;

- Property investment and holding: rental income from
investment properties in Hong Kong and the PRC;

- Outlet malls: commission income from concessionaire
sales by managing and operating outlet malls in the
PRC;

- Financial services: service income or interest income
from the provisions of securities brokerage, margin
financing, money lending, underwriting and placing of
listed securities and financial consultancy services in
Hong Kong; and

- Duty-free: sale of goods in Taiwan
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & M #& R F i

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #; 2019412831 H [t F &

m— ]y -~ o] ==
6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HEDHEH (HF)
(CONTINUED)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s reportable AT A MG D25 2 AEBE & H
segment revenue and results of different operating BN EE DI
segments as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HF2019512A31HILLEE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty-free  Consolidated
MERER
TEARE m bR E RENE BERE SRR RBER Fa
(Note)
(BaE)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FiET TET FET FiET TER FET
Revenue from external BINBE PRI
customers 210,746 17,867 65,342 54,441 40,548 - 388,944
Inter-segment revenue AEEBA 1,362 = 4,323 156 = = 5,841
Reportable segment revenue IR D HUA 212,108 17,867 69,665 54,597 40,548 = 394,785
Reportable segment AREF R/
profit/(loss) (B#8) 5,439 4,367 51,112 (42,636) 102,144 (64) 120,362
Reconciliations: HEE:
Interest income FEUA 4,656
Gain on write back of other Io] 7 EL A B A< BR R 0 M2
payables 17,503
Central administrative FRTBRAZ
expenses (55,548)
Share of results of joint FaBhEEE
ventures 5,315
Impairment loss on amount  FEM— R & (> ¥ FUEH
due from an associate REEE (11,631)
Profit before income tax BRETEHEZ AR
expense 80,657
Note: Kzt
The revenue from outlet malls B 4536419 BRI 47
segment is analysed as mF:
follows:
Gross revenue from R EHE BRI
concessionaire sales 514,698
Commission income from R EHEMGRE KA
concessionaire sales 54,441
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.
(CONTINUED)

LEFWEF ()

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F12A31H L FE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty-free  Consolidated
MERER
TEARE Lyedid S BENE B SEMRE RRES R
(Note)
(Ft3E)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TiEx FHT FiEn TiEx FHT T T
Revenue from external ERSIESSI0 N
customers 199,153 27,771 64,062 39,623 35,069 16,170 381,848
Inter-segment revenue AEBREMA 14,669 - 4,370 362 - - 19,401
Reportable segment revenue I 3R D HUMA 213,822 27,771 68,432 39,985 35,069 16,170 401,249
Reportable segment AEEDH (BE) /17
(loss)/profit (18,328) 6,165 248,689 (39,962) 4,081 (9,319) 191,326
Reconciliations: HR:
Interest income FlEMA 2,778
Fair value gain on B ER -GELE
re-measurement of equity BaOATEERE
in a joint venture 5,363
Central administrative FRATHR R
expenses (48,959)
Share of results of joint HRErERE
ventures 19,955
Share of result of an associate 5B & (b EEE (2,326)
Impairment loss on loan to ERT-HBECEN
an associate BEEE (3,670)
Impairment loss on amount M — & ¥ FIEM
due from an associate REFE (1,761)
Profit before income tax BRETEHEZ AR
expense 162,706
Note: Kzt
The revenue from outlet malls BL453R 78 AW A 74
segment is analysed as W
follows:
Gross revenue from I EEEERA
concessionaire sales 367,236
Commission income from R EHEMRGRE KA
concessionaire sales 39,483
FUEEARAT 177 2019FEHE
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EBEENIPEFE (E)
(CONTINUED)

The accounting policies across different operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies. Segment results is evaluated based on
different reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a
common measure of profit or loss incurred of each
operating segment, with the adjustments of profit/(loss)
before income tax expense. The adjusted profit/(loss)
before income tax expense of each operating segment
is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before income tax expense except for the exclusion
of corporate income and expenses, including interest
income, gain on write back of other payables, fair value
gain on re-measurement of equity in a joint venture,
central administrative expenses, share of results of
joint ventures and an associate, and impairment losses
on loan to an associate and amount due from an
associate.

In the following tables, reportable segment revenue
and results are disaggregated by primary geographical
markets, major products and services and timing
of revenue recognition. The tables also include
a reconciliation of the disaggregated revenue of
the Group’s operating segments, mainly into two
categories: (i) revenue from contracts with customers
within the scope of HKFRS 15; and (ii) revenue from
other sources not within the scope of HKFRS15.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Revenue from contracts with customers within the

6. HESHMEF ()

#H=E2019%12831HILEE

BEEUBHREERIB1SHEERNE

scope of HKFRS 15 E&#IEA
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty-fee  Consolidated
MERER
TEARE m R REME BAHRE SRR GBER &a
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FiET TET FET TiET TER FET
Primary geographical markets: *EWETIS:
The People’s Republic of FEAREMEA ([F
China (the “PRC") B]) 192,166 - - 54,441 - - 246,607
Hong Kong (Place of domicile) &% (REH) 18,580 29 - - 4,434 = 23,043
United Sates of America B - 6,526 - - - = 6,526
Other Asia countries (Note) HimMER (A7:E) - 7,716 - - = - 7,716
Others (Note) it (frit) - 3,596 - - - - 3,596
Total FeH 210,746 17,867 - 54,441 4,434 - 287,488
Major products and services : FEERRMRHE:
Sales of goods HEEM 209,497 4,990 = = = = 214,487
Commission income from R EEERGAESKA
concessionaire sales - - - 54,441 - - 54,441
Royalty income EFRA = 12,877 = = - = 12,877
Brokerage commission LEAEE - = - - 2,388 - 2,388
Underwriting and placing BEREERA
income - - - - 536 - 536
Financial consultancy income BRI A = = = = 1,510 = 1,510
Other services income HARRARA 1,249 = = = = = 1,249
Total @t 210,746 17,867 - 54,441 4,434 - 287,488
Timing of revenue recognition: FESRUT N\ ERR :
At point in time BRI 209,497 4,990 - - 2,924 - 217411
Transferred over time —BEERER 1,249 12,877 - 54,441 1,510 = 70,077
Total @t 210,746 17,867 - 54,441 4,434 - 287,488
musmARAT 179 2019FFERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #; 2019412831 H [t F &

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

Revenue from other sources not within the scope of

6. HESWMEF (&)

#XE2019¥12A31HILFE (&)

BB B HREERIE1SHHEENNE

HKFRS 15 FE&HA
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty-fee  Consolidated
MERER
FEARME o R R REYE BSRE SRRE RBER &8
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FET TET FHET FEL TET FHET
Primary geographical markets: *EHEIS:
The PRC FE - - 57,567 - - - 57,567
Hong Kong (Place of domicile) &7 (REH) - - 7,775 - 36,114 - 43,889
Total @t - - 65,342 - 36,114 - 101,456
Major products and services: FEERRMRHE:
Rental income HEWA - = 65,342 - = = 65,342
Interest income -L'ON - - - - 36,114 - 36,114
Total @t - - 65,342 - 36,114 - 101,456
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Revenue from contracts with customers within the
scope of HKFRS 15

6. HESHMEF ()

HZE2018F12A31B I EE

BEEMBRERRFE15GEERNE
FEHIKA

Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty-fee  Consolidated
MERER
TERRE R RENME RS MRS EHES e
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THT THT THT THT FTHT THT FTHT
Primary geographical markets: *EHETIH
The PRC HE 181,614 - - 39,623 - - 221,237
Taiwan A - - - - - 15,916 15,916
Hong Kong (Place of domicile) &3 (RE ) 17,539 - - - 10,288 254 28,081
United Sates of America ES - 6,192 - - - - 6,192
Other Asia countries (Note) HimMNER (47:E) - 16,716 - - - - 16,716
Others (Note) it (frit) - 4,863 - - - - 4,863
Total FeH 199,153 27,771 - 39,623 10,288 16,170 293,005
Major products and services: FEERRMRHE:
Sales of goods HEER 197,987 11,234 - - - 16,170 225,391
Commission income from R EEERGAES KA
concessionaire sales - - - 39,483 - - 39,483
Royalty income EVITON - 16,537 - - - - 16,537
Brokerage commission LeAe - - - - 4,262 - 4,262
Underwriting and placing BEREERA
income - - - - 3,898 - 3,898
Financial consultancy income B8 sKA - - - - 2,128 - 2128
Other services income H RS A 1,166 - - 140 - - 1,306
Total it 199,153 27,771 - 39,623 10,288 16,170 293,005
Timing of revenue recognition: FESRUT N\ ERR] :
At a point in time REBHMY 197,987 11,234 - - 8,160 16,170 233,551
Transferred over time —BEERER 1,166 16,537 - 39,623 2,128 - 59,454
Total @5t 199,153 27,771 - 39,623 10,288 16,170 293,005
MuEEARAS 181 2019FE#HE
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HERIEE (F)
(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued) HZE2018F12A31HIEFE (&)
Revenue from other sources not within the scope of BB BHREEFE]ISTHEEIKE
HKFRS 15 R KIFA
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty-fee  Consolidated
MERER
TERRE Yl BEME B AT S RRE PRER A

HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TR TAT TET TR TAT TAT TRT

Primary geographical markets: FEMENIS:

The PRC H - - 56,049 - - - 56,049
Hong Kong (Place of domicile) &7 (REH) - - 8,013 - 24,781 - 32,794
Total 85t - - 64,062 - 24,781 - 88,843
Major products and services: FEERRMRE:
Rental income HEWA - - 64,062 - - - 64,062
Interest income FIEKA - - - - 24,781 - 24781
Total 85t - - 64,062 - 24,781 - 88,843
Note: The geographical information for the revenue attributed to each Hiit: EREREBENNEHEKAS S
country is not available as the associated cost to capture such 27 FEER R EER AR E
information would be excessive BE o
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EBENIEFE (E)

(CONTINUED)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s reporting
segment assets of different operating segments:

INTREASETRZEDFZ250
A REDEEN DN :

2019 2018

HKD’000 HKD'000

FHET FTAT

Retailing and sourcing T EHEKE 106,214 132,565
Branding on hE HE & 197,917 150,062
Property investment and holding MERERTEYE 2,008,662 2,133,548
Outlet malls B AR AR 1,966,040 1,176,308
Financial services & R AR TS 593,695 443,603
Duty-fee BT — 10
Total segment assets DEEELE 4,872,528 4,036,096
Unallocated KRB 287,885 317,378
Consolidated total assets IREEERE 5,160,413 4,353,474

Similar to the purpose of reporting segment revenue
and results to the Chief Operating Decision Maker as
disclosed in Note 6(A) to the consolidated financial
statements, all of the Group’s assets are allocated
into different operating segments, excluding interests
in joint ventures, interest in an associate, deferred
tax assets, club debenture, amounts due from joint
ventures, amount due from an associate, restricted
bank deposits and bank balances and cash, which
are classified as corporate assets as these assets are
managed on a group basis by the management.
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HERIEE (F)
(CONTINUED)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s reportable UTABZAEBETREEDEBEYIH

segment liabilities of different operating segments: AmELENHLBEBEND:
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FET
Retailing and sourcing TEEKE 27,803 45,635
Branding o HE B 15,328 11,048
Property investment and holding YMERERFTEME 207,159 90,080
Outlet malls B B 225,723 63,970
Financial services & R AR 75 17,886 20,906
Duty-fee RIMER 45 263
Total segment liabilities HEBREHAE 493,944 231,902
Unallocated Aok 1,738,144 1,507,705
Consolidated total liabilities meEBaERE 2,232,088 1,739,607

Similar to the purpose of reporting segment revenue BLRA B SRR W a6(A) AT IR R M £
and results to the Chief Operating Decision Maker as BEEERRERENBRENED
disclosed in Note 6(A) to the consolidated financial LD BRIEN — 2 BREE A T RUIE R/l
statements, all of the Group’s liabilities are allocated BEHEEMNRE BITER BITE
into different operating segments, excluding amount T EN@MERE  EMANHE - REIE
due to a related party, finance lease payables, bank EREZER BEEREABRENS
borrowings, bank overdrafts, tax payable, loan from BB (GTARMBEMNERR) ALES
non-controlling interests, deferred tax liabilities and Ti?ﬁﬁéﬁzg—gﬁﬁﬁﬁ”*ﬁﬁiiﬁﬁ
dividend payable (included in other payables), which SN FTEBEIERE DEENE
are classified as corporate liabilities as these liabilities KR e

are managed on a group basis by the management.
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HWESEER (4F)
(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE2019%¥12A31HILEE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty-fee  Consolidated
MERER
TEERE R RAME BISHRE SRR RBER &a
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FiET TR THET FiET TR FHET TiET
Amounts included in the FAAGEDBES S
measures of segment BAERERMAE:
results, segment assets and
segment liabilities:
Capital expenditure (Note) BARRX (f1:F) 1,166 135 1,220 419,580 3 = 422,104
Depreciation of property, 0¥ BEREETE
plant and equipment 2,981 137 10,545 18,534 351 - 32,548
Depreciation of right-of-use ~ FREAENRE
assets 3,843 - 155 14,112 - - 18,110
Amortisation of intangible B EEEHR
assets 3,596 - - - - - 3,596
Gain on disposals of property,  HENE  HE L
plant and equipment FiEKE - - (40) (2) - - (42)
Write off of property, mE - BE RS EMER
plant and equipment 286 - 2 4 - - 292
Increase in fair value of REMENATEEEM
investment properties - - (44,217) - - - (44,217)
Fair value gain on financial BRATEBIAERED
assefs at fair value through SREEZATEE
profit or loss Wz - - - - (88,843) - (88,843)
Impairment loss on financial £ R AERIERRE
assets 2,068 - 455 - 500 - 3,023
Impairment loss on goodwill  EEREEE - - 6,100 - - = 6,100
Bad debts (reversed)/ 25 (BE),/BE 38
written off, net (396) - - 700 - - 304
Write off of obsolete inventories  FRETF & #BR 12 - - - = - 12
Provision of allowances for FEEERE
inventories 8,951 - - - - - 8,951
Penalty expenses BEGF - - - - 6,300 - 6,300
Interest income FBHA - - - = (36,114) = (36,114)
Interest expenses FIEHX 753 = 47,731 5,046 161 = 53,691
FmusmARAS 185 2019FERE
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equipment and interest expenses of bank borrowings and
directly attributable costs being capitalised to construction in
progress of the outlet mall located in Xiamen, the PRC, which
is classified as property, plant and equipment. During the
year, the construction in progress was reclassified to buildings
within the category of property, plant and equipment when the
construction work was completed.
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. HWESBER ()
(CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F12A31H I FE
Property
Retailing investment Financial
and sourcing Branding  and holding  Outlet malls services Duty-fee  Consolidated
MERER
TERRE Yl HEME REH SRR SHER A
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
THT FHT T THT FTHT THT TR
Amounts included in the AR BEE B
measures of segment BERBRERHTE:
results, segment assets
and segment liabilities:
Capital expenditure (Note) BARX (h12) 4,720 72 1,089 217,725 5 - 223611
Depreciation of property, mE- BEREETE
plant and equipment 3,255 330 9,712 18,975 404 2,075 34,751
Amortisation of prepaid lease ~ TEf1 T8 & FIB#
payments - - - 14,752 - - 14,752
Amortisation of intangible B EEEH
assets 3,596 - - - - - 3,596
Gain on disposals of HEF AR KE
subsidiaries - - (117,764) - - - (117,764)
Gain on disposal of a completed % B 2K EMENE
investment properties - - (31,660) - - - (31,660
(Gain)/loss on disposals HENE BEREE
of property, plant and (k3) /BB
equipment (248) - (180) - - 138 (290)
Written off of property, plant ¥ BB Kk BB
and equipment 716 11 98 5 - - 830
Increase in fair value of REMERTEEEM
investment properties - - (112,267) - - - (112,267)
Fair value loss on financial BRATEENABED
assets at fair value through SRHEEZATEE
profit or loss B8 - - - - 2,443 - 2,443
Impairment loss on financial £ B4 A ERIERE
assets 1,688 - 411 - 5,085 - 7,184
Bad debts written off ZREE 9 - 322 - - - 331
Written off of obsolete BRETEME
inventories 13 - - - - - 13
Provision/(reversal) of BFEELEE/ (BE)
allowances for inventories 1,464 - - - - (626) 838
Interest income FIEKA - - - - (24,781) - (24,781)
Interest expenses FIBAX 229 - 33,577 - 127 - 33,933
Note: Capital expenditure includes additions of property, plant and Hlit: ERABIYBENEDE BMELEER

RITERMEFAX REFRAKA (A
BREADBRYE BERRENT
BEPIRFRAEZETE) - RFEA K
EIET ERETRKEFIERME-
55 B 3% B R R B R T
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EBENIEFE (E)
(CONTINUED)

The Group’s revenue from external customers AEEBIINBEPIWAZEZB®
bl DB R EIERBEEERHZE

EMER D BENFHIFNT

by geographical locations based on the delivery
destinations and information about the Group’s non-
current assets by geographical locations are analysed

as follows:
Revenue from Non-current assets
external customers located in (Note)
BIMBEERIBA FREEEMED (M)
2019 2018 2019 2018
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TERT TAT FET TR
The PRC hE AR ANE 304,174 277,286 3,116,403 2,125711
Taiwan =) - 15,916 = -
Hong Kong (Place of domicile) BB (REH) 66,932 60,875 763,823 753,976
United States of America E3E] 6,526 6,192 - -
Other Asian countries EHMHER 7,716 16,716 = -
Others countries EBER 3,596 4,863 191,642 146,031
388,944 381,848 4,071,868 3,025,718
Notes: Ktz

FRBEET TNEENABLEZ#E NEE
AR s BERIARERRRHIRITER

Non-current assets located in different geographical locations,
excluding interests in joint ventures, interest in an associate, deferred
tax assets and restricted bank deposits.

H E20182019% 128318 I &
B 8BHEE—ILELNZZWA
EAREELZEREIO%BHINA L

No revenue from transactions with a single external
customer, in aggregate, representing 10% or more
of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2019.
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7. REVENUE

Revenue includes the net invoiced amounts of goods sold,
commission income from concessionaire sales, royalty
income, brokerage commission, underwriting and placing
income, financial consultancy income and other services
income, rental income and interest income. The amounts of

7. BXEHE
WABIED SR RN E ST
EFEASWA  FRRA  CLERE B
T BT U A - B R A TR L 4 PR A
WA~ TR U A R B AR 4 R R S
wowm B A KERIM BB T -

each significant categories of revenue recognised during the

year are as follows:

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#ET FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers FHMBIREENFELSH
within the scope of HKFRS 15: SEINEERSHIT
1PN

Sale of goods P miEE 214,487 225,391
Commission income from concessionaire sales 4 EFESHE S HES WA 54,441 39,483
Royalty income HHRHA 12,877 16,537
Brokerage commission R e 2,388 4,262
Underwriting and placing income B8 RELE WA 536 3,898
Financial consultancy income B 75 s SR A 1,510 2,128
Other services income H{th Bl 75 Uz A 1,249 1,306
287,488 293,005

Revenue from other sources not within EFHUEREEDNEL155%

the scope of HKFRS 15: EEIRAIUA -

Rental income GEE N 65,342 64,062
Interest income F B U A 36,114 24781
101,456 88,843
Total @t 388,944 381,848
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

FINANCE COSTS 8. BAEME
An analysis of the financial costs was as follows: BEERRADITEAT
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FHET
Interest expenses of bank borrowings RTEZHERY 62,171 41,046
Interest expenses of loan from IR ERE R
non-controlling interests EoRINSNE BT 213 229
Interest expenses of bank overdrafts RITBETMF SRS 161 127
Interest expenses of lease liabilities HEAaENHMER% 12,762 -
Others HAh - 63
75,307 41,465
Less: Interest expenses being capitalised (Note) & - # & AL FI B X
(Bizt) (21,616) (7,532)
53,691 33,933
Note: Interest expenses of bank borrowings of approximately Hiat - SRITESREF SR #/462,171,000/8 7T (2018

HKD62,171,000 (2018: HKD41,046,000) included a total amount
of approximately HKD21,616,000 (2018: HKD7,532,000) being
capitalised to construction in progress of the outlet mall located in
Xiamen, the PRC, which is classified as property, plant and equipment.
During the year, the construction in progress was reclassified to
buildings within the category of property, plant and equipment when
the construction work was completed. All of the interest expenses have
been capitalised for specific bank borrowings and no general bank
borrowings is related to support the capital expenditure of construction
work for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

9. INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) 9. Fie#HiiK#,  (BAX)
The amount of income tax credit/(expense) in the RABERANAEREND, (BAX) &8
consolidated statement of profit or loss represents: B EB I
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHEIT T T
Current tax AHEHIE
Hong Kong BB
— Profits Tax —MEH
— Provision for the year —RFEEE (710) (1,071)
The PRC and other jurisdictions PR E AR AR
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —H B EFTISH
— Provision for the year —ARFEEE (2,590) (23,561)
— Over provision in respect of prior years — AT EBREEE - 80
— Foreign tax N IR
— Provision for the year —ARFEEE (459) (686)
(3,759) (25,238)
Deferred tax (Note 29) IEERIE (BifEE29)
Hong Kong and the PRC EaNH
— Profits Tax and PRC Enterprise Income Tax —FEHR LR EMEH
— Reversal/(provision) for the year —KREFEE S (BE) 5,007 (24,796)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisBiaEsn, (B 1,248 (50,034)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)
(CONTINUED)

The provisions for Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated
by applying the statutory tax rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%)
on the basis of the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong for both years. According to the definition of
“connected entity” under the Two-tiered Profits Tax Regime,
the Group has elected one of its subsidiaries to apply the
two-tiered tax rates to calculate its provisions for Hong Kong
Profits Tax based on its estimated assessable profits for both
years in the following manner.

For this elected subsidiary, the first HKD2,000,000 of the
estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong was taxed
at 8.25%, and the remaining estimated assessable profits
was taxed at 16.5%. The provisions for Hong Kong Profits
Tax on the elected subsidiary was calculated on the same
basis for both years.

All of the group companies operating in the PRC were
subject to the statutory tax rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on
the basis of the estimated assessable profits arising in the
PRC for both years, except for a subsidiary incorporated in
Hong Kong engaged in property investment business in the
PRC, which is subject to the withholding tax rate of 10%
(2018: 10%) on its gross rental income, net of value-added
tax, earned in the PRC for both years, based on the existing
legislation, interpretation and practices in the PRC.

PR, (FAX) (4)

BEENEHBHERREAMEFERRE
BEENGEFERE IR AT E16.5%
(2018% : 16.5% ) 5T E1FH o {RIEFR R HIF)
SHHEET [HEERINER A58
EiRBHETA— KB A R ERMAR
B BEEAMEFENGTERTR
FHR T AR EEBBEFEH -

RZWETHMBARIM S L5 ER
74 34 1 #9 2,000,000 TT 2 $428.25% 1 &
RIE - ek T AT FOE I B3216.5%5
BRIE - ZWEETNHBRARNEERE
BB ERMEFE IR AR EETE -

REFEAPREENMASEEARZAR
£ B EE A o 1 5 AR 0 B R e B R
25% (20184 : 25% ) et E B 1A - M — AR
EREMAR T NP ENEMEREER
BB B A BIRRSN - RIZ B RRITH BB E
RRnERRIES  ZMBAREARMEER
AR B AT R ER RO TR I A AR BB IR T HIFTAS
Fi A £10% (20184 1 10% ) st E &1\ (31
BRIZERT) o

191 2019FE#HE
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INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE)
(CONTINUED)

Up to date, the above subsidiary engaged in property
investment business in the PRC has not yet filed any tax
returns for reporting its PRC Enterprise Income Tax to the
PRC tax authority in respect of its rental income earned in
the PRC. The PRC tax authority has a right to levy penalty for
any late filing of tax returns. The amount of such potential
penalty cannot be reliably estimated as the range of which
is wide. Since the financial year of 2016, for all new signed
tenancy agreements, a new clause has been added in the
agreements to require tenants to pay the PRC Enterprise
Income Tax on behalf of the Group. According to the
management experience for the above measures adopted,
the amount of such potential penalty, will not be material to
the Group's consolidated financial statements. In addition,
pursuant to the signed sales and purchase agreement in
respect of the acquisition of that subsidiary in the financial
year of 2014, both vendor and its guarantor have undertaken
to indemnify the Group for any tax liability arising from the
above late filing of tax returns prior to the completion date of
the acquisition.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions were calculated by
applying the statutory tax rates in the relevant jurisdictions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

INCOME TAX CREDIT/(EXPENSE) 9. Fifd#iikin, (F%Z) (&)
(CONTINUED)

The amount of income tax credit/(expense) for the year can FEMBHEN, (FAX)REJHREEE
be reconciled to the profit before income tax expense in mERPBRATER I H AR RS BRAOT

consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows:

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
T FHETT
Profit before income tax expense B PSR 2 AT A 80,657 162,706
Tax expense calculated at statutory tax rate HOEEMEFE 2 RB (13,143) (27,216)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TEMRHIENRSZ 2
tax purposes Mg & (14,886) (11,510)
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for EARMHBA R E
tax purposes 35,226 67,176
Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures heEErEEE I NETE 877 3,293
Tax effect of share of result of an associate HEEDEEB BB E - (384)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FERMIGEB MG E (17,718) (88,543)
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERATHREREE 2
difference not recognised M E 318 902
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BRAERERANBEE
previously not recognised Mg 2 4,834 3,166
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries RE AL FLERER LR
operating in other jurisdictions WEB AR TR E & 5,740 3,002
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEBERE - 80
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigfiisdn, () 1,248 (50,034)
In addition to the amount charged to profit or loss, deferred REEaiENSRIN EHEGRSE
tax liability relating to the surplus arising on revaluation HETWEREBFNEEHEEGD
of properties of approximately HKD111,346,000 (2018: 111,346,000/ 7T (20184 : 5,328,000/&
HKD5,328,000) has been charged directly to other T EEERFRNBEHEMEEREF MR
comprehensive income during the year as disclosed in Note A (RERE MR M 5T 298 58 ) o

29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

10. EEi@mFI

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
THT FHET
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HE B A F R = 117,764
Gain on disposals of a completed HEBEEKREME LR
investment property - 31,660
Gain on disposals of property, LEME -BER
plant and equipment, net R F S 42 290
Fair value gain on re-measurement of EFFEX A8
equity in a joint venture EENAFEEKE = 5,363
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair ~ #Z A FEESIAIBZER
value through profit or loss TREEZ AT EBERZE 88,843 -
Dividend income from financial assets at & B &Rt EER B U A
fair value through profit or loss (A AFEEERANE
L EE) 40 38
Foreign exchange gains, net HNESTE W5 R R 1,495 -
Interest income F B U A 4,656 2,778
Government grant (Note) BATH B (H2E) 2,003 2,030
Gain on write back of other payables [5] 43 EL b B 1 BR SRR W 17,503 -
Reimbursement income from operation of % & B4 K ATE & A
outlet malls 8,970 3,892
Others HAf 8,870 4,743
132,422 168,558

Note: The Group has received government grants from the relevant
PRC local government authorities for supporting the Group’s
retailing and sourcing business in the PRC. There was no
unfulfilled condition to receive such government grants for both

years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & & M #E#R R M sE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED) 10. F£E=F (4F)

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
T FHETT
Bad debts written off R AR 304 331
Impairment loss on financial assets S REEREEIE 3,023 7,184

Impairment loss on loan to an associate BT — B & D ER
WEEE - 3,670

Impairment loss on amount due from an  fEUX —REEE & M ERIER

associate B EE 11,631 1,761
Impairment loss on goodwill R EEE 6,100 -
Write off of property, plant and equipment 1% - B 5= & 3% & i BF 292 830

Fair value loss on financial assets at fair ~ AR FEEH AEZEH
value through profit or loss TREENAFEEESE - 2,443
Penalty expenses SR Z 6,300 -
Others HAf 1,018 1,443
28,668 17,662
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED) 10. E£E&F (4)
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
T FHETT
After charging =Ei]
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11(A)) EEHM(WELIA)) 6,859 6,967
Employees’ costs (excluding directors’ EERE (TERIEESRHES)
emoluments) comprise: BiE:
— Salaries —¥% 59,730 60,925
— Welfare and other expenses — & S B At S 3,586 4,575
— Contributions to defined contribution — AT R
retirement plans RIRETE 9,562 9,343
— Share-based payment expenses — AR HHREX
(Note 35) (H47#£35) - 328
79,737 82,138
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN & 2,030 2,000
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T80 & Z 0B #E 8 = 14,752
Amortisation of intangible assets EmILEEEH 3,596 3,596
Cost of inventories recognised R AR HFEKAR
as expenses 109,831 122,145
Depreciation of property, WE BELKREBITE
plant and equipment 32,548 34,751
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 18,110 -
Write off of obsolete inventories BREF SR 12 13
Provision of allowance for inventories GFEEREE 8,951 838
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses, net BN (W) BE - F5 (1,495) 2,971
Minimum and contingent lease payments 7 A] BUH AL & 18 B & (K
under non-cancellable operating leases K 8t SATH & FIALAE
previously classified as operating leases £ &B &5 R F 1758
under HKAS 17 DIEEZBEHRE - 45,826
Short-term and low-value leases expenses & Hi MK BEMRE X H 23,491 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & & B 7 $f R 5%
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019412A31H It F &

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (CONTINUED)

10. FE#EF (48)

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
T FHT
After crediting SEI PN
Gross rental income from investment HEMERS WAL
properties 65,342 64,062
Less: Direct operating expenses BRMEENEERELERS
relating to:
— Investment properties that —EXHESWA
generate rental income k=8 ES (14,769) (11,764)
— Investment properties that did not —WEELAHESWA
generate rental income ok =7 ES (13) (17)
50,560 52,281
Interest income from: FBEWAKE :
— Bank deposits —RITIE R 3,909 1,488
— Others —HAth 747 1,290
— Loans receivable and advances to - RERFEELBK
customers in margin financing KW E = 36,114 24,781
Increase in fair value of investment BEYENNFEEEN:
properties:
— Investment properties classified as —DHERERIELE
other than held for sale M E 44,217 29,105
— Investment properties classified as held —2 3B AFIEHE
for sale R E Y% - 83,162
44,217 112,267

HERERRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 M & XM sE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #; 2019412831 H [t F &

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' 11. EERESHHN
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments were EERTETHABHMETT
disclosed as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE2019%¥12A31HILEE
Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
BITES BIUFHTES
Lee
Cheng Chan Cheung Wah Chow
Tun Nei Kar Lee, Ming Shum Wang Kei Yu Chun
(Note a) Gary (Note b) Pui Kay Jackie Alexander Total
BER FREY
(Btata) FE (BitzEh) I ERE BT =]

HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FET FET FET FER TET FET

Directors’ fees: 20 - - - 160 170 170 500
Other emoluments: Hib &M :
Salaries, welfare and e RBHk
other benefits HipFls 2,400 1,980 1,440 = = = 5,820
Discretionary bonus (Note d) BB (Hd) 200 165 120 = - = 485
Contributions to defined RERFEARET
contribution retirement plans BE PazT 18 18 18 - = = 54
Total emoluments HilceE 2,618 2,163 1,578 160 170 170 6,859
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE2018F12A318 L F &
Executive Directors Independent Non-executive Directors
HITES BUFNTES
Lee
Chan Hong Kim Cheung Wah Chow
Cheng Kar Lee, Cheong Ming Shum Wang Kei Yu Chun
Tun Nei Gary (Note c) (Note b) Pui Kay Jackie Alexander Total
bak ]2
gER BREH (BizEe) TR IEE ELHE BFE T

HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TR TAT TR TR TR T TAT T

Directors’ fees: 2N - - - - 160 170 170 500
Other emoluments: Hi g
Salaries, welfare and e B REMFE

other benefits 2,382 1,962 442 1,158 - - - 5944
Discretionary bonus (Note d)  BBTEAT (#atd) 200 165 = 9 - - - 464
Contributions to defined REHFRAKEHFHE

contribution retirement plans ~ Z 43k 18 18 5 18 - - - 59
Total emoluments Mz aE 2,600 2,145 447 1,275 160 170 170 6,967
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

11. EERESEHM (&)

Notes:

(a) Mr. Cheng Tun Nei also act as Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer of the Company;

(b) Mr. Lee Cheung Ming was appointed as an executive director of

the Company effective on 1 January 2019;

(c) Mr. Hong Kim Cheong retired as an executive director of the

Company and did not offer himself for re-election on 8 June
2018; and

(d) The distribution amounts of discretionary bonus was

determined based on the individual's performance during
the year after the review and approval from the remuneration
committee of the Company.

No actual or accrued compensation was recognised
for any loss of office as a director of the Company in
connection with the management of affairs towards the
Group for both years.

No actual or accrued payment to any of the director of
the Company in respect of an inducement to accept
office as the director of the Company for both years.

Except for the contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans, no other retirement benefit was
paid or payable to and received or receivable by the
directors of the Company for the management of
affairs towards the Group. None of the directors of the
Company was waived for emoluments for both years.

Salaries, welfare and other expenses paid or payable
to the Executive Directors of the Company is general
emoluments in respect of their services rendered in
connection with the management of affairs towards the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES'’ 11. EERESEHIM (F)

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, one of the
Executive Directors of the Company retired and did not
offer himself for re-election and his outstanding share
options was lapsed accordingly on his retirement date,
and a new Executive Director was thereby appointed
effective on 1 January 2019.

Among the five individuals of the Group with the
highest emoluments, which included the Chief
Executive Officer and two directors (2018: the Chief
Executive Officer and one director) of the Company.
Their emoluments are disclosed in Note 11(A) to the
consolidated financial statements. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2018: three) individuals during the
year were disclosed as follows:

HE2018F12A31HIEFE » AAF]
HPf -2 TEFRELAREKRE
AR ARITEERENEREAR
B R— B ITEEN20195F
1A1BEZF-

AEEGRRHMNSEAL  BREERE
MITE M2RES (2018F : BEHTT
BERIBES) RENHHMHD N L
X e MMM 1 1(A) B 5E < H &R
2% (2018%F : 3% ) AL R EFE R F
Ban T

2019 2018

HKD’000 HKD’000

FET FET

Salaries, welfare and other expenses Ho wmAREMAX 2,873 4,415
Contributions to defined contribution RIRE R 2R

retirement plans 36 b4

2,909 4. 469
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

11. EERESEHM (&)

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

remaining two (2018: three) individuals with the

highest emoluments paid or payable during the year

were within the following bands:

FAENHENART

R e R

TRE (20185 : =& ) ATHIAFF

B T3 EE

2019 2018
No. of No. of
employees employees
EE A EEAH
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/ T2
1,500,000/ T 1 1
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001/ T &
2,000,000/ 7T 1 2
12. DIVIDENDS 12. g2
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET FHET
2018 final dividend of HKD0.012 FRBIRT2018H K% &
(2018: 2017 final dividend of HKDO0.005) B EiRAiz0.012/8 T
per ordinary share declared and paid (20184 : 2017 HAR IR B
& E3@A%0.005% 7T ) 35,690 14,810

No interim dividend was declared and paid to the Company’s

shareholders for both years. During the year ended

31 December 2019, the Company’s board of directors

recommends the payment of final dividend of HKDO.008
(2018: HKDO0.012) per ordinary share to the Company’s
shareholders of approximately HKD23,794,000 (2018:

HKD35,688,000).

S SN G EREE NN i ST
SR AR HRAR B o L £2019F 12831 H 1E
MRFE  E2EEERANRFREIEM
R B A% 3 8 §20.0087% 7T (20184F -
IR EAR0.012/7T) - #4948 H£823,794,000
77T (20184 : 35,688,000/ 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. Bix&E7

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share KRR EANEEERERANEERT KT
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the ERTHE
following data:

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFHIT FHE T
Earnings B
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the ~ ANR AR A JBIEEE 5%
Company 71,705 118,213
2019 2018
Number Number
of shares of shares
BEnEE SR 4=
'000 '000
T T A%
Number of shares BB
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ AN ESRERBFHE
for the purpose of calculating basic BN I 8
earnings per share 2,974,066 2,964,675
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BEHFLERZE
(Note): (K1at) -
— Share options —HE - 681
— Warrants — R = 4,854
Weighted average number of ordinary shares RUGTESRESAN 2 XL
for the purpose of calculating diluted AR ke S K
earnings per share 2,974,066 2,970,210
Earnings per share SEREH
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) SRREAREF GEM) 2.41 3.99
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) FRESERF) CEL) 2.41 3.98
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

Note:

After the Company’s share options were fully exercised or lapsed on 31
December 2018 and warrants was fully expired on 5 July 2019, there
was no outstanding share options and warrants as at 31 December
2019. The Company’'s warrants did not give rise to any potential
dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share presented for the period
from 1 January 2019 to 5 July 2019 (the “Period”) as the exercise
price of the Company’s warrants outstanding during the Period was
higher than the average market price of the Company’s shares.

The Company’s share options and warrants as at 31 December 2018
gave rise to potential dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share
presented for the year then ended as the exercise price of both of the
Company’s share options and warrants outstanding during the year
then ended was lower than the average market price of the Company’s
shares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #; 2019412831 H [t F &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

= M 153 R

14. Y% - B E X1 &

Leasehold land ~ Leasehold land Fumniture,
and buildings  and buildings Leasehold  Construction Plant and fixtures and Motor
in Hong Kong in the PRC Buildings  improvements in progress machinery equipment vehicles Vessel Total
REEN ReER
HELHR  HEIHER HENE HE.
| =3 | =3 | =3 3 ERBIE  BERKE RKERZHK RE e it
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TAL TAT FAEL FhL TAL TAT FAEL FAL TAL TAT
Cost or revaluation: BAGfEE
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1R 257,000 27400 339,806 98,587 2893 485 24,027 4,769 2,930 757,897
Additions HE - - 14,294 23,502 182,116 73 2,375 1,251 - 223611
Acquired through business B EHA GHIE
combination (Vote 49) (Hit49) - - - 537 - 1393 213 - - 2,143
Surplus arising on revaluation of Ef&NEE LIRS
properties 16,000 786 (5,111) - - - - - - 11,675
Disposals e - - - (7,097) - 9 (1,726) (1,734) - (10,566)
Write off M - - - (12,923) - - (4,29) (12) - (17,231)
Exchange realignment ERE5 - (1,406) (17,694) (4,661) (22) 171 (864) (127) - (24,603)
At 31 December 2018 M2018%12A318 273,000 26,780 331,295 97,945 184,987 2113 19729 4147 2,930 942,926
Representing: B2
At cost KA - - - 97,945 184,987 2113 19,729 4147 2,930 311,851
At revaluation - 2018 fHE-20185F 273,000 26,780 331,295 - - - - - - 631,075
273,000 26,780 331,295 97,945 184,987 2113 19729 4147 2930 942,926
At cost or revaluation: BAGhE:
At 31 December 2018 as 20185127318
originally presented MpE51 273,000 26,780 331,295 97,945 184,987 2113 19,729 4147 2,930 942,926
Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 BB AR HHRE
(Note 2()) ERIE16% (Hz22h) - - - - - - - (773) - (773)
Adjusted balance W01951A1R &8
at 1 January 2019 B 273,000 26,780 331,295 97,945 184,987 2113 19729 3374 2930 942,153
Additions RE - - 13147 1,710 401,425 58 4,063 1,701 - 422,104
Transfer from construction in -~ BEERIRNEEN
progress to buildings - - 583,072 - (583,072) - - - - -
Surplus arising on revaluation  BEEELHEH
of properties 9,000 - 423977 - - - - - - 432977
Disposals e - - - - - - - (241) - (241)
Write off i - - - (489) - - (267) - - (756)
Exchange realignment EXES - (492) (6,018) (1,696) (3,340) 1) (181) 43) - (11,771)
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12R318 282,000 26,288 1,345,473 97,470 - 2,170 23344 4791 2,930 1,784,466
Representing: EHEY:
At cost KA - - - 97470 - 2,170 23344 4,791 2930 130,705
At revaluation - 2019 fHE-2019F 282,000 26,288 1345473 - - - - - - 1,653,761
282,000 26,288 1,345,473 97,470 - 2,170 23344 4791 2,930 1,784,466
Accumulated depreciation: B4
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1A - - - 73972 - 407 19,744 3,107 755 97,985
Provided for the year FERE 7,058 1,220 9,768 13,620 - 145 1972 675 293 34,751
Acquired through business BB EHA HUEH
combination (Note 49) (H#49) - - - 504 - 1,125 140 - - 1,769
Write back on revaluation of ~ Bf5¥1E % BB
properties (7,058) (1,156) (9,261) = 3 - - - - (17,475)
Eliminated on disposals HERES - - - (6,791) - 9 (1,646) (1,506) - (9.952)
Eliminated on write off MEE = = - (12,479 - - (3910) (12) - (16,401)
Exchange realignment X &5 - (64) (507) (3977) - 7 (504) (88) - (5,133)

Symphony Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019412A31H It F &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. W3 BB R iE (8)

Leasehold land  Leasehold land Furniture,
and buildings  and buildings Leasehold  Construction Plant and fixtures and Motor
in Hong Kong in the PRC Buildings  improvements in progress machinery equipment vehicles Vessel Total
REEY RebEH
HELHE  AEIRE HENE [3C8
| &2 | 4 | &4 & ERIE  BERME  KERRG RE HE 4%
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FhL TAT FEL Th ThL TAT FhEL FhL THL TAT
At 31 December 2018 as 12018F12A318
originally presented MR35 - - - 64,849 - 1,675 15,796 2,176 1,048 85,544
Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 BRIRMBEIHHRE
(Note 2(A) SRIE165 (W24 - - - - - - - (26) - (26)
Adjusted balance at R019F1A1R %S
1 January 2019 BERE - - - 64,849 - 1,675 15,79 2,150 1,048 85,518
Provided for the year FERE 7303 1,167 11,097 9,685 - 182 2,100 721 293 32,548
Write back on revaluation of B %% B
properties (7,303) (1,149) (10,857) - - - - - - (19,309)
Eliminated on disposals HE R - - - - - - - (234) - (234)
Eliminated on write off WERE - - - (287) - - 1 - - (464)
Exchange realignment & 5 Z5 - (18) (240) (1,249) - ¢ (132) (29) - (1,670)
At 31 December 2019 20196127318 - - - 72,998 - 1,855 17,587 2,608 1,341 9,389
Net book value: FREF{E:
At 31 December 2019 12019F12A318 282,000 26,288 1,345473 24472 - 315 5757 2,183 1,589 1,688,077
At 31 December 2018 12018F12A318 273,000 26,780 331,29% 33,09 184,987 438 3933 1,971 1,882 857,382

During the year, the carrying amount of construction in
progress of approximately HKD583,072,000 related to the
outlet mall located in Xiamen, the PRC was reclassified

to buildings when the construction work was completed.

Additions of construction in progress of approximately
HKD401,425,000 (2018: HKD182,116,000) was related
to the interest expenses of bank borrowings and directly

attributable costs being capitalised during the year.

AEAR ERETIREABHFETKRE
iz 70 AP BB P9 RO B 2 HiT 49583,072,000
BTHNERTIRKRENDBER/ET - FE
#Y 1E 3 T 72 49401,425,0007% 7T (2018 :
182,116,000/ 7T ) & B AR F JE & A (L Y IR
TEFMEXHEERATRERAGEH-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the fair value
measurements of leasehold land and buildings and
buildings, where located in Hong Kong and Shanghai,
Shenyang and Xiamen, the PRC were carried out by
independent qualified professional valuers not connected
to the Group, namely Greater China Appraisal Limited,
Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited and #3IlH &
BRI EMEFGAR AR apart from the fair value
measurement of outlet mall building, where located in
Shenyang, the PRC was carried out by Prudential Surveyors
(Hong Kong) Limited. The valuation approach of the outlet
mall building located in Shenyang, the PRC was changed
from depreciated replacement cost approach to discount
of rental income approach due to more observable data is
available for adopting this valuations basis.

According to the result of fair value measurements, the
Group recognised a total surplus arising on revaluation
of properties of approximately HKD452,286,000 (2018:
HKD29,150,000) and the related deferred tax liability of
approximately HKD111,346,000 (2018: HKD5,328,000)
directly recognised to other comprehensive income during
the year. The significant increase of surplus arising on
revaluation of properties was mainly due to the completion of
construction work of outlet mall building located in Xiamen,
the PRC and improved value of other comparable properties
located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

14. W% M ERRiE (8)

R20184 K2019F12A31H * B R E B
UEFBEES - ESREFHEE MK
EBFEmME FENQAFEEFEDFIHAE
REETEBENBLSEREEGERM
BETERFRARAETHEBBRA A
MR TMEEZT L EMETEERA
BT BRI P BE 5 B) B 3 K AE
WAFEEFENHIRITEBBRAF
T o AL R BE S &) B A KAE R 1
BFEZHNEEERANEERAHSBA
ARIRE - RAARBEZ A B EBIEMH
KARMERELE.

REAFEESEEAR AEERFA
Ht2HRABEERYEELRELED
B8 R FE 452,286,000/ 7T (20184 :
29,150,000/ 7T) A K SHBE IE T 1R & &
#7111,346,0007% 7T (2018%F : 5,328,000/
TO) MEBHEENBRBARIEN T
AL AR B B P By BRAS AT KR T
VA R (52 72 25 78 B o (B 19 3t ) At AT E 04D
EHE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the fair value
measurements of leasehold land and buildings, where
located in Hong Kong and Shanghai, the PRC were adopted
direct comparison approach with reference to the current
market price of comparable sales evidence available in
the market nearby with significant adjustments for the
differences in the characteristics of the Group’s properties.
The fair value measurements of outlet mall buildings,
where located in Shenyang and Xiamen, the PRC were
both adopted discount of rental income approach (2018:
depreciated replacement cost approach for Shenyang outlet
mall building) with reference to rental yield and market unit
rent of comparable properties available for rental purposes
nearby.

The above fair value measurements of properties were based
on the highest and best use of both leasehold land and
buildings and buildings, which did not differ from their actual
usage for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Reconciliations of the opening and closing fair values for both
years are provided as follows:

14. W% M ERRiE (8)

MEFENFY R FRATHERERNAT

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFHIT FE T
Level 3 recurring fair value: BEREEHAFEE:
At 1 January MK1A1H 631,075 624,206
Additions NE 13,147 14,294
Transfer from construction in progress to HEEIREREZEF
buildings 583,072 -
Surplus arsing on revaluation of properties EHFFAEMEEBANYE
included in other comprehensive income EANAER 452,286 29,150
Depreciation provided for the year FEFERE (19,567) (18,046)
Exchange realignment ME 5 & 7] (6,252) (18,529)
At 31 December M12A31H 1,653,761 631,075

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, all of the fair values of
leasehold land and buildings and buildings of approximately
HKD1,653,761,000 (2018: HKD631,075,000) were
classified as level 3 recurring fair value measurements in
accordance with the definitions set out in Note 5(B)(iii) to
the consolidated financial statements. There was no transfer
between different levels of the fair value hierarchy for both
years as the key inputs used by the independent qualified
professional valuers were remained as unobservable and
subject to significant fair value adjustments before deriving
appropriate amounts of fair values of the properties.

20184 k2019 12H31H B &
FMEELHWEETFHNRFEELD
1,653,761,0007% 7t (20184 : 631,075,000
BT ) RIBAR & M 15 MR M RED(B)iN Y FE &
DEREF=ZBRELERTEEFE -ERX
E{ERM P2 A E K ABUB IR AT A
EERFHYENEERXFEEANZXEXN
NP EEFAEMRR RMEFERFE
1B AR R -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

14. 3% BB RRiE (8)

(CONTINUED)
Properties Valuation approach Notes Significant unobservable inputs Range of estimates
/ES &{E A& Mgt EXFOUHZ@HABE fhatEE
2019 2018
Hong Kong Direct comparison (i) (Discount)/premium on -15% to 15% -15% to 15%
approach characteristics of the properties
e BEILEE MERIES (37:8) 5B
Average market price of similar 22,479 18,195
properties (HKD/sq. feet)
HOYES 9T E
B/ FHK)
Shanghai, the  Direct comparison (i)  Discount on characteristics of the -1%-0% -0.5%-0%
PRC approach properties
HE g BELERE MERMERN (F1R) /R E
Average market price of similar 32,146 32,000
properties (RMB/sq. metre)
HOMENTFIOHE
(AR¥/FHK)
Shenyang, the  Depreciated replacement (i) Construction costs of similar N/A 6,600 - 8,400
PRC cost approach construction site (RMB/sg. metre)
B & WEEEUNE RN 3 B AR X AR
(AR¥/FFRK)
Discount of rental (iii)  Rental yield 6% N/A
income approach Helkasx
HEWABIRE
Market unit rent per month 114-128 N/A
(RMB/sq. metre)
[REEAVASREViEE A ON
(AR®/FRK)
Xiamen, Discount of rental (iii)  Rental yield 5% N/A
the PRC income approach Helkax
HEEM e WABTA
Market unit rent per month 160-193 N/A
(RMB/sg. metre)
miaELEAERKA
(AR¥/FFHK)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

The direct comparison approach takes into accounts of the
characteristics of the properties, which included the location, size,
timing, floor level, view, age and quality against comparable sales
evidence available in the market nearby.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the discount on characteristics of
the properties, or a significant (decrease)/increase in the premium on
characteristics of the properties or market prices of similar properties,
would result in a significant (decrease)/increase in the fair value of
leasehold land and buildings.

The depreciated replacement cost approach takes into account of
the estimated construction costs of erecting a building or a modern
substitute building where having similar area against the existing
buildings held by the Group to be revalued at current market values.
The construction costs may include all of fees, finance charges and
other associated expenses directly related to the construction of a
building.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the construction costs of similar
construction costs nearby, would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the buildings.

The discount of rental income approach takes into account of the
future rental income arising from the retail shops located in the outlet
mall buildings located in Shenyang and Xiamen, where located in
the PRC for the remaining lease terms. This approach also consider
different factors, such as rental yield and market unit rent of
comparable properties available for rental purposes nearby.

A significant increase/(decrease) in rental yield and market unit rent of

the property, would result in a significant increase/(decrease) in the fair
value of the buildings.
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NTEEEXAEEBERELKEMBSHERA
AImZEENGHENRARTERUERNE
FHRERB BTG REMRA < BREK AT
BREEBTEREZAMNMEER MEMX
R EABIERIFAE

ABEARCNR SR A RS AR E L N, (R ) &
HYETATEEMNBEEEM ORD) -

HEWARTER RN BUES REPIH R
FRITAENTE Rt A THEHME LR
RIS YA - I ETRE B TREE - AR A
FHEREN A AL EMENES KGR R
HEMES -

WENEDWERERTIBEMHSOEZE M
CRP)EeBHEFAFEENBEEEM O

)0

Annual Report 2019



For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% -G E R zkiE (48)
(CONTINUED)
Had the leasehold land and buildings and buildings not been W REAREL W REFTIERB LR
revalued by the independent qualified professional valuers, AEREEGHEMETGE  BYUFELK
and recognised in the consolidated statement of financial R R EENMRERE (WER)
position, at historical cost less accumulated depreciation EERTENF(E Il & #7954,836,000/%8 7T (2018
and impairment loss, if any, their net book value would be 378,918,000 jT) BRI st AR A B
approximately HKD954,836,000 (2018: HKD378,918,000). B
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
THIT T
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong REBNHEEL M RETF 82,567 83,914
Leasehold land and buildings in PRC R BEHEE i RIEF 21,968 23,645
Buildings located in PRC AR EMEF 850,301 271,359
954,836 378,918

One of the leasehold land and buildings located in Hong

Kong, at fair value, of approximately HKD282,000,000 RESA—HELTHEEFATFEARY
(2018: HKD273,000,000) was pledged to a bank for 282,000,0007% 7T (2018 : 273,000,00075
securing a banking facility granted to the Group as set out in J0) BEAE T —RERITUERE T AEER
Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. RITERE—RRITEERB (NGRS H

TEERA M FE30 TR )
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. &M%
HKD’000
T
Fair value: AFEEE:
At 1 January 2018 H2018%F1A1H 1,365,656
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RESERN A EEEN 29,105
Disposals e (20,700)
Exchange realignment [ 5 E 75 (54,586)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January as originally HR2018%F12A318 K1 A1IBRK 2
presented 1,319,475
Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2(A)) HRIRS BB R E LR FE1655
(Htat2(A)) 160,740
Adjusted balance at 1 January 2019 2019F 1 A1 H AR L% 1,480,215
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RERERHRFEEEN 44,217
Exchange realignment [ % E 75 (21,120)
At 31 December 2019 M2019%F12A31H 1,503,312
As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Group's investment A2018%F &2019F 12 A31H » RE B 7
properties were located in Shenyang, Beijing, Shanghai, FREER IR LB EE - REREB
Chongging and Tianjin, the PRC and Hong Kong, which MIEEMEREFRERPHEETUFE
were held under either a medium or long-term lease and WIAREBASWARIEEARGELSBE /-
for the purpose of either earning rental income or capital ETBYAERBEXGHEMERAAFEE
appreciation. They were measured by using fair value models TR TR E -

carried out by different independent qualified professional
valuers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January
2019, the Group classified its lease of the community mall
located in Tianjin, the PRC as an investment property of
approximately HKD160,740,000 was recognised at fair value
given that it satisfied the definition as an investment property
under HKAS 40 as it is for the purpose of earning rental
income. The subsequent fair value gain of approximately
HKD17,207,000 was recognised in the profit or loss during
the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
disposed an industrial building, where located in Hong
Kong and three parcels of spare land, where located in
Shenyang, the PRC, of which the three parcels of spare
land was classified as asset held for sale as at 1 January
2018. The fair value of those properties were approximately
HKD20,700,000 and HKD538,721,000 and determined
based on the valuations carried out by independent qualified
professional valuers, namely Greater China Appraisal
Limited and Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited
respectively. During the year ended 31 December 2018, a
total of fair value gain of those properties of approximately
HKD1,000,000 and HKD83,162,000 were recognised on
their respective dates of disposal.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the fair value
measurements of commercial and industrial properties
and leased community mall, where located in Shenyang,
Beijing, Shanghai, Chongging and Tianjin, the PRC and
Hong Kong were carried out by independent qualified
professional valuers not connected to the Group, namely
Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited, % JIl T &} 12
2t iwEwEFGHBRARKEBY A7 and Greater
China Appraisal Limited. There were no key changes in the
valuation approach carried out by the independent qualified

professional valuers for both years.
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R2019F1A1IBBERERABEM B REE
A 1657 1% - AR B E R BERFH
HERESENKREERENTHEHEE
RIFFBSFERFIORNER D BRIR
B W) 8 49160,740,0008 TT R IR & ¥ % -
TRFANBRERAR A FEEKED
17,207,000/ 7T ©

RELE2018F12A31R IEFE - AEEH
EUNEBNTERERUNPEESH
—EHEE T (R2018F1H1H DR AR
EHEEE) BB LA EREEMERM
REFEBRARLAZITEEARAR
#EITEY R E{E 540 /520,700,000 7T
%:538,721,000/ 7T - I &L 22018512 A31
BIESEE REEEHERRERZDE
B A B Ed m A& £ 41,000,000% 7T K&
83,162,000/ 7T ©

20184 K20194F12 A31H » [ A B &
fpdtR B BEERRKENEENEE
RIEMERMEESHNAFEBEHRE Y
AR BEAREBERA BN EEMHERD
(RIZEITEBBRAE RV MEERITL
HEHEF BB R A KA D AR RIEE
TEBRARDE -ZEBISEREE
i {ELAD 7 R 8 4F & N FT A B0 (B 5 A 1008
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2019 [E &



For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

According to the result of fair value measurements, the
Group recognised a total of fair value gain arising on
revaluation of investment properties classified as other
than held for sale of approximately HKD44,217,000 (2018:
HKD112,267,000) directly to profit or loss during the year.
The reduction of fair value gain was mainly due to the result
of fair value measurement of three parcels of land classified
as held for sale, where located in Shenyang, the PRC of
approximately HKD83,162,000 was recognised given that
the residential properties and supporting facilities were
developed rapidly in the prior year of which increased the
average price of land.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the fair value
measurements of investment properties, where located in
Shenyang, Beijing, Shanghai and Chongqing, the PRC and
one in Hong Kong were adopted direct comparison approach
with reference to the current market price of comparable
sales evidence available in the market nearby with significant
adjustments for the differences in the characteristics of the
Group'’s investment properties. The fair value measurement
of an investment property, where located in Hong Kong
was adopted capitalisation of rental receivables approach
by taking into account of the rental receivables outstanding
during the residual period of the existing tenancy, which is
then capitalised at an appropriate capitalisation rate with
due allowance for the reversionary interests after the expiry
of the tenancy with reference to term yield and reversionary
yield of the existing tenancy and average market unit rent of
comparable properties available for rental purposes nearby.

In addition, the fair value measurement of an investment
property, where located in Tianjin, the PRC was adopted
discount of rental income approach with reference to the
future rental income arising from the subleasing of retail
shops accommodated in the community mall, where located
in Tianjin, the PRC which is then discount at an appropriate
discount rate.

15. &M% (1)

BEAFEENE AEERAFEELR
NEHRBRABIDERBIELENREY
ESHEATFEEKZEL B44,217,000% 7T
(2018: 112,267,000 7T ) = A F(EE Wz
BOEEPEESSEARBIELEN =R
+ N P E{E 983,162,000/ T2 HER -
FHNEEMERTEZEERNANTFE
AT L FIEE

20184 2019412 A31H » A B %
Bt EEREERBEE —EREME
MAFEENERAEELEE T2 E
TE BT 3 & A T 35 E A AT LAY 88 5 JB IR
BERAEEREMEFBCEZEELER
AL MR BEENREMEN R FEET
EERARKESERNM G X WEER
EHENFSBARMERES UHAE
ERENEFEREFLEERE MEA
EWEESEENEEERERNAEE

AREBFEHVEENE M RERN L - WL
EfmENERE=BE 2ZREHE
B HR U s R FN1E R U e - LA KR B3 A A
REEB MM L FImIBEMHES -

AN IR R BERENIREDEO R FE
B ERMESBARBL 2ZHRR
EE IR KRR MB AR B RENT
BERSNTEEMEENRRESYWA -
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15.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The above fair value measurements of investment properties
were based on the highest and best use of investment
properties, which did not differ from their actual usage for
both years.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, all of the fair values of
investment properties were classified as level 3 recurring fair
value measurements. Reconciliations of the opening and
closing fair value for both years are provided as follows:

15. IR&ME (&)

RMEFEAR DRRENENAFEE
AEDAREMENGES REERE (A
HERAGLEER) RE%E-

20184 &20194F12 H31H - FTEIREY)
ENRFEEONERE=-REEERTF
EBEFE-MEAFENFINRFRAFE
BHEMT:

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHT FET
Level 3 recurring fair value: FoREEENTERE

Original balance at 1 January HX1IAIBFHE% 1,319,475 1,365,656

Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2(A)) BIRAE AN BWmEER
F165% (MizE2(A) 160,740 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January lﬂ 1H 44 1,480,215 1,365,656
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss A 1EZEHER D\ifﬁﬁi“bﬂ 44,217 29,105
Disposal e - (20,700)
Exchange realignment ERET (21,120) (54,586)
Balance at 31 December 12A31H &% 1,503,312 1,319,475

There was no transfer between different levels of the fair
value hierarchy for both years as the key inputs used by the
independent qualified professional valuers were remained
as unobservable and subject to significant fair value
adjustments before deriving appropriate amounts of fair
values of the properties.

EREBRATHTNRAABERRZER
EEBRASGEHEEEHENYEAR
(B (B 718 32 5 5 1 514 B £ 8 10 R 52 B0
MARTABELZETEARABES
Ee
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs:

15. Ix&ME (&)

AREAEATTBREEHABEHATH
B BHER

Range of estimates

§E
Properties Valuation approach Notes  Significant unobservable inputs
M FiE it BEXRATEHRENBR 2019 2018
Shenyang, Direct comparison approach (i) (Discount)/premium on characteristics of N/A 5% to 4%
the PRC the properties
RS BELEA PERIEE (R),RE
Market prices of similar land N/A 500-1,350
(RMB/sg. metre)
B EmE (AREFHK)
Beijing, Direct comparison approach (i) Premium on characteristics of the 0%-0.7% 0%
the PRC properties
HREE R HELEE MR E
Average market prices of similar properties 44,667 45,000
(RMB/sq. metre)
BUMENTHNE (AREFHK)
Shanghai, Direct comparison approach (i) Discount on characteristics of the -1%-0% -0.5%-0%
the PRC properties
FE S BELEE YR YT R
Average market prices of similar properties 32,146 32,000
(RMB/sg. metre)
BUDENTHTE (ARE/FHK)
Chonggaing, the Direct comparison approach (i) Average market prices of similar properties 19,820 19,010
PRC (RMB/sq. metre) (Commercial) (Commercial)
(W=ES:00) (AEEH)
FEEBEE HELEE BAUMENTHNE (AREFHK)
1,940 1,930
(Carpark) (Carpark)
(BRI ERH5}) (BRI EH
Tianjin, Discount of rental income (iii) Rental yield 6% N/A
the PRC approach
hEIRE HeWAREE He M=
Rental growth rate 2% N/A
Hegr®x
Adjustment rate on the length of lease term 0.42% N/A
MERERNFHEEX
Adjustment rate on the Group’s credit 0.42% N/A
rating
AEBEEFRAAEE
Market unit rent per month (RMB/sq. 60-110 N/A
metre)
miEFARESBA (ARYE FEHXK)

216  Annual Report 2019




15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Information about fair value measurements using significant

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & & M #E#R R M sE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

unobservable inputs: (Continued)

15. Ix&M%E (&)

BFFENEFR: (B)

ERERERTABEEHARENRTE

Range of estimates

gE
Properties Valuation approach Notes  Significant unobservable inputs
M FiE Hiiz  BEXFETHREENERE 2019 2018
Hong Kong Direct comparison approach (i) (Discount)/premium on characteristics of —20% to 3.5% -10% to 2%
the properties
BB BELEA MERIEE (FR),RmE
Average market prices of similar properties 4,507 3,862
(HKD/sq. feet)
BUHENHFHHE B/ FHR)
Capitalisation of rental (ii) Term yield 2.0% 2.1%
receivables approach
FEWT & & ANMbIE FHIM
Reversionary yield 2.5% 2.6%
Bl
Average market unit rent per month 517 501

HuesmERAT 217

(HKD/sq. metre)
mBFABEBA B FHK)
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs: (Continued)

Notes:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

The direct comparison approach takes into accounts of the
characteristics of the properties, which included the location, size,
timing, floor level, view, age and quality against comparable sales
evidence available in the market nearby.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the discount on characteristics
of the properties, or a significant (decrease)/increase in the premium
on characteristics of the properties or market prices of similar land or
properties, would result in a significant (decrease)/increase in the fair
value of the investment properties.

The capitalisation of rental receivables approach takes into account
of the rental receivables outstanding during the residual period of
the existing tenancy, which is then capitalised at an appropriate
capitalisation rate with due allowance for the reversionary interests after
the expiry of the tenancy.

A significant increase/(decrease) in both term yield and reversionary
yield of the property, or a significant (decrease)/increase in the average
market unit rent of the property would result in a significant (decrease)/
increase in the fair value of the investment properties.

The discount of rental income approach takes into account of the
future rental income arising from the subleasing of retail shops
accommodated in the community mall of Tianjin, the PRC.

A significant (decrease)/increase in rental yield, rental growth rate and
market unit rent of the property, or a significant increase/(decrease) in
the adjustment rates on the length of lease term and the Group's credit
rating of the property, would result in a significant (decrease)/increase
in the fair value of the investment properties.

Except for the investment properties located in Shanghai and Tianjin, the PRC,
the remaining investment properties of approximately HKD1,314,428,000

(2018:

HKD1,305,971,000) were pledged to various banks for securing

series of banking facilities granted to the Group as set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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15. Ix&ME (&)

BREREATABRGARBRNRFE
BEEtEMER: (&)

%

HELBAE BREMEBY  EENLT

TR T EE PR TN
BERHEE-

()

MERIEITROBEIEM, ORlD) I ER 1
HEERREE ORd) M Nga el LML
TEESIRENERTFEENEE (L),
e

YR EAMEER R A REN TR AR
WA S YHBERERENERRRELEE
BB MEBRRUESERABELZTENMR
EfE-

(ii)

MEMBER RS ROBELIN CRD) mE
NFEHKSEREMSEMNASNEE CRd)
BNSERINEMEATFEENEE Cid),/
Ehne

HEWART A REBRUNPERZLRE
ST E R FTEE M ARRAEE KA

(iii)

HeWEE ERIAANRT S EMBRENEE
ORA) /MM EREROBRRNEZIE
m/ R EBBREMEATEEANEE
CRL) /40

BEAFR B EETRENIRE LR WESN  KBRIRED
% #91,314,428,000/% 7T (20184 : 1,305,971,000/% 7T )
BEEMEZRBITEERERMNEERMN — KR
TTEGR (Af7 & B 15 3R P RE30 5R) -

Annual Report 2019



For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16.

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets
categorised by class of underlying assets was as follows:

EHESE

BB EE D ENERAEEENFEREE
DI

Prepaid lease Motor
payments Buildings vehicles Total
HEHEERE BF RE st
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FHET FET FHET

(Note 17) (Note 14)

(H1:17) (Hiit14)
At 1 January 2019 M2019F1A1R 514,667 5,892 747 521,306
Additions NE - 1,614 - 1,614
Depreciation e (14,112) (3,843) (155) (18,110)
Exchange realignment M &5 (9,229) (66) - (9,295)
At 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H 491,326 3,597 592 495,515

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 by using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to
leases which were previously classified as operating leases
under HKAS 17.

Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019,
the carrying amounts of the following items were identified
as right-of-use assets: (i) leasehold land interests held in
Xiamen and Shenyang, the PRC under medium lease terms
(Note 17); (ii) right to use of office premises, warehouses and
retail shops, where located in Hong Kong and the PRC under
non-cancellable operating lease contracts, with lease terms
ranged from one year to three years (Note 41); (iii) a motor
vehicle held under a finance lease which was previously
included in property, plant and equipment (Note 14).

The Group does not have any options to renew or terminate
the existing lease agreements and no major lease incentives
was received from the lessor and landlords for both years.

During the year, the Group entered into new lease
contracts, which caused additions of right-of-use assets of
approximately HKD1,614,000.

R2019F1A1B  AEBEBBRAEE
FUBEPERMB BN R E £ R F 1657 1E
REMREERCARBEFT LG LS
17N BAKEHENEHBAENHER

f&e

R20195F1 1B BERARMNEBM B RE
ERFISRAEBECHR THIEEB BER
BEE B OWIRTEESREPINE
B+ irEas (BIFEL7) ¢« (NEBZAEED
RE-FHHEELHMEEETEUNT
BREENRE TEERRAEMENRE
FatE (KMIEE41) « (I—HEDBRYE K
FEhREMEHEERTME (HE14)

RRER KEREEABHRK MR
BREEMHEHE REHEAMEEZL &S
TERMENBE G-

RER AEBERZHNHEHZ  ABER
EEENRNEHL614,000/8 7T
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16.

17.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 16.

Details of total cash outflows for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in Notes 51(C) and 32
to the consolidated financial statements.

EHRESE (8)

HEReRLARLEEAENIIRBER
DT IS E N AR A BT R M 5E51(C)
32

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. EftHERIE
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FET
Leasehold land interests held in the PRC R EPEELS
under medium-term lease terms: HE g
Balance at 1 January as originally presented RIALIB&E&BTBET 514,667 556,463
Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2(A)) BREREBYBAER
E165% (Mat2(A)) (514,667) -
Adjusted balance at 1 January R1IA1BEARE S - 556,463
Amortisation 5 - (14,752)
Exchange realignment EH B35 - (27,044)
Balance at 31 December M12A31B &% - 514,667
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREEBMmAHE:
Portion classified as current asset NEARBEENID = 14,833
Portion classified as non-current asset DIEAFERBEENT Y = 499,834
Balance at 31 December MRI12A31B &8 = 514,667

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of prepaid lease
payments comprise of the leasehold land interests held in
Xiamen and Shenyang, in the PRC under medium lease
terms ranged from 40 years to 48 years, which was stated
at cost on the initial recognition and is amortised over the
relevant lease term.

Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January
2019, the carrying amount of prepaid lease payments of
approximately HKD514,667,000 reclassified to right-of-use
assets.

220 Annual Repo

B ZE2018F12A31H - FENHEREMER
¥ B R40F 2485 B B R 19 2 0
o BB PIAERS B 3 5% IR H R R
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17.

18.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2018, one of the leasehold land interest
held in Xiamen, the PRC was pledged to a bank for securing

a banking facility granted to the Group as set out in Note 30

to the consolidated financial statements.

17.

EAHEERIE (8)

2018F12H31H AR EEMFIHF A —
HE L ERE - RRITAERRETE
K (ONER A B 7% R MY SE308 R ) -

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B &E
Customer
Trading rights Trademarks  relationships Total
ok s EFER% 4%
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
Cost: B&
At 1 January 2018 20181 A1H 599 145818 - 146,417
Acquired through business BEREBE OUE
combination (Note 49) (B15£49) - 2,683 53,946 56,629
At 31 December 2018 7201812 A31H 599 148,501 53,946 203,046
Additions NE - 45,633 - 45,633
At 31 December 2019 20195128318 599 194,134 53,946 248,679
Accumulated amortisation: Rt
At 1 January 2018 M2018F1H1H - - - -
Provided for the year FEEE - - 3,596 3,596
At 31 December 2018 7201812 A31H - - 3,596 3,596
Provided for the year FEEBE - - 3,596 3,596
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12H31H - - 7,192 7,192
Net book value: IREFE
At 31 December 2019 $22019%12A31H 599 194,134 46,754 241,487
At 31 December 2018 7201812 A31H 599 148,501 50,350 199,450
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Group acquired an international sports
brand from an independent external party, including the
global trademarks and patents of core technologies of
“SKINS” branded products to globally develop, manufacture,
promote and distribute “SKINS” branded products, which is
designed and produced for athletes and sports enthusiasts
(the “SKINS trademark”).
acquisition was approximately USD5,000,000, equivalent to
approximately HKD45,612,000 was recognised initially at

The consideration of this

cost.

As a result, the carrying amount of intangible assets at 31
December 2019 was comprised of: (i) intellectual property
right, not limited to design, manufacture, package, sale,
distribution and marketing of “PONY” and “SKINS” branded
products, with licensing periods from 7 to 15 years (2018:
7 to 15 years) granted by the local government agencies
in the foreign licensed territories; (ii) right to manufacture,
market, distribute and sell of healthcare products under
certain patents and trademarks in Hong Kong, together with
customer relationships for a portfolio of long-term customers
relationships established since the commencement of
business; and (iii) trading rights granted by the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited, which allows the Group to
trade listed securities on or through the Stock Exchange and
The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited
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18.

EREE (§)

RERN  NEER—BBILINDA LIS
— BB EE b - 215 [SKINS | @ b8
EmBOZORMERN AR 2IRMAE - &
EHEERDHEEREHENREEENE
BEF MBS [SKINS | SR RRE @ o AN R IR
8% = H MR E 49 A5,000,0003E 7T 49 5 7
45,612,000/ 7T B ¥ IR FER B KA °

MR2019F12A318 - |IEEEBRE: (V8
b BT M A P I LH O SN B AT R M [ Y R AT
B R7Z15% (2018 1 7215 ) WA ERE
(T ERH TPONY J K2 [SKINS | 5% % 2 52 &9
RETEEBECHE DEREH) )
REBUETENEERLEE 28 D
FIHERBELEERMMNENRIERBHZ
VHRBBERAGNEPRBE  Mii)EE
RGLEERBRARREAFAEER
SERBEABMARIABERARRE LSS
EXGMBRAREEZEFNI FHE-
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18.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The “PONY” and “SKINS” trademarks, patents and
trademarks of healthcare product business and trading rights
described above are considered by the Group’s management
as having indefinite useful lives since they are expected
to generate net cash inflows indefinitely to the Group, and
therefore, they are required to be tested for impairment at
the end of reporting period. The customer relationships of
healthcare product business is considered by the Group's
management as having an estimated useful life of 15 years
(2018: 15 years).

Saved for the purpose of impairment testing in respect
of both “PONY” and “SKINS” trademarks, patents and
trademarks of healthcare product business have been
allocated to the respective cash-generating units of both
branding and retailing and sourcing segments. Their
recoverable amounts were determined based on the value-
in-use calculations carried out by an independent qualified
professional valuers not connected to the Group, namely
Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited, Ascent Partners
Valuation Services Limited and Greater China Appraisal
Limited.

For the “PONY” trademark, it covers a detailed 10-years
(2018: 10 years) budget plan, plus an extrapolated cash
flows projection by applying a long-term growth rate
subsequent to the 10-years (2018: 10 years) budget plan,
with a post-tax discount rate of 11.5% (2018: 12.8%).
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AEBEIRERS[PONY ] K& [SKINS |
B REBEEMEBNENEEEUAR
ROEBREERFERAFH BHRBALE
EEEAERRSRAFER: AMERS R
HEERRETREAR AEEERERA
REBEERESNEPBEESB ML
F (2018%F : 16%F ) WAt A H -

Bt [PONY J K2 [SKINS | P iZ A R AR & A
EmEBNIENLREFARENRANS

BEDRPEERBHEESBURTER
KD ERIR e EAEMN - HETKRE S5
TIRBHRARTEABR AR  XHNE
BAERARREETEBRATETH
FTREBFETUETE MEFHRER
SEVEBENEYAEREEMERM-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The key assumptions used in the budget plan are:

Cash flows beyond the 10-years budget plan are
extrapolated by using an estimated 6% (2018: 3%)
long-term growth rate;

ii. Gross profit margin will be maintained at its current
level throughout the 10-years budget plan;

For the newly acquired “SKINS” trademark, it covers a
detailed b5-years budget plan, plus an extrapolated cash flow
projection by applying a long-term growth rate subsequent
to the b-years budget plan, with a post-tax discount rate of
16.7%.

The key assumptions used in the budget plan are:

Cash flows beyond the 5-years budget plan are
extrapolated by using an estimated 2.9% long-term
growth rate;

ii. Gross profit margins will be maintained at its current
level throughout the b5-years budget plan;

For the patents and trademarks of healthcare product
business, it covers a detailed 10-years (2018: 5-years)
budget plan, plus an extrapolated cash flow projection by
applying a long-term growth rate subsequent to the 10-years
(2018: 5-years) budget plan, with a post-tax discount rate of
14.8% (2018: 15.3%).

The key assumptions used in the budget plan are:
Cash flows beyond the 10-years (2018: 5-years)
budget plan are extrapolated by using an estimated 3%

(2018: 3%) long-term growth rate;

ii. Gross margins will be maintained at its current level
throughout the 10-years (2018: 5-years’) budget plan;

18. i

A E ()
MEEZEEHBERNIBRIMT

L BBIOFESMZ RS RENERR
56% (2018 3% ) 2 BEpH R K

s
= o
7t

i.  REELOFEEZHE T X
MR BKF

FATUEBEY [SKINS | g1 5 BB E
AMSFIRE & I ERSFFRE G &R
ERARIERXEENRS R HRK
AR ER16.7% °

Bt SIEAMNEEMRKRMAT

i HEBESFHIMZBRERENERMGE
29% 2 REIEREHESR -

i.  REBESFEESIME ENXEHE
FIRAKF

MREEEROEIRM = - DREFAN10F

FEHETE|IE R K (20184 : 54 ) » 1 ER10
F (20184 : 5%F ) FEHFHEIR AR R
REFWRMIEN - BRI E514.8%
(20185 :15.3% ) ©

FHEERNEERRMT

. RBLOF (2018% 5%) HEHM RS
B Ty 48 B A £13% (2018 : 3% ) #
REERERE

i REELIOF (20184F : 54F ) FBE £
B EF R EHIFREKFE-
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19.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 18. ELEE (&)
The Group’s management concluded that all of the cash- AEBEEREERAMELERSNEN
generating units identified respectively in each of the BAAEERARESMIRFPONY ] K&
businesses were sufficiently demonstrated the amount of [SKINS | BZE R EFREEMREEMD
discounted cash flows were fully covered against the carrying PERREE AW EEE BAER I E
amounts of “PONY” and “SKINS” trademarks, patents and o e B S 1R R A o
trademarks of healthcare product business. As a result, no
provision of loss allowance was identified for both years.
INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/ 19. GEEEZHELD HBHRFEEL
AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES ERIE
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
T T T
Interests in joint ventures: BEERER:
At 1 January M®1A1H 95,962 167,058
Step-up acquisition (Note 49) #— U EE (FI5E49) - (108,300)
Fair value gain on re-measurement of equity EFFTERAERD
interests NEEEYE - 5,363
Transfer of equity interests IR ARz 5% - 16,824
Reduction in share capital & A IR (34,867) -
Share of profit for the year S F E R A 5,315 19,955
Dividends received for the year FERE - (2,175)
Exchange realignment &N E5 (542) (2,763)
At 31 December M®12A31H 65,868 95,962
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19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/

AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

Details of the Company’'s joint ventures at 31 December

2018 and 2019:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Particulars of registered

19. BEREZHELE HRTFEEDR

FERIE ()

MR20184F K2019F12H31H AL EFA
PRRE ST X

Effective interest in

issued and paid-up capital

indirectly held by the

Name of joint ventures operation share capital Company Principal activities
FEERBEREN
MR B R BAECETR
SELELE EEM I, M AFE EHERAFESENE EBEH
2019 2018
REGHEEZRABMRAT  The PRC (natural Registered paid-up capital 25% 25% Investment holding
person investment of RMB50,000,000
or holding)
FE(BAARES FEfE 750,000,000 REER
') AR
Z5E M ARKEEEE  The PRC (Taiwan, Registered paid-up capital 50% 50% Operation and management
BRAR Hong Kong or of RMB10,000,000 of outlet malls
Macau and
domestic joint
venture)
FE(A BB #ffft & 710,000,000 B R E R RS
aH&) AR
25 B iR M i B A E The PRC (domestic Registered paid- 50% 50% Property investment
BRAR] and foreign joint up capital of
venture) RMB60,000,000 (2018:
RMB90,000,000)
AR (A R SR I fft & 760,000,000 MERE
a8) AR (2018 -
90,000,000 A R #)

The contractual arrangements provide the Group joint

controls of the contractual arrangements with the rights to

the net assets to share the net outcome generated by the

economic activities from the joint ventures, whereas the

rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities under

the joint arrangements rested primarily on the joint ventures.

Under the requirement of HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”,

the equity interests in these joint arrangements are classified
as interests in joint ventures and accounted for using the
equity method at 31 December 2018 and 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/

AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Company indirectly
held 50% of the equity interests in both %[5 & i 14 48 BB 2k
PEEEBRART and ZERKEHREEEEBR AR
and 25% of the equity interest in RIEBHEELREBIR
/2 7] and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Z 5 Bk B 2% R E
FR 2 &), which in aggregate held the remaining 50% equity
interest in both %[5 & M MHRFFIEEEBR AR and
ZISER MR EEFR A A

During the year, the board of directors of the joint venture
company, namely ZG B RHAREEXFR QA
had resolved to reduce the amount of share capital from
RMB90,000,000 to RMB60,000,000. The reduction of share
capital of approximately HKD34,867,000 (2018: HKD nil)
has been received during the year.
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19. GEREZHES ERTFEER

FERIE ()

20184 K 2019512 A31 A AR L [E 1%
BRHEBHRARKAETEERARLK
L[5 Bk H R A E E AR A A Z50%M%
BN AEEREBEAREZEHERE
RERARNMEZENBRARARGEKE
EURARATZ26%E  BEARFAL
FeREHARRAREEARAAIREE
Bk R AR E XA R A AR T 250%X
o

RERN ALEXRRARLBEIKRHAMAR
HREFXFBERAANEFTSLORAREER
BEBFEMEANHI,000,000ARE =
60,000,000\ K # » R F B E A4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 & B #& 8 R P 5

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019412 A31

19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES/

HIEFE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES

(CONTINUED)

Aggregate financial information of the joint ventures that are

not individually material

. BB D BRFEEL

FERIE ()

ERIMELIFEAZAELENGTE

2019 2018

HKD’000 HKD’000

THET FE T

Share of profits for the year REESHFE BT 5,315 19,955
Share of other comprehensive AEEDEFE

income for the year Hip 2w A (542) (2,763)
Share of total comprehensive KEBDIEFE

income for the year EAEL N L 4,773 17,192

2019 2018

HKD’000 HKD’000

THT FHET

Amounts due from joint ventures JBULE &> EFIA 10,048 8,170

During the year, the joint venture company has fully repaid

the gross amount of approximately HKD11,400,

000 which

was unsecured and interest-bearing at 5% per annum at 31

December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the carry amount of a

mount due

from joint venture of approximately HKD10,480,000 (2018:
HKD8,170,000) was unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

Symphony Holdings Limited

RER EEECXE2HEELBD
11,400,000/ JT ) 578 - 5 B SR IE 3 S 4K
- 7R2018F 12 A31 B HYF FIZE B5% °

2019512 A31H & & X BN FKIRRE
18 4710,480,0007% 7T (20184 : 8,170,000
BT SR AEEN B R RARERE

=

o
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20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE

MIF

2019
HKD’000
FET

20. B2 EE TEWEERE

2018
HKD'000
TAT

Interest in an associate

Details of the Company’s associate 31 December 2018 and
2019, which was an unlisted corporate entity whose quoted
market price is not available, were disclosed as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

72018 % 20196124310 - REBE KA T
BECKNBESFE ARARBEDLR
LT RBIMAEEHENE

Effective interest in issued and

registration and

Particulars of issue and

paid-up capital indirectly

Name of associate operation paid-up share capital held by the Company Principal activities
MM BRER ERTREHRE XATHEN
BELE EEhE R 5 BEEEZE DL TEED
2019 2018
Just Dawn Limited The British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary paid-up shares 30% 30%  Investment holding
BERZEE of USD30 REER
L@R30ETT
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
TET FET
Share of loss for the year rEEShFEEE - (2,326)
Loan to an associate EXTREBErE - -
Amount due from an associate JE UK — fEl Bt & (b FE FR08 18,081 35,343
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

20.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE/AMOUNT
DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the carrying
amount of loan to an associate of approximately
HKD5,996,000 was reduced by the provision of loss
allowance of loan to an associate of approximately
HKD3,670,000 after share of loss of the associate of
approximately HKD2,326,000 was recognised.

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of amount
due from an associate of approximately HKD18,081,000
(2018:HKD35,343,000) was unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand. During the year, the Group
recognised the provision of loss allowance of amount due
from an associate of approximately HKD11,631,000 (2018:
HKD1,761,000).
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F20185F 12 A31 H K F & A A Bk & 1b 4
fHEY & R {E 49 435,996,000/ 7T - B 18
B @R 2 493,670,000/ T2 B HERERL
2,326,000 7T ©

B ZE2019%12A310 - EREBE 4 D ¥
1A IR [ 8 49 418,081,00058 7T (20184 :
35,343,000/ 70 ) BEIK IR - Tt B RAR
EREE -FRN - ANEEMEREW— R
2 FERIBR BB X11,631,000% 7T
(2018 : 1,761,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & M #& ik &5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

21. GOODWILL 21. &
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’'000
TFHT FHE T
Cost: Jo#.
At 1 January R1A1H 147,501 33,796
Acquired through business combination FIREG A TS (H77749)

(Note 49) - 113,705
At 31 December M12A31H 147,501 147,501
Accumulated impairment loss: FEtiBEEREK
At 1 January M®1A1R = -
Provided for the year FERE 6,100 -
At 31 December M12H31H 6,100 -
Net book value: AREF{E
At 31 December MW12H31H 141,401 147,501
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

21. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

On 12 October 2018, the Group completed the acquisition
of the remaining 40% equity interests in Aggressive
Resources Limited, of which the Group was previously owned
60% equity interests before the date of acquisition, for a
consideration of HKD72,200,000 satisfied by cash as further
disclosed in Note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group therefore recognised a goodwill of approximately
HKD113,705,000 arising from such business combination.
In addition, there was a goodwill arising from the previous
business combination of the financial services business of
approximately HKD33,796,000 in the financial year of 2014.

Both of the carrying amount of goodwill were allocated to
their respective cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing at the end of reporting period. During
the year, impairment loss on goodwill was recognised in
profit or loss of approximately HKD6,100,000 (2018: HKD
nil) given that the recent adverse financial performance of
the healthcare product business in Hong Kong due to the
outbreak of social incidents.

For the purposes of impairment testing of the financial
services business, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit allocated was determined based on
value-in-use calculation, covering a detailed 5-years
(2018: 5 years) budget plan, plus an extrapolated cash
flows projection by applying a long-term growth rate
subsequent to the 5-years (2018: 5 years) budget plan,
with a pre-tax discount rate of 19.5% (2018: 19.5%).

The key assumptions used in the budget plan are:

i. Cash flows beyond the 5-years budget plan are
extrapolated by using an estimated zero (2018:
zero) terminal growth rate; and

ii. Gross profit margins will be maintained at its
current level throughout the 5-years budget
plans.

21. BE (8)

R2018F10A12B AEEHIUEBE
72,200,000/ 7T IR & 52 A UK B Aggressive
Resources Limitedft T40% % A i 2 » 7E I
BETH AEERF A A MR Fe0%M A
o FHIBRNER & B 75 43R I 5149 — 25
BT RNFAN NEBEKE FREREED
113,705,000/ 7T © Lt 5 - TA201484 B & &
MEeMBRBEBHNEBESHEENEER
#33,796,0007% It ©

RIRERR - CBREEERIBEEH
EERSEESM URREHARETH
BRI - RNFEAN - BRE BT S EHERUR
BEMRESENEZELETHHBRER
% B 496,100,000/ 7T (20184 : ) 7
=R

Bt 2 B AR T 275 v A0 R (BRI M
T AlEeEERESENREE
EEMEARNEREENE  BIETH
RIS T8 H 51 &) (20184 : 55 ) * N

A5 (20184 : 54F ) 5F 45T 8l 12
KARANERXEENRSBAE
7 BATAE IR % 519.5% (20184 :
19.5%)

HetBlERmE2HMEWT
R0 MR R &R 56 A
fhat T (20185 : T) R EH#
B R

REESFEE SR EH
G ERIRABKFE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

21. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

For the purposes of impairment testing of healthcare
product business, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit allocated was determined based on
value-in-use calculation, covering a detailed 10-years
(2018: 5-years) budget plan, plus an extrapolated cash
flows projection by applying a long term growth rate
subsequent to the 10-years (2018: 5-years) plan, with
a pre-tax discount rate of 16.8% (2018: 16.3%).

The key assumptions used in the budget plan for both
years are:

i. Cash flow beyond the 10-years (2018: 5-years)
budget plan are extrapolated by using an
estimated 3% (2018: 3%) growth rate; and

ii. The gross margins will be maintained at its
current level throughout the 10-years (2018:
5-years) budget plan.

Except for the impairment loss of goodwill arising from
the business combination of the healthcare products
business in Hong Kong was recognised in profit or
loss of approximately HKD6,100,000 (2018: HKD nil)
during the year, the Group’s management concluded
that there was no impairment required for the financial
service business as the recoverable amount exceeds its
carrying amount of related goodwill for both years.
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2019 [E &

FLE R IEE XA A E R ER M
ERERES CHRESENREE
AEREUMAREeEENEREER
8 BE10%F (20185 : 55 ) # 4
BEETE i @B EA105F (2018
F0F)FHAFERRARRER
KEENIR S IRET  HAIRER X
16.8% (20184 : 16.3% ) °

MEFENNBEEFSERNTIER
RIAT

HBiB10F (20184 : 54F ) : F
HEMIE SR E B HE3%
(2018F : 3% ) IBREEE &

i.  REELIOF(0I8F 5F)fEE
FTEIERR  EF R B EFIREK
E'z o

RER FRAEHAHERREZER
% 7% 79 &R {8 &5 18 496,100,00078 7T
RENIERER (2018F : &) KEHE
BEEERMFNABRENATKES
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

22. INVENTORIES 22. &
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFHT FHET
Raw materials EH 4,323 4,898
Work-in-progress EER 333 350
Finished goods 2URK M 83,255 91,355
87,911 96,603
Provision of allowance GEBEREE (19,953) (11,223)
67,958 85,380
Movements of provision of allowance of inventories during FNEFEEEBEESWOT
the year were as follows:
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET FET
At 1 January M1A1A 11,223 10,191
Provision of allowance FEEBIREE 8,951 838
Exchange realignment ME 3 & 7] (221) 194
At 31 December M12A31H 19,953 11,223
A provision of allowances of inventories of approximately FANERERTERHEREL8,951,000
HKD8,951,000 (2018: HKD838,000) was recognised 7570 (20184F : 838,000/ 7T ) * EE A&t
during the year mainly arising from the decrease in the net EEREEE TRHRA R EIFERD
realisable value of certain types of inventories caused by the W RBEE ST MR SEIRIEE(

reduction of estimated scrap value of inventories subject to e
changes in consumers’ preferences and macroeconomic
environment against the demand of inventories.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23. B 5 R H B AR

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
20194F 20194 2018%
12A31H 1H1H 12H31H
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHET FHET
Trade receivables arising from: HUATEAES
FEUAR K
— Other than financial services — R AR TS o BPBR AN
segment 39,929 75,818 75,818
— Financial services segment — SRR 7 & 12,647 8,048 8,048
Total gross amount of SRR B
trade receivables 52,576 83,866 83,866
Less: Loss allowance B EEEE (6,575) (29,450) (29,450)
Total trade receivables, net of loss ~ fEU BR k4858
allowance B E B R 46,001 54,416 54,416
Other receivables, deposits and H i EURBR TN
prepayments HEESSiE 153,188 467,106 467,152
Less: Loss allowance A Hofh R U R E 1B
on other receivables B (8,820) (7,974) (7,974)
Total other receivables, net of loss — E4th i€ Y BR X428 %8 -
allowance Bk B 1 B 144,368 459,132 459,178
Total trade and other receivables, net & 5 K H i & Ug BR 7%
of loss allowance R R R 190,369 513,548 513,594

On the date of transition to HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019,
the prepaid operating leases expenses of approximately

HKD46,000 previously included in other receivables were

adjusted to right-of-use assets recognised at 1 January
2019. Details of the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16
are disclosed in Note 2(A) to the consolidated financial

statements.

20191 1B THRAEEM KBS LR
1657 - HE AN FIAAI46,000/8 7T PATE
BEEHEMEYRR N2019F1A18 &
EREEENER PR ELEAFEI6NH
T ARMNERTEFBREEMBRE

BIEE2(A) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. B R H M FEUWRRTR (48)
(CONTINUED)
The Group allows an average credit period ranged from 60 A& E RN F602=90H (2018: 60Z90
to 90 days (2018: 60 to 90 days) for its trade debtors arising ANEHEERTESER (TRESR
from those other than the financial services segment. R HEER) -
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFH#IT FHET

Trade receivables arising from the ordinary EHEE-RERAE
course of business of dealing in securities: EENE S EIERR

— Cash clients -ReRP 3,220 326

— Clearing house —EERT 532

— Others —HAth - 88
3,752 414

Trade receivables arising from the ordinary BE—-RERBE

course of business of provision of: EENE S EIERR

— Money lending —E 9,395 7,634
Total gross amount of trade receivables FEU AR SR 4828 13,147 8,048
Less: Loss allowance on money lending B TR E R R R (500) -
Total trade receivables, net of loss allowance 4R FEWBR =RiB BS 181 4 12,647 8,048
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. BES R HMEWERTR ()

(CONTINUED)

Movement of loss allowance of trade receivables arising from
financial services segment during the year was as follows:

B P % TR T 5 20 0 FE M B S 18
BEZBIT

2019 2018

HKD’000 HKD'000

FHET FET

At 1 January MR1A1H = -
Provision of loss allowance B R 500 -
At 31 December MW12H31H 500 -

Save for the credit period allowed by the Group, the
settlement terms of trade receivables arising from the
ordinary course of business of dealing in securities are either
one or two trading days after the trade date depending on
the categories of the underlying securities transactions are
executed. Although the Group did not hold any securities or
other credit enhancement over these balances pledged by
cash clients and clearing house. In the view of the fact that
those receivables related to a number of diversified cash
clients and clearing house and no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition and not credit-impaired
of the respective balances at the end of reporting period,
therefore, the amount of loss allowance under lifetime ECL
assessment was immaterial to be recognised for both years.

BRAREAFNEERIN —REFRXH
EBNREREERR S RK — B mE
RH5H ABRIURNBHF R ZHERIAT
BEREELSBERATAEFIHELR
FEXZZHENRNAEE-ENEZRER
S ABNRURIAR P AR H R
® YEBAKTEERR TFERERR
BREHRAE  Fut - AFRMEEEEN
EINEERE EMFENFHEHETIE
* o

237 2019F EiRkE



For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

Trade receivables from money lending business was due
on the agreed settlement dates in accordance with the
respective money lending agreements. Similar to the
balance of loans receivable as disclosed in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group is allowed
to dispose of the borrowers’ properties and listed equity
securities to settle any overdue balance of interest payments
due to the Group. Based on the result of ECL calculation and
market value of securities provided by the borrowers, a loss
allowance of approximately HKD500,000 (2018: HKD nil)
was recognised during the year.

The following is an ageing analysis of the trade receivables,
net of loss allowances, arising from those other than financial
services segment and financial service segment, which is
presented based on the invoice date or transaction date,
where applicable, at the end of the reporting period:

23. B REMEWARR (48)

HEREBELNRURBRBERES AN
ERE - MURA KBS A M BHREME
25FfT 1% R B B R ZE TS E IR MUK R EE - AR
BRI REERANDEN EWERARE S
PARE BRI A B SRR B N SR B R - &
RIEEIE RE B MR R BRI an iy
T {8 - 548 5 £ £9500,0007% 7T (20184 :
TERTT)NFRERR -

RBERR AEEUBRZAPNRZSHH
B (@) REEZIINERRT 2 8K
BT D B E 5 FE W AR SRIOBR B 1B
BRRRE DTN :

2019 2018

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FAET

0 to 30 days 0E30Xk 19,929 27,780
31 to 60 days 31E60K 8,766 7,216
61 to 90 days 61E90K 2,482 2,407
Over 90 days #90K 14,824 17,013
46,001 54,416
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

Movements of loss allowance of trade receivables arising
from those other than financial services segment and
financial services segment during the year were as follows:

23. B R H M EWKARRR (45)

REREAMRE I RS D B ke BAR
B B EA R R ERREES M T

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHT FAET
Original balance at 1 January under HKAS 39 & B &5t %8| 5395k

R F VS5 29,450 23,664

Initial adoption of HKFRS 9 BIRERN B AW 5SmSR
o5k - 4 098
Adjusted balance as at 1 January MR1A1BAZREE % 29,450 27,762
Provision of loss allowance 518 B 2,568 1,688
Written off R (23,664) -
Exchange realignment M W E5 (1,779) -
Balance at 31 December MR12 8318 &6k 6,575 29,450

The Group has measured the loss allowance of trade
receivables arising from those other than financial services
segment and financial services segment by using HKFRS 9
simplified approach as of 1 January 2018 assuming that all
of the trade debtors shared a similar credit risk characteristic
under the lifetime ECL assessment. Provision matrix is used
to measure the loss allowance of trade receivables for both
years. The default rates are based on the past due days
by grouping of customers arising from different operating
segments with similar loss patterns. The ECL calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, time value of
money and adjustments on the reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information available to the Group. Generally,
the balance of trade receivables is written off in full as if it
is past due more than 180 days and are not subject to any
credit enhancement activity imposed by the Group.

During the year, the Group recognised loss allowance of
trade receivables of approximately HKD2,568,000 (2018:
HKD1,688,000) in accordance with the result of ECL
calculation.

REER2018F1IAIREEBEBHBR
HFEAFRNMEITAFTERB ISR
B0 8B K B ARG 2 B RV E 5 U AR KA
BEEE ETRIMETLPNEHEN
EERBEFERE TNEERREEEL -
AEBERARBRETEEZRIERN
EiEEE - BORTDER AR RLEEREN
B 2% (8T [l 5 0 20 % P AR Bl 8 R 8K
BE - Zat ERREAXIESR - B
BEELASHAREBESE BN
RARKBREEMNRIEANEIE LA EE
Bte—fRM= - W82 RURREHRB IR
BIBOK B MITIAERR Bl FIUE
2 - ETRBNEENEMEE RS -

RER REFEHEABENGERFERN
S BB E 5 8 U R IR K 5 8304,00008 7T
(20184 : 331,0007% 7T ) #12,568,000/% T
(20184 : 1,688,000/ 7T ) 1R 1% 78 HA 15 A &5
BOERFTE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

23. B REMEWARR (48)

T 7 5L At KR 5 ) OB M S 18 1k R

Movements of loss allowance of other receivables during the

year were as follows: N
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
THIT FHET
At 1 January 1A 1 B8 7,974 7,974
Provision of loss allowance S iE s 455 -
Exchange realignment M K E 7 391 -
At 31 December M12A831H 8,820 7,974

The amount of loss allowance of other receivables was
limited to 12-month ECL assessment, except for those are
classified as stage 3 under the lifetime ECL assessment as
disclosed below, given that there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and not credit-
impaired balance at the end of reporting period. Therefore,
the total gross amount of other receivables of approximately
HKD153,188,000 (2018: HKD467,152,000) was classified
as stage 1 under the definition disclosed in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The provision of loss allowance of other receivables
recoghised above is related to certain counterparties who are
slow in settlement and none of the balances are expected
to be recovered in the remaining lifetime of the balances.
At 31 December 2019, the gross amount of those credit-
impaired receivables classified as stage 3 under the lifetime
ECL assessment was approximately HKD8,820,000 (2018:
HKD7,974,000) and loss allowance of approximately
HKD455,000 (2018: HKD nil) was recognised during the
year.

Hip e g B e B A ERNI2MEA
H TR RS AR B R AT Al - B A T RT3 BB Y 1
BEREMEREDREREENE 8L
EEEPNAPY SEEN N R R e Pl
RBEMARLEERBE Bt LR
U 3R T8 48 88 £9153,188,0007% 7T, (20184F :
(467,152,000/&7T) ) # 5| iR & M 5 K
M5 BRI BB EREHA -

i B WERR ) H b FE U AR R0 R 8 s 18
HEREERENE TR ZEH BB AE
B AL 64 A] T UL Bl - 7A2019F12831H A&
B 1= B (B FE U AR R A0 48 B8 & 498,820,000
BT (20184 : 7,974,000/ 7)) DB A2 H
TEEEEBEFEIRE  MFERNERNERE
1 1% 5 49455,00078 7T (20184F - &) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

24. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN

24. RUFPREEHMEETFZER

FINANCING
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
Fi#&T FET
Directors and their associates BEENMEBEAL 18,036 8,915
Other margin clients HEMRESRP 104,612 135,230
122,648 144,145

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of advances to
customers in margin financing from the margin financing
business in Hong Kong was secured by listed equity
securities in Hong Kong, carried interest rates ranged from
Prime Rate to Prime Rate plus 3% (2018: Prime Rate to
Prime Rate plus 3%) per annum in average and repayable
on demand.

The amounts of credit facilities granted to the margin clients
are determined on the basis of the discounted market value
of listed equity securities accepted by the Group. The Group
maintains a list of approved stocks for margin lending at
certain specified loan-to-collateral ratios. Any excess in the
aforesaid ratio will trigger a margin call for the margin client
to settle the margin shortfall.

At 31 December 2019, the total undiscounted market
value of listed equity securities pledged in respect of the
margin lending to the margin clients was approximately of
HKD506,214,000 (2018: HKD570,105,000). According
to the Clients’ Account Opening Agreements, the Group is
allowed to dispose of the listed equity securities pledged to
settle clients’ outstanding obligations due to the Group.
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RESNFERRBS TR -

B E2019F12H31H - REFIE WIS BT
BARESEFPREEANRESEROR
506,214,000/ 7T (20184 : 570,105,000/%
TT) RIEFEFPHHEPIHE  NEE R
EHERETHRAES NEETFPH
RAEBH)REE

2019 [E &



For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

24. ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS IN MARGIN

25.

FINANCING (CONTINUED)

Based on the result of ECL calculation and the discounted
market value of listed equity securities, no provision of
loss allowance was recognised for both years given that no
significant default events of failure to repay the margin call
from any margin clients and the discounted market value of
listed equity securities provided were sufficiently covered the
outstanding balances of advances to customers in margin
financing as at 31 December 2018 and 2019.

No ageing analysis is disclosed for advances to customers
in margin financing, as in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, an ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the
business nature of margin financing. The maximum exposure
of credit risk against the Group is the carrying amount of
advances to customers in margin financing at the end of
reporting period.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

24.

EE%R%EHEEEZE%

RIETEERABETEERMAIR L
T A ME - AR E S B S A 18 R
ROERLERESEP REMEERBINR
FBEHEREHNZMH 8 E£2018F F12019
FI12A31H8 - EHRAEFHMHER TS
CHEHEBENRESCETFOANRE
KR

ARBAEERR ENRBSBENED
HE R OMEEER R ERERH
TRESBMETEP ZBHKREDIT A%
e & AERRRMOZF REE RS2

K -

25. FEWE =R

2019 2018

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FHET

Secured balance before loss allowances RETABEBREBEERES 173,993 172,888
Less: Loss allowances B B EEE (6,800) (6,800)
167,193 166,088

At 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of loans # IF2019F 128310 B AEBE 4

receivable arising from the money lending business in
Hong Kong was secured by mortgages over the borrowers’
properties and listed equity securities in Hong Kong, carried
at interest rates ranged from 8% to 36% (2018: 5%-
18%) per annum and repayable within one year from the
respective dates of advances to the borrowers or on demand
for both years.
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25. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Movement of loss allowances of loans receivable during the

year were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

25. FEWER (&)

UTRFARKERNEERRENES:

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHIT FET
Original balance at 1 January under HKAS 39 A& B & ER|$3958 T

1H1H W F 4% - 16,000

Initial adoption of HKFRS 9 BEANRAE AU EIREER)
ool - 16,715
Adjusted balance at 1 January R1A1BAREH 6,800 32,715
Write off R - (32,715)
Provision of loss allowance &5 18 B = 6,300
Balance at 31 December 12A31H #84 6,800 6,800

Analysis of the gross carrying amount and allowance of
loans receivable under different stages of default as at 31

December 2018 and 2019 were as follows:

LATN 20184 2019412 A31 A H i AU B B
WERH R EARLBERREN DN

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
PEs B — PEEE = PEER= “afn
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET

Gross carrying amount: ARE{E&E
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H 129,012 - 124,120 253,132
New loans originated MEAER 19,363 - - 19,363
Write off HER - - (76,000) (76,000)
Repayments of loans BEEEX (21,200) - (2,407) (23,607)
At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 127,175 - 45,713 172,888
New loans originated MEAER 55,000 - - 55,000
Repayments of loans EBEER (53,439) - (456) (53,895)
At 31 December 2019 720194128318 128,736 - 45,257 173,993
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

25. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 25. FEWMER (48)

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
PEs B — PEEE= PEEE= #aFn
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FAT FAT FET

Loss allowance: RIERE
At 1 January 2018 M2018F1A1H - - 32,715 32,715
Write off AR - - (32,715) (32,715)
Provision of loss allowance B 1a B - - 6,800 6,300

At 31 December 2018

and 2019 - - 6,800 6,800

For a total amount of loans receivable of approximately
HKD128,736,000 (2018: HKD127,175,000) classified
as stage 1 defined under the stages of default, there is a
limited exposure of credit risk given that there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and not credit-impaired of the respective balance at the end
of reporting period. Therefore, the amount of loss allowance
was limited to 12-month ECL assessment and was immaterial
to be recognised for both years.

For a total amount of loans receivable of approximately
HKD45,257,000 (2018: HKD45,713,000) classified as stage
3 defined under the stages of default, there has a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and credit-
impaired of the respective balance at the end of reporting
period. Therefore, the amount of loss allowance is subject to
lifetime ECL assessment and is immaterial to be recognised
during the year (2018: HKD6,800,000).

Definition of stage 1, stage 2 and stage 3, collectively known
as stages of default under the requirement of HKFRS 9 are
as follows:

FEN S S4B EE 4 /128,736,000 7T (2018
% : 127,175,000/ 7T ) 7 IR B & LIPS B
TEENER]L AREBEARIRERR
BARBEANEMY RARBRERREEN
BE EERRAR- HAi BEBESRE
ERMNI2(E A FEHE ARG LA
EEYFTRMEEERMER -

JE U E B4R BE 4 /45,257,0005% 7T (2018
145,713,000/ 70 ) SFEEL B AR ER3T
EREHR B 5 RHERME AR E R
HENERERREREZIE I Al - BE
BENSENERERERTG EME
HTIEZTHAMEERNERER (2018
& B16,800,0007T) °

B ER1 ~ B ER2MPE BB E & STl BARIE
FREMIGMEERFRHER BN
RELBINT:
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25. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 25. FEIER (48)

Stage 1: Exposures where the outstanding loan balance
has not been recorded a significant increase in credit risk
since the initial recognition and is not deemed to be credit-
impaired at the end of reporting period, the proportion of
lifetime ECL assessment associated with the probability of
default events occurring within the next 12 months after the
end of reporting period is recognised in profit or loss when it
incurred.

Stage 2: Exposures where the outstanding loan balance has
been recorded a significant increase in credit risk since the
initial recognition but is not deemed to be credit-impaired
at the end of reporting period, the lifetime ECL assessment
which reflects the remaining lifetime of the associated
balance is recognised in profit or loss when it incurred.

Stage 3: Exposures where the outstanding loan balance is
deemed as credit-impaired at the end of reporting period, the
lifetime ECL assessment is implemented when there is one or
more events identified that have a detrimental impact against
the repayment of interest and/or principal of the loan balance
in the remaining lifetime of the loan balance was incurred.

FEBEEAERRLERRERRS
R RERBE RMEEERBKEREN
RIEE N SEMAARKIEARNELY
SR AREEERERNEMERE
EEBENEETHER

FoHERE E%mﬁiﬁ%ﬁ¢%$$W
BRERE AMEEEFHRBUAEER
K@%m%&0%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ(ﬂ
RERER T HAR ARG ER ERERS
RER)

IR RMEEFRBERERE PREER
RIEH ﬁ@h“*ﬂi%%*ﬂ%%ﬂ#
HEERTERERMNER HEXEAE
E%%—H?fA%ﬁ%E%EEHE
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26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

26. HAFEINEHRPEMEE

2019 2018

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FHET

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BB LTHRAE S 66,012 6,676
Unlisted equity investments outside Hong Kong & & B 4MNE F AR AR E 174,941 65,777
240,953 72,453

Both of the listed equity securities in Hong Kong and unlisted
equity investments outside Hong Kong are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss under
the definition of HKFRS 9. For the key inputs of fair value
measurements of those listed equity securities in Hong
Kong and unlisted equity investments outside Hong Kong
are disclosed in Note 39(C) to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year, the fair value gain on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HKD88,843,000
(2018: fair value loss of approximately HKD2,443,000)
was recognised in profit or loss subject to increase (2018:
decrease) of market value of comparable companies and
other inputs.
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REE EMRBRAE R KRR BBEINIE
TR E AR W RS LR LR E
ENVERTREERRAFEIAEBRESD D
BRARKIFEER RABEMBHREERE
iR RERERDBREAFEEIA
BanSRMEE -BRARE  EHRAE
HFRIFLEMBPAREBENEEHABE
WENRE WIS IRARMFE39(C) °

A R1%788,843,000/8 #5 (20184F : A8
B K 2,443,000/ % ) 1~ FEESIA
BameREEAFEEFRENERR
TR XEI A ELRARMISEERENLE
fib ¥ A BUR BV IE N (2018%F @A) ©
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27. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 27. ZRHBITER RITEHB IR

BALANCES AND CASH &
As at 31 December 2019, a restricted bank deposit of E2019F 12A31H DB AIEREE
approximately HKD3,356,000 (2018: HKD3,418,000) B 2 % R #8717 17 3 £93,356,0007%
was classified as a non-current asset, denominated 70 (20184 : 3,418,000 70) U A &
in Renminbi (“RMB”) and carried at a fixed interest ETE - LABE F F %E2.75% (2018
of 2.75% (2018: 2.75%) per annum. The use of F:2.75% )5t B - B AMRITIHFRAR
restricted bank deposit was restricted by one of the EEFRRGREFITNERZ—R
tenants located in the outlet mall, where located in BAAEE-
Shenyang, the PRC.
As at 31 December 2019, a restricted bank deposit MR2019F12A31H  nEARBEE
of HKD20,000,000 (2018: HKD20,000,000) was (2018F : ERB B E) 2 X R H iR
classified as a current asset (2018: non-current asset) 7777 3 #720,000,0007% 7T (20184 :
denominated in HKD and carried a fixed interest 20,000,000 7T ) LA ETHE - AEE
of 2.0% (2018: 0.3%) per annum. The restricted FREK20% (2018%F : 0.3% )it B 5
bank deposit is used to secure a banking facility of HARBEE ZXBHERITFHRA
HKD170,000,000 granted to the Group. During the W E B ¥ (R —I8170,000,0007 JT 12
year, it was reclassified from a non-current to a current HTIAREEAORITRME -RFEAN - Z
asset given that the banking facility will be expired TFREMEDERIERDEE AR
within one year from the end of reporting period and FZIRITRENRNF R E R —FA
the bank borrowings will be repaid on the expiry date of B RARITRMEDHAEE -
the banking facility.
As at 31 December 2019, a restricted bank R2019F 12 A31H - D AEREE
deposit of approximately HKD17,174,000 (2018: EZ (2018F : B EE) XRHIR
HKD11,396,000) was classified as a current asset 1TTER 417,174,000 7T (20184 :
(2018: non-current asset) denominated in RMB 11,396,0007870 ) AARESHE - 548
and carried a fixed interest at 1.95% (2018: 1.95%) BRBEE (2018F  EREEE) A
per annum. The restricted bank deposit is used & 7F F F1) % 1.95% (20184 : 1.95% )
to secure a banking of RMB350,000,000 (2018: FTB o X R HIIRITF AN EAIR
RMB300,000,000). During the year, it was reclassified #H—18350,000,000 A R # (20184 :
from a non-current asset to a current asset given that 300,000,000 A R ) #IER1TRLE o 1
the banking facility will be expired within one year from FN ZEREFTEIERIERDE
the end of reporting period and the bank borrowings E BRZBRITEFRBALRREAHHE
will be repaid on the expiry date of the banking facility. REF—FREHRAERITRE S A
B
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27. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 27. ZRRFERITER RITEB IR
BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED) £ (8)

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts
with bank to hold bank balances held on behalf of
customers from the regulated activities restricted
under the SFO. The Group has recognised the related
amounts as “bank balances and cash — held on behalf
of customers” and the corresponding trade payables
due to the respective cash and margin clients and
clearing house (Note 28) in the consolidated statement
of financial position as the Group is liable for any loss
or misappropriation of clients’ monies. At 31 December
2019, the balance of bank balances and cash held
on behalf of customers was HKD13,415,000 (2018:
HKD15,761,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the bank balances and cash
comprised of time deposits with banks of approximately
HKD19,483,000 (2018: HKD53,586,000), which
carried at fixed interest rates ranged from 0.33%
to 3% (2018: 0.57% to 2.22%) per annum during
the year and will be withdrawn upon their respective
dates of maturity. The remaining balance of bank
balances of approximately HKD110,308,000 (2018:
HKD78,004,000), carried at prevailing market interest
rates ranged from 0.01% to 0.85% (2018: 0.01% to
0.35%) per annum during the year.
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BRETEERARAEEE AT
FEemMEMBRALBAFTAE-
2019%F12A31R - RITEBRMKF
P A /13,415,000 7T (20184 :
15,761,000/ 7T ) °

201912 A31H - RITA R R
T B NEE FAME0.33%E3%
(2018%F - 0.57%%2.22% ) &5t B K& 2|
H B £2 BUUA TE H3 77 3K 4919,483,000
75 71.(2018 : 53,586,000/ 7T ) © H #4
By BIRTTAE#24) /5110,308,00078
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27. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2019, the bank balances and
cash, and restricted bank deposit held in the bank
accounts located in the PRC and denominated in
RMB were approximately HKD71,211,000 (2018:
HKD48,508,000). RMB is not freely convertible into
any of the foreign currencies in the PRC. Under
the Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations governed by the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange in the PRC, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB into foreign
currencies through banks’ authorisation to conduct
foreign exchange businesses.

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

27. ZREIRITHER RITHBERIE
£ (8§)

20194128318 A A R &
EHRERITZREBRITRLPIFAN
RITEBRER S (REZREIRTHE
FR)E#71,211,0005 JT (20184 :
48,508,000 7T ) - AR ET
BEERRBRAIINE - BERBEEX
SNEBRBEE 2 [ HMNEE K
By | R KEIE - SE RN ESRR
B | AEEETAAREELE
SNEETERRTT  BARELBRAIN
ﬁ;quo

28. B 5 & H i FE 1 BR X

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
20195 20194 20184
12A31H 1A1H 12A31H
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHET T
Trade payables arising from: B I EMNEREE
— Other than financial services — 2R AR TS o BPBR AN
segment 87,871 63,747 63,747
— Financial services segment — &R RE D 13,731 15,937 15,937
Total trade payables B ENEREE 101,602 79,684 79,684
Other payables, temporary receipts, E b fETER X - Ba b
accruals and receipts in advance W3k - JEEHER X
LA R 8 50 207,452 133,993 152,224
Total trade and other payables B REMBEMNERER
B 309,054 213,677 231,908
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables arising
from those other than financial services segment, which is
presented based on the invoice date or transaction date,
where applicable, at the end of reporting period.

28. B R EMIEMSIRR (B)

RARERAR AEEABRZAMIRH
B (HER) REEZIMIESRRE D
HE SRR ERE DT

2019 2018

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FAT

0 to 30 days 0-30&% 41,203 31,329
31 to 60 days 31-60K 46,589 20,517
61 to 90 days 61-90K 7 4,120
Over 90 days #90K 72 7,781
87,871 63,747

The average credit period granted by the suppliers or service
providers arising from those other than financial services
segment is approximately 90 days (2018: 90 days).

HEBIRGHERRE FSBRFE D E
RMHF1H{EE B RI0X (201845 1 90K )
(2 BARTE D BBERSIN)

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFH#IT FHET
Trade payables arising from the ordinary course B4 EEHE X B BRELE
of business of dealing in securities: B & B FE AR SR
— Cash clients -ReRP 11,973 11,919
— Margin clients —RBEEEF 1,758 3,813
— Clearing house —EERT = 205
13,731 15,937
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

29.

(CONTINUED)

The balances of trade payables arising from finance services
segment represented the outstanding amounts due to cash
and margin clients and clearing house in respect of the
bank balances temporarily received in the segregated trust
accounts held on behalf of the clients and clearing house
arising from regulated activities restricted under the SFO.
As at 31 December 2019, the balance of the segregated
trust account was approximately HKD13,415,000 (2018:
HKD15,761,000).

The settlement terms of trade payables arising from the
dealing in securities are within one or two trading days after
the trade date depending on the categories of the underlying
securities transactions are executed. No ageing analysis
is disclosed for those trade payables, as in the opinion of
the directors of the Company, an ageing analysis is not
meaningful in the view of business nature of dealing in
securities and margin financing.

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following table is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes as at 31 December
2018 and 2019:

28.

29.

B RHMEMRR (4)

KB 2 BRGDANE S RN F R
REEE S MERI THEERSH AR
ZEWHRREE TP RIRERBEEN
ERRBLGEREFORREFEZRF&E
B RFEHXESFLBEGEOIR G R
2019FF12A31 R Z B EHE P 0 B 4 &R
#913,415,000% 7t (2018 : 15,7641,0007%
JT)°

ZENBHRHGEP MEEME S EMNK
RZBEERRERZAME-AmAR-
BIFPREAITHEFX HER] &R
EHREENMMRECHENEREE EF
R REROMALEER - AL BARER
e AT o

EREHIE

2018 %2019 12 A31H » #FE LA B3 &
FEHRELETRBABROITT -

2019 2018

HKD’000 HKD’000

TH#IT FH T

Deferred tax assets RIEFRIEE E (21,691) (9,623)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEARE 287,112 169,495
265,421 159,872
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the

29. EEHIIH ()

AEBER

AN
=

MBEBREANEREL

BE(BE) ABERHEESNFEENE

movements thereon during the year were disclosed as BRI R
follows:
Revaluation of Undistributed Fair value
leasehold Revaluation Accelerated eamings of adjustment
landand  of investment tax PRC on intangible
buildings properties depreciation subsidiaries Tax losses assets Total
HELHE REnE MERE  PEKELT BREEZ
#FEf Eff ik KRB HEFR ATEESE k]
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TEn TAn Fhr TER TEr FET TAR
At 1 January 2018 R2018E1A18 86,251 68,820 9,551 73 (29,191) 7,366 142,870
Acquired through business combination (Note 49)  EREHA G WE (H:49) - - - - - 8,307 8,307
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 48) LENBAR (Hi48) - (18.940) - - - - (18.940)
Charge to profit or loss MaER - 24,051 - - 745 - 24.7%
Charge to other comprehensive income p 5328 - - - - - 5328
Exchange realignment L (22) (2,469) 2 - - - (2,489)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12A318 91,557 71,462 9,553 73 (28 446) 15,673 159,872
Charges/(Credited) to profit or loss R/ GEA) - 6,081 - - (11,088) - (5,007)
Charge to other comprehensive income MEEp2ERA 111,346 - - - - - 111,346
Exchange realignment E R B3l (607) (135) (48) - - - (790)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12R318 202,296 77,408 9,505 3 (39,534) 15,673 265,421
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2019, the Group had a total amount
of unused tax losses of approximately HKD797,389,000
(2018: HKD565,660,000) arise from different group entities,
which were available to offset against their respective
future assessable profits. To the extent of approximately
HKD239,600,000 (2018: HKD172,400,000) in respect of
the unused tax losses was recognised as deferred tax assets
at 31 December 2019. During the year, the Group had
recognised deferred tax assets arising from the unused tax
losses of approximately HKD11,088,000 and did not write-
off or impaired the balance of deferred tax assets. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had utilised the
deferred tax assets arising from the unused tax losses of
approximately HKD745,000 and also did not write off or
impaired the balance of deferred tax assets.

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policy as
set out in Note 4(N) to the consolidated statements, the
Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of the remaining unused tax losses of approximately
HKD557,789,000 (2018: HKD393,260,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of certain group
entities against which the unused tax losses can be utilised
available in the relevant tax jurisdictions. All of the amount of
unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely except
for those arising from the PRC subsidiaries of approximately
HKD335,022,000 (2018: HKD225,345,000) which may be
carried forward for five years from the initial recognition date.

9. IBEHIE (&)

2019 12A31IH - AEERH AW
18 &5 18 49797,389,0007% 7T (20184 :
565,660,000/ 7T ) * B A & E &) T [F E §2
EA A HIEERRERTOER - SEAO
239,600,000/ 7T (20184 : 172,400,000/
TC) B R E) A B TR 5 1B 20194 12 A 31 H
ERRAR/BRERBEE RNER AREH
AREBAREBEEERRSREREEEN
©EAAYA11,088,000/8 7T » L&A ERITL A Ml
BRORIE - 20185 12 A31HF A - A& [H
M AR AE 77 T8 B EE #)745,00078 7T © Itk 45 8
T8 A MK Sr A

BIRA S E &S EE (FFFE4AN)) - &
#R B 7K B) A 754 78 &5 18 49557,789,0007% 7T
(2018 : 393,260,000/ 7T ) T~ e R AR IEIE
MEE - ARANEEE LA LEE QT
RIRHOE AR E - Bt - SARETE LN A
AR RN RN AE B RS AHIEEE

Bk B B O B B8 R B P EE AR B AR B R IA -

#9335,022,0007% 7T (2018 : 225,345,000/
TU) REER SRR A A AE A E A
REY M IAE R A] ER A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #; 2019412831 H [t F &

30. BANK BORROWINGS AND BANK 30. SRITERRERITEX
OVERDRAFTS
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFH#IT FHET
Current portion REE S
Secured variable interest-rate bank borrowings i /& ¥ 8 | % 1 5 1 1
that are repayable: HITEFRAER
— Within one year —R—FREE 198,822 307,026

Unsecured variable interest-rate bank overdrafts Fff 75 i B 1| 2= ¢ 4 45 #

that are repayable: RITBZ AN
— On demand —REKEE 7,804 6,461
206,626 313,487
Non-current portion FERENER
Secured variable interest-rate bank borrowings i & ¥ B Fl = 19 5 H 18
that are repayable: IRITERAR
— Over one year but within two years —ZR—FERBEB_F 1,108,669 207,714
— Over two years but within five years —ZR_FERBBARF 103,410 766,314
1,212,079 974,028
Total BN 1,418,705 1,287,515
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30. BANK BORROWINGS AND BANK

OVERDRAFTS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2019, the Group had secured variable
interest-rate bank borrowings, which carried at interest
rates ranged from approximately 4.10% to 6.03%
(2018: 2.38% to 5.94%) per annum. The weighted
average effective interest rate charged during the year
was approximately 4.7% (2018: 4.0%) per annum. The
carrying amount of bank borrowings of approximately
HKD1,410,901,000 (2018: HKD1,281,054,000) was
secured by mortgages over certain of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings, investment properties, right-of-use
assets (2018: prepaid lease payments) and restricted
bank deposits, with the respective carrying amounts of
approximately HKD282,000,000, HKD1,314,428,000,
HKD269,063,000 and HKD37,174,000 (2018:
HKD273,000,000, HKD1,305,971,000, HKD281,470,000
and HKD31,396,000) to various banks in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had unsecured variable
interest-rate bank overdrafts, which carried at interest rate of
4.75 (2018: 4.75%) per annum and repayable on demand to
a bank in Hong Kong.

At 31 December 2019, the Group was offered banking
facilities of approximately HKD1,416,004,000 (2018:
HKD1,409,409,000) and HKD10,000,000 (2018:
HKD10,000,000) for the usage of bank borrowings and
bank overdrafts by the Group. The Group had utilised
the banking facilities to the extent of 1,410,901,000
(2018: HKD1,281,054,000) and HKD7,804,000 (2018:
HKD6,461,000) used as bank borrowings and bank
overdrafts respectively.

At 31 December 2019, the remaining undrawn
banking facilities of approximately HKD5,103,000
(2018: HKD128,355,000) and HKD2,196,000 (2018:
HKD3,539,000) for the usage of bank borrowings and bank
overdrafts, which were both available either for the usage of
daily operating activities or to settle capital commitments in
the future.
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30. RITEMRMITER ()

M2019F12A318 A& EMEFEH A
EMBEBETEF FRNEINTR
4.10%%6.03% (20184 : B F2.38% =
5.94% ) < RITE R Z B BINE T FF| =
) 54.7% (20185 1 4.0% ) < RITERMER
T B (& #) &1,410,901,0005% 7T (20184 :
1,281,054,000/ 70) A S B F LA E +
HAGEEY)  REYE  FRAREE (2018
FIBAHEEFE) MZREIEITFERIK
FRIZE K 38 - BR [ (B {E 49 ./5282,000,0007%
7L+ 1,314,428,0007% 7T+ 269,063,000/ 7T
37,174,000/ 7t (2018: 273,000,000/
7T+ 1,305,971,000/% Jt * 281,470,000 7T
531,396,000 7T ) 45 B B A B #) 2 K iR
7o

HR2019F12A31H - REEM A 28 8 X
FEIIRIRTTIE S F 7K B4.75%(2018:
4.75%)WIR BSREEBHREBEBH—KBIT-

R2019F 128318 " AEEE L FTHR
1TEEE #91,416,004,00058 jt (2018 :
1,409,409,000) & # 7£10,000,000#
7L (20184 : 10,000,000/ 7t ) % B B
ERTEFNBTEZT - AEEHEH
A #) FA1,410,901,000/% T (20184 :
1,281,054,0007% 7t ) K& 7,084,000/% 7T
(2018%F : 6,461,000/%& 7T) WIIR1TI= B A 1F
WITERRBITES -

2019512 A31 R - HERKIARE B EVIRTT
Bt & 5,103,0007% 7T (20184 : 128,355,000
78 7T ) M12,196,0007% 7T (2018%F : 3,539,000
BIT) AR IRITERMIRITE S - BEAI LAF
REFEZLEHNARERNE R A
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31. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

31. EftRERE

2018
HKD’000
FH&IT

Total future minimum lease payments fall due: RIEKRKBER (T485F:
Within one year A —F R 5 A 149
In the second to fifth years R-ERFEE 582
731
Less: Total future interest expenses W REEENRRBERSE (80)
Present value of finance lease payables [EMREREAERNIRE 651

Present value of minimum lease payments fall due:

Within one year
In the second to fifth years

Less: Portion classified as current liabilities

Portion classified as non-current liabilities

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
entered into a finance lease contract for leasing a motor
vehicle classified as property, plant and equipment of
approximately HKD773,000. At the end of lease term, the
Group has an option to purchase the leased motor vehicle
at a price that is expected to be sufficiently lower than the

RERKAERENIRE:
R—F A2

RE_EFDFIH

B D BAREAEEMD

DERIERBDAENED

fair value of the leased motor vehicle for it to be reasonably IR

certain to exercise the option.
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31.

32.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, the finance lease payable bore
at a fixed interest rate of 2.5% per annum. The weighted
average interest rate and liquidity risk arise from the finance
lease payables are disclosed in Note 39(B)(iv) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The balance of finance lease payables is secured by the
underlying motor vehicle and the right to use the leased
motor vehicle will be reverted to the lessor in the event of
default of repayment by the Group.

Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January
2019, the carrying amount of finance lease payables
of approximately HKD651,000 was reclassified to lease
liabilities and subsequently recognised the interest expenses
of approximately HKD29,000 in profit or loss arising from
the amortisation of lease liabilities in accordance with the
remaining lease term of motor vehicle during the year.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 by using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets at the
amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
existing lease contracts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position immediately before 1 January
2019.

The comparative information is not restated and continued to
be reported under HKAS 17 and the related interpretations
as permitted by the specific transition provisions of HKFRS
16 as further disclosed in Note 2(A) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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2018512 H31H - Eft R & SR EE
MEEE BRFNER2.5% - AEBE RN
BEMENAXMEFHERRBDESR
RE 4R B B R M EE39(B)(iv) ©

MEHERNFKANSRBEL AN TERE
e RASKAREBRER HEEEN
RREES THBEA-

R2019F1AIRBERRABTEM B RS
EHIEIGHL  BNBEHENREED
651,000 TEFM DB REEAE FERIR
BRENFSREENREFHERERED
A B zm #) F 8 3 H #929,0008 7T

FEHRE

AEBERA T BEMBRE LR F1657E
ERTH BB TAYL HEBN2019F1A18 /)
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 32. FEFHHE (48)
The following table shows the total remaining future RTIRABRT A RBENECEHES R
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating TARRFGHOREHEEFRE  DAREEHRD
lease contracts, being the Group’s lease liabilities at the date 20191 A1HM2019F 12 A31 B & Xk A
of initial adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 and 31 BV BmEEAEISHEENEAEARE:
December 2019, which were fall due as follows: ERHAMT:
31 December 2019 1 January 2019
2019412H31H 20191 AH1H
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
=K & =K & ®ERE =ERE
HnEn HERIE HEM & HIE
MIERE a%n FIBBE AN
HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Within one year A—FER 11,692 12,493 12,990 13,880
Over one year but ZR—F
within two years BREBBE-F 9,419 10,755 11,692 13,350
Over two years but ZR
within five years BRBBRE 33,018 46,002 29,964 41,747
Qver five years ZHRAF 130,770 299,996 130,822 331,084
173,207 356,753 172,478 386,181
184,899 369,246 185,468 400,061
Less: Total future B R R A B,
interest expenses B3 (184,347) (214,593)
Present value of lease liabilites & &&MRE 184,899 185,468
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 32. EfHHEE (&)
The reconciliation of lease liabilities recognised in the H2019%1 A1H K20194F12 A31 B & iR
consolidated statement of financial position at the date of BEBYBREELFEIHFRERE M
initial adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 and 31 MR RERNHEGBLOT
December 2019 were as follows:
Property,
plant and
Buildings equipment Total
gF R s
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FAET FHEIT FHET
At 1 January 2019 720191 A1H 184,817 651 185,468
Additions (Note 16) wE (M5ELe) 1,614 - 1,614
Interest expenses B 12,733 29 12,762
Lease payments HEFHmE (11,367) (149) (11,516)
Exchange realignment M & 7 (3,429) - (3,429)
At 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H 184,368 531 184,899
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 M & XM sE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #; 2019412831 H [t F &

32.

33.

LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The present value of remaining future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating lease contracts is
analysed as follows:

32. EMHE (&)

TR BN R ETHES R T RSB ARREK
EHEENFENREDTDT

2019
HKD’000
FHET
Current liabilities mEAE 11,692
Non-current liabilities EREAR 173,207
184,899
AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED PARTY 33. FEf— IR A BIRIE
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
T Tt
At 31 December M12H31H 112 10,541

As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, the amount due to
a related company, which is commonly controlled by Mr.
Cheng, who act as Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
a substantial shareholder of the Company, which was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

20184 K20194F12 31 R L A A = &
NARBER BFEATELRETERRE
SEAE P AR — R A F - B R
BRAEER 2R RAIRBRER -
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subscription rights attached with the bonus warrants to subscribe
shares at subscription price of HKD1.00 per warrant share and
therefore approximately 192,000 units (2018: 3,222,000 units) of
ordinary shares was thereby issued by the Company and a total of
approximately HKD19,000 and HKD173,000 (2018: HKD322,000 and
HKD2,900,000) were credited to share capital and share premium

account respectively.

261 2019F k&

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. X
Number of Nominal
shares value
e B miE
(‘000) HKD’000
(Fr) FET
Authorised: ERE:
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each R EEO. 105 T /Y
(2018: HKDO. 10 each) ZEAR (2018 -
AR ETEO. 1078 T )
At 1 January 2018, M2018F1H1H »
31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019 2018F12H318 &
2019412 H31H 20,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRERE:
Ordinary shares of HKDO.10 each AR EEO. 108 T #Y
(2018: HKDO. 10 each) ZER (2018 -
ZRETEO. 10T )
At 1 January 2018 PR2018%F1A1H 2,955,812 295,581
Exercise of warrants (Note i) TR RARRERE (W ati) 3,222 322
Exercise of share options (Note i) TR BEPSLRE (M i) 15,000 1,500
At 31 December 2018 M20184 124318 2,974,034 297,403
Exercise of warrants (Note i) T RARRERE (A ati) 192 19
At 31 December 2019 20194 12A31H 2,974,226 297,422
Notes: Wit -
(i) During the year, the qualifying shareholders had exercised their (i) REEN GEBRRRZSHBEARRMHER

— DR AE R BT BT R
#(FRUET) A 1t £9192,0000% (20184 :
3,222,00088) AR A BEITH T BB HL
19,000 7T F1173,000/# 7T.(2018%4 : 322,000/
7T 12,900,000/ 7T ) 7 Bl 5T A B& A8 K A% 17 i 1B

BE -
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34.

35.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2018, a total number
of 15,000,000 share options was exercised to subscribe for
15,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company, at an aggregate cash
consideration, before share-based payment expenses of approximately
HKD12,300,000, of which HKD1,500,000 and HKD10,800,000 were
credited to share capital and share premium account respectively.
Upon the exercise of share options, approximately HKD1,024,000 was
transferred from the share options reserve to share premium account
accordingly.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 10 June 2011,
have approved and adopted a share option scheme (the

the shareholders of the Company

“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing eligible participants
with the opportunity to acquire the proprietary interests of
the Company. The Scheme aims to encourage the eligible
participants to work towards to enhance the value of shares
of the Company for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. All of the directors of the Company,
full-time employees and any other persons within the Group
who, at the sole discretion of the board of directors of the
Company, have contributed to the Group, are eligible to
participate in the Scheme.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the total number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all share
options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the aggregate shares of the
Company for issue on the date of adoption of the Scheme.
Share options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and any other share option scheme adopted by the
Company will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the 10% limit.
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34.

35.

B (48)
pisE: ()

(i) H2018%12A318 1t & F - #£A15,000, ooo
B AR 48 77 i B % % LA 52 B815,000,000% A8 A
L@k BeRE HBRARG X %ﬁﬁﬁz
AT £ #912,300,0007% 7t + £ /11,500,000 7T 1
10,800,000/ 7T 7 BlJaE A BR AR R AR 1 )3 (B R o B
B RERE 1T 1% - 491,024,000/ TT B B B I HE R
BEEBEEROEER

R B HEST 2

20116 A10R » A2 A BRI A M ER A
BROER 8 ([%aH8))  EERHEE T

BERSEENSARRNE AN - WE
B2RENRARBDNEBRROEEN GRS
K5 BORESARA REBRMDEEE P
BEARRER 2BEENMEZEZTEHIER
RELSKEHAREE BB EAA
SEREMATHTEERSEZTE -

IR 8 R aT 8l TR s T E At
ZAN/NIRE S meﬁﬁﬂx%?riwﬁﬂ%?*ﬂjmﬁﬁ
BERERAUERTORBELRRN &
HTABBAR TJNm MazEt A BIME
BITHRRM W10% - BIRERIEZA 8 M
N ER AR (] E A BB AR 81 AR A
AT AL0% LR 2 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

With the approval of the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the Company may renew the 10% limit
at any time provided that the total number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon the exercise of all of
the share options to be granted under the Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company shall
not exceed 10% of shares of the Company for issue on the
date of approval of the renewed limit. For the share options
previously granted under the Scheme and any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the renewed limit.

The board of directors of the Company may, with the
approval of the shareholders of the Company, grant the share
options in excess of the 10% limit to the eligible participants.
In such situation, the Company is required to issue a circular
to the shareholders containing a generic description of the
eligible participants who may be granted such share options,
the number and terms of such share options to be granted
and the purpose of granting such share options to the
eligible participants with an explanation of how the terms of
the share options will serve the purpose. The total number
of shares of the Company which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme or any other share option
scheme adopted by the Company shall not exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company for the issue from time to time.
No share options may be granted under the Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company if it will
result the limit to be exceeded.
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35. FEIRHERTEI (&)

EEARBBRRERFASNAE AR
AR EBRESS TR THBREE2ERT
ETOARRBBRDEE TEBBEEN
HEFwN A B T E10%0 R TR EW
R BT 10% M0 R EE - FT A AN 2 RIERT
HEFENRENM AR E KM
H A BEEE TEER THBER
R TRAAGTE -

ARBNEFEEARBBROFRET
AHEBBIORNREB TR TEREREE
RAL - FERAERT  RNRRBARGE T ]
RETARHNAHAIER TRRENAER
AL AETEREOEE RERRET
BACER B EH AL WREMZE
P E S E B 80 - 1T AT A B I
K e B B v et 8 R AT E b AE B e BB AR v
AP T AREITEMNBIREM A R BEEITH
RRBHERN BB T BB AR A
RRREITIRDEN30% © INRGBUGEL10%
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company
in a general meeting with the issue of a circular to
the shareholders specifying the identity of the eligible
participants, the number and terms of the share options to
be granted or previously granted to the eligible participants,
the board of directors of the Company shall not grant any
share options to any eligible participants which, if exercised,
would result the eligible participants becoming entitled to
subscribe for such number of shares as, when aggregated
with the total number of shares of the Company already
issued or to be issued upon the exercise of the share options
granted to the eligible participants (including those exercised
or unexercised share options) under the Scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company for issue on the date of approval.

The period within the share options must be exercised will
be specified by the Company when the share options was
granted. This period must be expired no later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the share options. When the share
options granted, the Company may specify a minimum
period for which share options must be held before it can
be exercised. The offer of share options to be granted may
be accepted within 14 days from the date when the letter
containing the offer is delivered to the eligible participant and
the notional amount payable on such acceptance of share
options to be granted is HKD1.00.

The subscription price of the shares of the Company to be
issued upon the exercise of share options shall be no less
than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediate preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company on
the date of grant. The subscription price of the shares of the
Company will be approved by the board of directors of the
Company at the time when the share options is offered to the
eligible participants.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

No share options was granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled
by the eligible participants in accordance with the Scheme
for both years. No share options may be granted under the
Scheme after the date of the tenth year of anniversary since
the adoption of the Scheme.

Details of the movements of the share options granted to the

35.

RERRHERTEI (&)

REFER LA EBEETE TAERAL
EBRT 176 REKBUB B E-
A IR MR T FR I SREAGE
BB RRE -

MBI ZE2018F12A3IH IEFER - RIEZ

eligible participants under the Scheme for the year ended 31 EREFAERALNERESSFIS
December 2018 was as follows: s
Number of share options
BRENE
Outstanding
Exercise price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding at
per share 1 January during during during 31 December
Participants Date of grant Exercise period HKD 2018 the year the year the year 2018
20184 20184
BRITER 118 12A318
2EAt BTEH s (&) B R 1THE RERRH RERTTHE RERKY R {THE
Directors 18/9/2017 18/9/2017 - 17/9/2018 0.82 6,000,000 - (3,000,000) (3,000,000) -
%
Employees 18/9/2017 18/3/2018 - 17/9/2018 082 15,000,000 - (12,000,000) (3,000,000) -
[E&
21,000,000 - (15,000,000) (6,000,000) -
Weighted average exercise price, HKD MEFHREE (87) 082 NA 082 082 N/A
TR TEA

The total number of shares of the Company available for
issue under the Scheme as at 31 December 2019 was
approximately 892,268,000 shares (2018: 892,210,000)
without any share option that has been granted but not
yet exercised, lapsed or cancelled which represented 30%
(2018: 30%) of the outstanding issued share capital of the
Company at 31 December 2019.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The estimated fair value of the share options granted on 18
September 2017 was approximately HKDO.068 per share
option. The amount of fair value was calculated by using the
Black-Scholes model with Binomial Tree method. The key
inputs of the model were listed as follows:

Share price at grant date HKDO0.82
Exercise price HKDO0.82
Expected volatility 21.207%
Expected life 1 year
Risk-free rate 0.4494%
Expected dividend yield 0.4872%

The volatility assumption, measured at the standard deviation
of the expected share price returns, which was based on a
statistical analysis of daily share prices over the last three
years.

The share options granted to employees on 18 September
2017 and expired on 17 September 2018 was subject to the
following vesting schedule:

35. FEIRHERTEI (&)

MR2017F9A18AE MA B ATH TR
EREET AT EEL AEDERE0.068%5
T o N TEBETMER Z XA = — £F
RATEAFE - BN T2 ABEN
E

g gaul= - L0 iR ] 0.82/8 7T
(B 0.82/8 7T
TEHAR 1@ 21.207%
8 HA 4F Hf 14
7 3 b R 2 0.4494%
TEHARR B K 0.4872%

IR E B R R (R 2 5 B R IE R
RV AL =5 A REN R HES
FaAtEB -

MR2017F9A18H % F1& B R F2018F9 A
178 ERNBREEZ AT HBRRERR
PR

Maximum number
of share options

exercisable
REZ0{T{#
Vesting schedule EEEER RS E
From 18 March 2018 to 17 September 2018 2018F3H18H £2018%F9A17H 100%

No vesting conditions was set for the share options granted
to the directors of the Company on 18 September 2017 and
expired on 17 September 2018.

On 18 March 2018, the fair value of share options granted
to the employees is recognised as employee cost in profit
or loss, with a corresponding increase in share options
reserve over the relevant vesting periods. The Group
recognised share-based payment expenses of approximately
HKD328,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 in
relation to the fair value of share options at HKDO.068 per
share option granted by the Company on 18 September
2017 as disclosed in Note 10(C) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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36. BONUS WARRANTS

On 18 March 2016, the board of directors of the Company
resolved to propose the issue of bonus warrants to the
qualifying shareholders on the basis of one warrant for every
five existing issued shares held on the record date (i.e. 17
June 2016).

On 6 July 2016, the Company had issued a total of
approximately 539,733,000 units of warrants. Each
warrant carries a subscription right entitled the qualifying
shareholders to subscribe in cash for the warrant share at the
initial subscription price of HKD1.00 per warrant share to be
issued at approximately HKD539,733,000 units of warrant
shares by the Company upon the exercise of subscription
rights in full attached with such issue of bonus warrant. The
warrants were exercisable at any time during the period of
three commencing from the date of the first issue of the
warrants i.e. 6 July 2016 to 5 July 2019. Details of the issue
of bonus warrants was disclosed in the Company’s circular
dated 29 April 2016.

During the year, the qualifying shareholders had exercised
a total number of approximately 192,000 units (2018:
3,222,000 units) of warrants at the exercise price of
HKD1.00 (2018: HKD1.00) per warrant, and therefore of
approximately 192,000 units (2018: 3,222,000 units) of
ordinary shares was thereby issued by the Company. As a
result, a total of approximately HKD19,000 and HKD173,000
(2018: HKD322,000 and HKD2,900,000) were credited to
share capital and share premium account respectively.

On 5 July 2019, the three years exercise period of the bonus

warrants were lapsed, and no outstanding bonus warrants as
at 31 December 2019.

267

36.

AR LB 4

H20169F3 A18H AR R AHEHIZNT
$% B H (BN2016F6 8170 ) B AR
R —DRBAET 2 B ERITAFRR
HERE o

201647 A6 8 - #539,733,00017 52 f% 1
BREBET-RABTTERBEEK BT
MARRER SHRBEZBTERSS
ANEFILRSRE—RROD VLPREE
A8 R%1.007% 7T (#9539,733,0007% 7T 9 32
MRS ) o FRRRE FE W] 1A 57T B HA201647
A6H ZE201947 A5 A BER1T{E - A REALF
RRIEE 2 BN AR F A A20165F4 A
298 2 3 #E 55 o

X

FR ARARNEERRRIZITEES
R HERE .00 T (20185 : ETTL) 171k
& £ #9192,00017 (20184 : 3,222,00013
R A N A E B #1749192,000
I & AR (2018%F : 3,222,000 E AR ) °
Il + £919,0007% 7t 5 173,0007% 7T (2018
F £ 322,0007% 7T %2.2,900,000/% 7T ) £ 4 5
AR Ko B £ i (B B

=S
Y

op
S (s

Vi

G

EY
=
8

&

=

R2019%7 A5H B A MR EEN =
FITFHBE AR Btk 20194 12A31
B A AT 4T R IR FE 25 o

2019 [E &



For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

37. RESERVES 37. f#iE
Share
Share Contributed options Retained

The Company level premium surplus reserve profits Total
FATE"E i (E BORG  BRERE BERH @t
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TEL TEL FEL TEL TEL
At 1 January 2018 M2018F1A1H 1,056,760 586,774 1,102 148,391 1,793,027
Share-based payment expenses PR E R R - - 328 - 328
Exercise of share options (Note 35)  7T{E BERRIE (4/7#35) 11,824 - (1,024) - 10,800
Lapse of share options (Note 35) BRERY (H2335) - - (406) 406 -
Exercise of warrants (Note 36) 1T R ER (Hr7236) 2,900 - - - 2,900
Loss for the year FEBE - - - (40,854) (40,854)
Dividend paid (Note 12) BRE (H7£12) - - - (14,810) (14,810)

At 31 December 2018 and #2018F12A318 &

1 January 2019 (Note) 20191818 (#:2) 1,071,484 586,774 - 93,133 1,751,391
Exercise of warrants (Note 36) TRk iERE (17:236) 173 - - - 173
Profit for the year FERF - - - 3,294 3,294
Dividend paid (Note 12) BRRE (H312) - - - (35,690) (35,690)
At 31 December 2019 W2019F12A31H 1,071,657 586,774 - 60,737 1,719,168

Note: The management concluded that the adoption of HKFRS 16 had no
material impact on the opening balance of retained profits as of 1
January 2019.

i ERECHMERERBBMBHREELFL6
SR R2019F 1 A1 A & 17 M HI V) 4 i 1) 57
2 ARARBERTE-
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37. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 37. fitits (48)
The following describes the nature and purpose of each AT A AR R A ARG DT S
reserve within the equity attributable to owners of the EHMERE /-
Company:

Name of reserve

HiEEHE

Nature and purpose of reserve

fEEMEEINEN

Contributed surplus

Share premium
gl

Properties revaluation reserve

MEREGFHE

Share options reserve

B

Translation reserve

[ (1

Contributed surplus of approximately HKD63,561,000 represents the excess of fair
value of shares of the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the shares
of the Company issued for the acquisition at the time of the group reorganisation
on 9 February 1995. The remaining balance of approximately HKD523,213,000
represents the implementation of capital reduction in 2012 in connection with the
par value of each existing share as if HKDO.50 each in the issued capital of the
Company was reduced by HKDO.40 each.

B B & #24963,561,0007% 7T o 15 2 W I B 2 Bl AR ) & T (B (B 701995
F2ROB KB EH 2 B RS BITH AR AR BRE B 8 Z 78 - FIERAEERAY
523,213,000/ 7T Jh 15 20124 B AR A EIR - #R 1t - AN R R 2 A TARA S
A% {E0.5078 7T » Al IR 3R A I 17 [ E & AR EIR0.4078 7T -

A premium amount subscribed for the shares of the Company in excess of the
nominal value of the shares of the Company and any excess of consideration shares
of the Company issued over the carrying amount of the acquired non-controlling
interests, less the amount of expenses incurred in connection with the issue.
RERACHBELEE RMEAEBTREROOFIEBBEWEIFERER
FREEMREEITHBNER -

Surplus/(deficit) arising on revaluation of properties (other than investment
properties) and the accumulated balance is not distributable.
ME(REMERINEHREENRE (BE)  RERFTREEBE2BESRET AR
AT 5 °

Accumulated share-based payment expenses recognised upon the share options
granted to the eligible participants over the vesting period.
REBIHERTREE ZBRERR L Rt

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) arise from translation of net assets of foreign
operations into the presentation currency of the Company at the end of reporting
period.

HEAFEREMRNEGINEBEEFERZINEBEENNE(BE) -
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37. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 37. fitits (48)
Name of reserve Nature and purpose of reserve
REEE fEfEMEEf B8
Statutory reserve Appropriation of 10% of statutory profit arise from the Company’s subsidiary in
VETE R Taiwan each year to a non-distributable fund until its balance has reached the paid-

up share capital as required by the laws and regulations of Taiwan.
REMABEREETHATE B BMEBARMNEMNEERRIONERE T H
RESKRPEIINEGEMEINCHERERL -

Retained profits Accumulated net gains and losses recognised in profit or loss.

REB AT RIBm AR Rt e R E 18 F5E -

The above reserves and funds cannot be used for any FifEESREE TN ESRERERKI B AN
purposes other than those for which they are created. Details WETHAZ BERREHEEHNFEERN
of the movements of the Group’s reserves are disclosed in REEREBEEREY -

the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. EXEEE

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for its shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access
to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholders’ return that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure to reduce cost of capital and risks associated
with each class of capital, including amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares, raising new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debts in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group’s overall strategy and capital structure remained
similar against the prior year.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of net
debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose, the net debt is defined
as total debt (which includes trade and other payables,
amount due to a related party, finance lease payables, lease
liabilities, bank borrowings, bank overdrafts and loan from
non-controlling interests), less bank balances and cash and
restricted bank deposits. Total equity attributable to owners of
the Company comprises of share capital and reserves.

AREEIRAANEE B IZLMBEKK
TR BN E QMRS LG EAEE
F AT 08 1 8 H AR SR K 024 A1
# AT -

AEEEBREHEEMEEEEANGEEAN
SEHESERRT REEELERRE U
HERESNRRLE®R (BEKFRS A6
WK O R ) BR8N E AHOR AT KRB
M2 2B FE LHERRELE
TRE ERREEAKAMESREE
AEREENRAR BRI MERENR
B ABRREER  BITHR SRIHH
BEHEME R EEENRBLOBER N E
LR A ETRS - 2R B R BB EEEME NG
B —FE L

AEBERNFABRSLXETHEENE
Bt s ARBREGHKFRE AP
BRESREMENER BN —2EER
ARE EMNREEE HEAE AR
TER R|RITEX  KREFERERER
MBRRITEBR MRS R ZRBIRITFR
ARBHEE ARIGHERHAAAKE D (8
FREBRTRARESRFHE) -
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

The Group’s net debt-to-equity ratios at 31 December 2018
and 2019 and the date of transition to HKFRS 16 at 1
January 2019 were as follows:

38. EXREGER (§)

20184 K 2019512 A31 R LA R BB 1%
HEEAFE165E B H2019F1 /818
AEENKHBFEERSLETNOT:

31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
20194 20194 20184
12A31H 1H1H 12H31H
HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD’000
F#ERx FHET FHET
Trade and other payables B REMEMERER 309,054 213,677 231,908
Amount due to a related party N il 2L NG E ] 112 10,541 10,541
Finance lease payables FERNmERE - - 651
Lease liabilities HEarE 184,899 185,468 -
Bank borrowings RITER 1,410,901 1,281,054 1,281,054
Bank overdrafts RITEZ 7,804 6,461 6,461
Loan from non-controlling interests 2k & JE1E IR E R B R 2,114 9,249 9,249
Total debt wEE 1,914,884 1,706,450 1,539,364
Less: B
Bank balances and cash RITHEM MR (129,791) (131,590) (131,590)
Restricted bank deposits SIRAIRITER (40,530) (34,814) (34,814)
Net debt &5 FE 1,744,563 1,540,046 1,373,460
Total equity attributable to RARIHEE ANEGER
owners of the Company 2,917,487 2,570,828 2,570,828
Net debt-to-equity ratio FREERILE 60% 60% 53%

ARAEREREMOF AT 2 —L7E
BT EBESRNE (MEER) R
SERDESEFR KBH—TKTHT
BAS REFSESREE MRER)
AT HABENEEN RGN 8
183,000,000/ 7T 5 X B B B R B
5% AREE AL LRBAFERDE
M0 EE AR NEETRERZM
BAAMADES ARREH SR
DESEF

One of the Company’s subsidiaries registered with the
SFC is required to comply with the minimum liquid capital
requirement under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Financial Resources) Rules (the “SF(FR)R”) to maintain
a certain level of liquid capital, which is calculated based
on the assets and liabilities adjusted as determined by the
SF(FR)R, in excess of HKD3,000,000 or 5% of its total
adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher and also maintain a
20% buffer of its required liquid capital. The directors of the
Company monitor, on a daily basis, the liquid capital of that
subsidiary to ensure that it meets the minimum liquid capital
requirement.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

39.&RTH

The following table shows the carrying amount and

fair value of financial instruments, which included the

TRINEERTE (BEEREENR
TRLBE) 85 E2018F k2019124

financial assets and financial liabilities at 31 December SIEMEEEERAFEE:
2018 and 2019 :
2019 2018
Carrying amount Fair value | Carrying amount Fair value
fRE(E AFEE EmE AEEE
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FET TRL AL
Financial assets: SHEE:
At fair value through profit o loss: BATEIIABS:
— Listed equity securities in Hong Kong — & 78 - i KA 55 66,012 66,012 6,676 6,676
- Unlisted equity investment outside ~ —&E3EINE L 174,941 174,941 65,777 65,777
Hong Kong BRAES
At amortised cost: g £E N
— Trade and other receivables - B REME WE?A 136,821  (Note) (Hfit) 461,808 (Note) (fifzt)
— Amounts due from joint ventures ~ —FEMRA R E R 10,048  (Note) (Hst) 8170  (Note) (H1:F)
— Amount due from an associate — ek — Fﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%m 18,081  (Note) (Hat) 35343 (Note) (fiit)
— Advances to customers in -RETRELRBERF 122,648  (Note) (M) 144,145 (Note) (Hfzt)
margin financing 280
— Loans receivable —-EWER 167,193  (Note) (Hizt) 166,088 (Note) (#1it)
— Restricted bank deposits —RRHRITER 40,530  (Note) (Hi#) 34814 (Note) (Hizt)
— Bank balances and cash —-RITEBEEE 143,206  (Note) (Hfit) 147,351 (Note) (H1iZ)
Financial liabilities: SHEME:
At amortised cost: g $E N
— Trade and other payables -BHRAMERER 298,710  (Note) (HizE) 216,059 (Note) (Hi7t)
— Amount due to a related party N il NEIEN 112 (Note) (H52) 10541 (Note) (ffit)
— Bank borrowings -HAER 1,410,901  (Note) (Hi7E) 1,281,054 (Note) (1)
— Bank overdrafts —HFITEX 7,804 (Note) (Hizt) 6,461 (Note) (Hiz#)
— Loan from non-controlling interests ~ — 3K B EFERR I 25 & X 2,114 (Note) (Hfit) 9,249 (Note) (H1iF)
— Finance lease payable -ENRERE - (Note) (Hfiz) 651 (Note) (H1it)

Note: The directors of the Company considered that the carrying

amounts of those financial instruments measured at amortised
cost were approximate to their fair value on the grounds that
either of their maturity periods are short or their effective
interest rates for those interest-bearing financial assets
and financial liabilities as disclosed in Note 39(B)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements were approximately to the
relevant discount rates used to reflect the credit risks of the

borrowers or the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 2019.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The Group's financial instruments as defined in Note
4(Q) to the consolidated financial statements included
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
trade and other receivables, amounts due from joint
ventures, amount due from an associate, advances
to customers in margin financing, loans receivable,
restricted bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, amount due to a related
party, bank borrowings, bank overdrafts, loan from
non-controlling interests and finance lease payables.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes to the consolidated financial
statements. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The
policies and practices on how to mitigate these risks
are further disclosed as below. The Group actively
and regularly reviews and manages these exposures
to ensure appropriate policies and practices are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i)  Foreign currency risk

At 31 December 2018 and 2019, several
principal subsidiaries of the Company are
exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases which give rise
to monetary assets and monetary liabilities that
are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency
of those subsidiaries. Those currencies giving
rise to such risk are primarily those monetary
assets and monetary liabilities denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and united States dollars
(“UsD”).

39. £RT R (&)

TEENEZEERITA (EREREE
BRI TE4(Q)) BIER A FET
ANEBERNERMEE BH RHAMBK
R ERAEDERE B —E
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%zﬂﬁ‘ﬁf FTRESHER
Py BKER ZBRHERITT
FORMITEBREES BHREME
MR B —HEEB AR ZE R
TEF RITEZRRE TR ER
EFREMNRERE

tE R T ANFEREREE IS
mEMARE-EBLESHTAEA
KRR BRSNS R - R R ER - F
ERR - - REBEEREREEAERR
% RS I 5 B e O BRI R R B
TR 3 o AN S B AR Rt f2 5F B 28457
BRI E R R R EA U R E
EEHBR R IEE -

(i) SMEREEE
R20184F 2019412 A31H
AEEMETZEMNBRAAN
HERBEEE M ARERTD
IAZREE B Th 82 5 B DASNEY HE 3
IR 5 EEAINEEHBERE
BEMEYEE SAEEET
SNEBER - S| R ERR R A E
FEUARYE ([RMB ) F1ETT
(TUSDDFHEMEBEBEENE
=R
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

39. £RT R (&)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) IMERRE ()
The Group did not entered into any financial RAREZRAAREE W ARE
derivatives to hedge against the foreign currency TR B IS R INEE DT &
risk as in the view of the directors of the BERG HAKEME BRI
Company, the associated foreign currency risk is AN RERBURE DT - 187
not financially significant to the Group based on SNERIBRARE NS B S
the following sensitivity analysis for both years. WAEKE R E -
At 31 December 2018 and 2019, the carrying R20184F &20194F12H31H
amounts of those monetary assets and monetary W AARRATE g &R ([
liabilities of those subsidiaries that were TR EE (AITAR
denominated in RMB which may exposed the B | s AN E EERINE BB
Group to foreign currency risk were as follows: s
Liabilities Assets
=15 BE
2019 2018 2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FET FET FET
RMB AR 10,504 36,833 11,672 9,678
Sensitivity analysis B E ST
The Group is mainly exposed to possible AEBFEAZEL BILE
change of foreign of exchange rate in USD/ KA gL R B R MR o AT - BANE
HKD. However, the foreign currency risk is not TUIE M N ESER I oM - SNEE
financially significant as HKD is pegged to USD BB SRR E o
for both years.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% decrease in HKD against
RMB. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting the foreign currency risk internally
to key management personal and represents
the Group’s management assessment of the
reasonable possible change of foreign exchange
rates in the foreseeable future. The sensitivity
analysis includes only those monetary assets
and liabilities that are denominated in foreign
currencies exposed the Group to foreign
currency risk, with the adjustments arising from
their translation at the end of reporting period
for a 5% change determinated in the possible
change of foreign currency rate. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit for
the year, net of tax, and retained profits when
RMB strengthens 5% against HKD. For a 5%
weakening of RMB against HKD, there would be
an equal and opposite impact against the profit
for the year and the balances shown below would
be negative.

For presentation purposes, the amounts of
exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, being
translated using the spot rate at the year-ended
date.

39. £RT R (&)

(i)

SRR (%)

BRESIT ()
TRFDAEEHBETHLAR
e 5% B 2 BRAE - REB A
TEERABERINERBFT
BZHRELEE% REKE
BEHIINEERRRKNE E
BEEB Z T EH - RBEEDIWN
EBRENIINEAFEZE¥IER
BEREE  WRFRIZINERE
RIEHE%F B BRI E - T 5
FHERRNFRNARE LB TH
1B5%FFBR R 1% 55 ) &2 BB 13 33 F)
R B ARENETIZE%
B AR EAEAEBHEFEE
MAEERRZ L AT
ABEH-

FLE B &Y - EERER S FEIA

ST

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFH#IT FHET
Increase/(decrease) in profit F R
for the year, net of tax (BL) - BRELE 49 (1,134)

The above sensitivity analysis was determined
by assuming that the possible change of foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the end of
reporting period and had been applied to those
subsidiaries with foreign currency risk exposure
in existence, and that all other risk variables, in
particular the interest rates, remained constant
for both years.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The stated changes represent the Group’s
management assessment of the reasonably
possible change of foreign exchange rates for
the year. Results of the sensitivity analysis as
presented in the above table represented an
aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each
of the group entities’ profit for the year, net of tax,
which are measured in their respective functional
currencies, translated into HKD at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of reporting period for
presentation purpose.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the possible
change of foreign exchange rates had been
applied to remeasure those monetary assets
and monetary liabilities held by the Group
which expose to foreign currency risk at the end
of reporting period, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the Group
which are denominated in a currency other than
the functional currencies of the lender or the

borrower.
The key assumptions and methodologies used in

the sensitivity analysis is performed on the same
basis for the prior year.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market
interest rates.

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk arises primarily from fixed interest-rate bank
deposits and loans receivable. The directors of
the Company consider that the associated fair
value interest rate risk is not financially significant
as both bank deposits and loans receivable are
within short maturity periods for both years.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk arises from variable interest-rate
bank deposits, bank overdrafts, advances to
customers in margin financing, bank borrowings,
finance lease payable and lease liabilities. It is
the Group's policy to keep certain of the bank
deposits at floating interest rates in order to
minimise the associated fair value interest rate
risk for both years.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the possible change of Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) and
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) arising
from those bank overdrafts and bank borrowings
denominated HKD, USD and RMB.

The Group did not enter into any interest rate
swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
The Group’s management monitors the Group’s
exposure on ongoing basis.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analyses

The sensitivity analysis below indicates the
instantaneous change in profit for the year, net
of tax, and retained profits that would arise by
assuming that the changes in the interest rates
had occurred at the end of reporting period and
had been applied to remeasure those interest-
bearing financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate
risk at the end of reporting period. In respect
of the exposure of cash flow interest rate risk
arising from variable interest-rate financial
instruments held by the Group at the end of
reporting period, the impact on the profit for the
year, net of tax, and retained profits is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest expenses or
income of such a change of interest rates.

The key assumptions and methodologies used in
the sensitivity analysis is performed on the same
basis for the prior year.

A 50 basis point increase or decrease used
when reporting the interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
the Group’s management assessment of the
reasonable possible change of interest rates in
the foreseeable future.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

If the interest rates on bank deposits, bank
overdrafts, and advances to customers in
margin financing were 50 basis points (2018:
50 basis points) higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, the profit for the year,
net of tax, and retained profits would increase/
decrease by approximately HKD845,000 (2018:
HKD911,000) attributable to the interest rate risk
exposure on variable interest-rate bank deposits,
bank overdrafts, and advances to customers in
margin financing.

In addition, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings, finance lease payables and lease
liabilites were 50 basis points (2018: 50 basis
points) higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the profit for the year, net of tax,
and retained profits would decrease/increase
by approximately HKD6,662,000 (2018:
HKD5,351,000) attributable to the interest
rate risk exposure on variable interest-rate on
variable-rate bank borrowings, finance lease
payable and lease liabilities.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 30. 2R TR (4)

(iii) ~ Credit risk (i) 15EEfR

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss to the Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade and other receivables, advances
to customers in margin financing and loans
receivable. The Group does not provide any
financial guarantee which would expose the
Group to credit risk for both years.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group’s
management has delegated a team who is
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
on all of trade debtors who required individual
credit evaluations to ensure that follow-up actions
taken immediately to recover overdue debts. To
be specific, these evaluations focus on the trade
debtors’ past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, market value
of pledged securities, and taken into account
information specific to the trade debtors as well
as pertaining to the macroeconomic environment
in which the trade debtors operate ongoing
credit evaluation is performed on the financial
condition of trade debtors. Trade debtors with
balances that are more than a reasonable period
of past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.

Except for the balance of advance to customers
in margin financing and loans receivable, the
Group does not obtain any securities collecterals
from customers. However, the Group regularly
reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debts at the end of reporting
period to ensure that adequate loss allowances
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the credit risk is significantly reduced.

EFERBREERSZHFERE
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(iii) Credit risk (Continued)
Concentration of credit risk

(a)

(b)

Other than financial service segment

The Group had a concentration of credit
risk in relation to trade receivables arise
from the individual characteristics of
trade debtors operate in the segments
other than financial services segment was
approximately 8% (2018: 11%) and 38%
(2018: 40%) of total trade receivables
of these segments were due from their
largest customer and top five customers
respectively. These trade receivables were
mainly with trade debtors with sounded
credit standing or with whom the Group
had no default payment history. The
credit risk was limited because the trade
debtors with good repayment history and
the default risk arise from the market and
country where the trade debtors operate,
also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent.

Financial services segment

Financial services segment has put in
place a well-established credit policy
governing the credit limit granted to
customers. Customers were generally
required to deposit their securities,
properties or other appropriate assets with
the Group as securities to their borrowings.
The credit risks arise from the individual
characteristics of these customers are
regularly monitored with reference to the
realisable values of the securities and
individual credit evaluations. For the
default risk of the market and country
where the trade debtors operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser
extent. For the receivables arise from the
clearing house is at a high credit standing
and the Group’s management does not
expect the counterparty will fail to meet its
obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 30. 2R TR (4)

(i) ~ Credit risk (Continued) (i) EEEE (%)

Concentration of credit risk (Continued) FErEHEE (&)

(b) Financial services segment (Continued) (b) ZBARFEDE ()
The Group had a concentration of credit REBTERZZD 2R
risk in relation to advances to customers HIRBEMER B
in margin financing and loans receivable HREREFHEREE
of this segment was 29% (2018: 24%) Bk AZoBrEmRE
and 57% (2018: 62%) of total receivables )5&57&%}5 B JRE U5 B R

of this segment was due from their
largest customer and top five customers
respectively. These receivables were
mainly arise from the customers with
sounded credit standing or with whom
the Group possessed the ownership over
the borrower's securities, properties or
other financial assets. Details of credit
guality and the maximum exposure to
credit risk of the Group's advances to
customers in margin financing and loans
receivable are set out in Notes 24 and 25
to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

Loss allowance calculation of trade receivables
The Group adopted the simplified approach to
provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for all of the trade receivables balances.
At 31 December 2019, the loss allowance of
trade receivables was determined in the following
provision matrix on the basis of ageing analysis
as disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements. The ECLs below also
incorporated forward-looking information and
groupings of various customers’ segments with
similar loss patterns (i.e. by geographical region,
customer type and rating, and product or service
type) in the ECLs calculations. The calculations
also reflect the probability-weighted outcome,
time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the
reporting date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 30. 2R TH(4)

(i) ~ Credit risk (Continued) (i) EEEE (%)

Loss allowance calculation of trade receivables

B ERRA ARG E

(Continued) (#&)
As at 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H
Gross
Expected Carrying Loss
loss rate (%) amount allowances
TERESEE {HERTEEE oticbiidi
(HKD’000) (HKD’000)
FHET FET
Gross carrying amount of BENEBESEEFN
trade debtors subject to BRI :
specific provisions:
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H 100 23,664 23,664
Write off of loss allowance &5 18 B A R 100 (23,664) (23,664)
At 1 December 2019 M2019412 H31H - -
Gross carrying amount of BERESEFRRE
trade debtors subject to B ERREE
provision matrix:
At 1 January 2019 MR2019%1A1H - 5,786
0 to 30 days 0£30H 0.2 19,929 40
31 to 60 days 31&260H 0.4 8,766 35
61 to 90 days 61%290H 19 2,482 47
91 to 180 days 91&180H 2.3 1,429 33
More than 180 days HiE180H 4.0 19,970 634
52,576 789
At 31 December 2019 2019412 H31H 52,576 6,575
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 30. 2R TR (4)

(i) EEmEE (&)
B EMERA IR E

(iii) Credit risk (Continued)
Loss allowances calculation of trade receivables

As at 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31H
Expected Gross  Carrying loss
loss rate (%) amount allowances
FRHIGEE HEEIRE ticbedi
(HKD'000) (HKD’000)
FHET FET
Gross carrying amount of EHNESEFD
trade debtors subject to EARTE(E -
specific provisions:
At 1 January 2018 and R2018F1A1H &
31 December 2018 2018%12H31H 100 23,664 23,664
Gross carrying amount of BENESEE
trade debtors subject to RIBEERED
provision matrix: SRR {E
At 1 January 2018 M2019%1H1H - -
0 to 30 days 0£30H 0.1 27,780 31
31 to 60 days 31=60H 0.3 7,216 24
61 to 90 days 61£290H 1.7 2,407 40
91 to 180 days 912180H 7.4 5,105 375
More than 180 days HBi®180H 30 17,694 5,316
60,202 5,786
At 31 December 2018 72018412318 83,866 29,450
285 2019 E %
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

(iv)

Loss allowances calculation of other financial
assets at amortised cost (Continued)

Except for the loss allowances recognised on
the carrying amounts of amount due from an
associate and loans receivable were calculated
under ECL calculations classified as stage 3 as
set out in Note 20 and 25 to the consolidated
financial statements, the loss allowances of other
receivables and amounts due from joint ventures
calculated were limited under 12-months
ECL calculation classified as stage 1 of the
ECL model. The credit risk on restricted bank
deposits and bank balances and cash is limited
because they are placed with reputable banks.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the Group’s liquidity risk,
the Group’s management regularly monitors and
maintains an optimal level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the Group's
management to finance the Group's operations
for meeting its liquidity requirement and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows at all
times.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 30. 2R TR (4)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) WEELERE(E)
In addition, there is minimum liquid capital o BEBEHFLE (BBRE
requirement under the SF(FR)R and a constant F)HRABE THRERDESE
need of funding for the financial services KRB HBHEEZEFIE
segment. The Group’s management aims to FTEZ AEENEEES T
maintain flexibility in funding for the settlement BHEENES ARBEEESFR
of securities transactions, margin financing and 5 RESREMNEEFREE
loans to customers. e
The following table details the Group's TRAFLAESEBEETHE
remaining contractual maturity for its non- FIEFHIETES A BEME
derivative financial liabilities based on their BRFH TRDEREHEE
agreed repayment terms. The table illustrated ARG RELEAEE
below is based on the undiscounted cash flows AxFPEMNNBEmEH - A2
of financial liabilities according to the earliest RER - B BNEE FUERBIIRTT
date on which the Group can be required to EXes AxFREEN  TH
pay. Specifically, for the bank borrowings with RITEETHEHENAEER - H
repayment on demand clause are included in the HIENTES B EIEA IR
earliest time band regardless of the probability BEETHERBE - ARIEBE
of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. FERAESREM
The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on their respective
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
principals and interests cash flows:
On demand
Weighted or Total Carrying
average less than More than  undiscounted amount at
2019 20195 interest rate Imonth  1-3months  3-12 months 1 year cash flows  31.12.2019
#2019%
flEmE REOME #EBHE  12A31BZ
THE  PRIEA 138 3-12f8R PR—-% HEREHE fREfE
%  HKD'OOD  HKD'000  HKD'00O  HKD'00D  HKD'0OO  HKD'00O
TiER TiER TiER TiER TER TiER
Non-derivative financial liabilities FELMAR
Trade and other payables BHREMENER - 298,710 - - - 298,710 298,710
Amount due to a related party ER—FBB A RE - 112 - - - 112 112
Bank overdrafts BTER 48 8175 - - - 8175 7,804
Bank borrorings BIER 47 5332 10,458 42600 1441117 1499516  1,410901
Loan from non-controlling interests REFERERER 23 - - - 2,163 2,163 2,114
Lease liablties EREERME 69 896 1,792 8067 345998 356753 184,899
313,225 12,250 50676 1789278 2165429  1904,540
287 2019F EiRkE




For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(v)

39. £RT R (&)

(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) HEELERE(E)
On demand
Weighted or Total Carrying
average less than More than  undiscounted amount at
2018 2018%F interest rate 1 month 1-3months  3-12 months 1 year cashflows  31.122018
201845
M= Mg LI KBE  12A3182
THE PRIER 1-3f8A 3-12(8A SR—F  REReR REE
% HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TFign TR FiEn TR Fign TR
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTELMAR

Trade and other payables BHREMENER - 216,059 - - - 216,059 216,059
Amount due to a related party e —FEBBARNE - 10,541 - - - 10,541 10,541
Bank overdrafts RITEY 48 6,768 - - - 6,768 6,461
Bank borrowings STET 40 6,170 7,032 34,658 1,342,962 1,390,822 1,281,054
Loan from non-controlling interests REFRREZER 23 - - - 9466 9,466 9249
Finance lease payable ENRARE 25 12 37 100 582 731 651
239,550 7,069 34,758 1,353,010 1,634,387 1,524,015

Equity price risk v) BREEHEE

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values
of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss decrease as a result of changes in the
levels of equity indices and the market price of
unlisted equity investments determined by the
independent qualified professional valuer, Ascent
Partners Valuation Services Limited. The Group
was exposed to equity price risk arising from
listed equity securities listed in Hong Kong and
unlisted equity investments outside Hong Kong
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as at 31 December 2018 and 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(v)

Equity price risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to

every 5% change in the fair values of the Group’s

equity investments of which the directors of the

Company expect the future possible changes

of financial assets, with all other variables held

constant and before any impact on tax, based

on their carrying amounts at the end of reporting

39. £RT R (&)

) RFEBELE(F)
TRINRAEB ZBWAKREZ
RN EEHEREE 2 GURE
2 A & % 78 H# 2K A] BE 2
ENemEE (MBEEMEUR
BRI HERRELE)
BERBREPR ZREERSE -

period.
Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
Increase/  before income Increase/
(decrease) tax expense (decrease)
in fair value before tax in equity
FRFEHEX
AEEEZ iRz fERZEm
wm, (EL) S GED) (ED)
% HKD'000 HKD'000
% TET THET
2019 20194
Listed equity securities BB ETHRARES
Hong Kong 5 3,301 -
Unlisted equity investments BEABRINELT
outside Hong Kong AR E 5 8,747 -
2018 2018%
Listed equity securities BB LETHRARES
Hong Kong 5 334 -
Unlisted equity investments BBIEINE LT
outside Hong Kong A E 5 3,289 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities

The following tables represent details of the
Group'’s financial assets and financial liabilities
subject to offsetting, restricted by the enforceable
master netting arrangements or similar
agreements between the Group and Hong Kong
Securities Clearing Company Limited (“HKSCC”")
at 31 December 2018 and 2019.

39. £RT R (&)

i) HEHELHEERSHMERE

TRETIAEEMR20182019
FI2A3IBA THRHEZEHE
EReBEBE (ZARGHnTe
RERREERFIARAETE
R REERBRAR ([FE
EE ) BELUBZERS) 2515

Financial assets subject to offsetting

Ehgiira i

Related amounts not offset
in the consolidated statement of
financial position

MERGEMBRRR
RHZENEE
Gross Net
amount of amount of
recognised financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
Gross  offset in the in the Financial
amount of  consolidated  consolidated instruments
recognised statement  statement of other Cash
financial of financial financial than cash collateral
assets position position collateral received  Net amount
REEGME
WRRESE REAME HLHRR
=35 ERR HAREINZ Wiz EHe
SHEAELYE SHARLE SNEERE SHIR izt )
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FiET TAT TiER FiET ThT TiER
At 31 December 2019 120194128318
Trade receivable from HKSCC REBARREL
EY T E 18,092 (17,560) 532 - - 532
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12R318
Trade receivable from HKSCC REEBEEZ
B SRR 59,947 (59,947) - - - -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(vi)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

39. £RT R (&)

i) HHEHEERESHMER
(4)

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting

AFREZEMAR

Gross
amount of
recognised

financial

assets

offset in

the

Gross amount  consolidated
of recognised statement
financial of financial

liabilities position
REAME

WRFHEE

=35 ERD

SHARGE SHEEGR
HKD'000 HKD'000

Related amounts not offset
in the consolidated statement of
financial position

BERGEMBRAR
Kz BNLE
Net amount
of financial
liabilities
presented in
the Financial
consolidated  instruments
statement other Cash
of financial than cash collateral
position collateral received  Net amount

RESHME BReklm
HRRZFZ Mtz ElEg
SHMARFE  SMIR HRa 8
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000

TiEn Tir Tign ThEL TiEn FiEn
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A318
Trade payable from HKSCC REBAREL
EU T AN 17,560 (17,560) - - - =
At 31 December 2018 12018%12R31R
Trade payable from HKSCC REEBEEZ
B SREMAER 60,152 (59,947) 205 - - 205
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(vi) Offsetting financial assets and financial

liabilities (Continued)

The tables below reconcile the amounts of

trade and other receivables, and trade and

other payables of the Group as presented in the

consolidated statement of financial position as at

31 December 2018 and 2019:

(vi)

39 . &MTIR(HE)

HHEHMEERSHME MR

(4)

T &R MR2018%2019412 A31H
RIRE M BIRARM2YAE
B85 REMEIKER &5
REMEMNEREE R

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFHIT FET
Trade and other receivables: Eo R H b EUER :
Net amount of trade receivable KREBEBHEER
from HKSCC B 5 W ARFERE 532 -
Trade and other receivables not within ~ NEKIEH EEE 2
the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 & H e R R 189,837 513,594
Trade and other receivables as e BRI EE 2
disclosed in the consolidated B 5 & E b FE U IR 5K
statement of financial position 190,369 513,594
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
THET T
Trade and other payables: B R H Mt FEfTRRER
Net amount of trade payable REBEBHEEZ
from HKSCC B 5 RN ERFFRE - 205
Trade and other payables not within TERERERESEE 2
the scope of offsetting disclosure B 5 K& A A FE T BR K 309,054 231,703
Trade and other payables RE BRI ER 2
as disclosed in the consolidated B 5 Rk H b FE T BR X
statement of financial position 309,054 231,908
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the end
of reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the key inputs used in the respective
valuation techniques by the Group as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 key inputs, i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
traded in active liquid markets which are quoted
market bid prices.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial instruments measured
at amortised cost at 31 December 2018 and 2019
were approximate to their fair value. On the grounds
that either of their maturity periods are short or their
effective interest rates were approximate to the relevant
discount rate.

There were no changes in the valuation techniques and
transfers between the level 1 and level 2, or transfer
into or out of level 3 fair value hierarchy for both years.
The Group’s accounting policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy at the end of
reporting period in which they occur.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments measured at fair value. For the listed
equity securities is classified as Level 1 and the
unlisted equity investments outside Hong Kong is
classified as Level 3. The classification is based on the
degree to which the key inputs used in the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
adjustments to the key inputs used in the fair value

39. £RT R (&)

TRAETHIAURTEEFENS
e BRINFHEEFERBBLHH
BRABHEEFINTFEEFERE
BRI EMBRAIRE - Z D BER
BEATEESERERAERH AR
BEORABEERAERABNER T

measurements.
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
FTERT FET
Level 1 B#1
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong B LETHRAFES 66,012 6,676
Level 3 =R
Unlisted equity investments outside BABINELTRARE
Hong Kong 174,941 65,777

Reconciliation of the opening and closing balance of

HEMBONER T AEFIRF

financial instruments classified as level 3 fair value RESIRRINT -
hierarchy are provided as follows:
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
FHET FHET
Unlisted equity investments outside EFEHEEIIEEHIRAIRSE:
Hong Kong:
At 1 January R1A1H 65,777 -
Additions NE - 65,777
Increase in fair value recognised RERERHK
in profit or loss NEEE 109,164 -
At 31 December R12A31H 174,941 65,777
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39.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair value measurement of unlisted equity
investments outside Hong Kong was determined by
using both observable and unobservable key inputs.
The significant key inputs included market value
of comparable companies, risk-free rate, expected
recoverable rate of the investment and adjusted for
discounts for lack of marketability (“DLOM”). The risk-
free rate, DLOM and expected recoverable rate are
1.58%, 37.79% and 90% (2018: 2.49%, 4.87% and
15%) respectively.

The change in fair value of the unlisted equity
investments was approximately HKD109,164,000
(2018: HKD nil) during the year as the director of the
Company estimated that the the probability to acquire
business target has been increased significantly at
31 December 2019 and eventually completed its
acquisition in February 2020.

40. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

41.

Except for the details of potential tax liabilities with respect to
the potential penalty arising from the late filing of tax returns
for reporting the PRC Enterprise Income Tax to the PRC tax
authority as disclosed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has no other contingent assets or
contingent liabilities required to be recognised or disclosed in
the financial statements as at 31 December 2018 and 2019.

OPERATING LEASES

Saved as disclosed in Note 2(A) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16 by using
modified approach and adjusted the opening balances
at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets at the
amount equal to the lease liabilities for all of its operating
lease contracts, except for those are short-term leases
and leases with low-value of underlying assets by applying
practical expedients of the Group. As a result, the operating
lease commitment as at 31 December 2019 excluded
those operating lease contracts being recognised as right-
of-use assets. Under the transition provision permitted
under HKFRS 16, the comparative information of operating
lease commitment has not been restated and followed the
predecessor accounting standard of HKAS 17.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

41. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

During the year, the Group incurred minimum and contingent
lease payments in respect of its office premises, staff
quarters and retail shops under non-cancellable operating
lease contracts for those qualified practical expedients under
HKFRS 16, which were recognised as operating leases
expenses in profit or loss during the year were disclosed as

41.

AEERFATEREMBREELELS
FONEREET AR TABUAREHHEA
= BIFERTEEHEFLEZKERK
RAMEFRR IRAFERIANERRE
EEMMEENT:

follows:
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
TFHT FHE T
Operating lease expenses comprised of: KEHEXTHBE:
Minimum lease payments =EBEFE
— Community mall — B S = 20,730
— Offices premises R NEN 1,197 1,825
— Staff quarters —-B8I1IES 518 954
— Retail shops —ZTER 106 5,992
1,821 29,501
Contingent lease payments SAHEK 21,670 16,325
23,491 45,826

Among the contingent lease payments, the Group leased
a number of retail shops which contain contingent lease
payment terms that are calculated based on the relevant
shops' revenue generated and minimum lease payment
terms that are fixed for both years. The amount of such
contingent lease payments to be incurred in the future
cannot be readily estimated in advance and is excluded in
the calculation of lease commitment as disclosed below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

41. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group had the following total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating lease contracts,
except contingent lease payments arise from the retail shops,
which were fall due as at 31 December 2018:

41. EEHE ()

R2018F 124318 » REE G R R HEMA
EFEAYE TN A BETaRUEKEEHE

ETHEMNZTEENRAEERIN EEH
HEYDHTIT :

2018
HKD'000
TAET

Within one year —F
In the second to fifth year, inclusive

Qver five years

The future minimum lease payments represented the
operating leases expenses payables by the Group for
community mall, offices premises, staff quarters and retail
shops. Tenancy agreements are negotiated for lease terms
ranged from one to twenty years (2018: from one to twenty
years) which was previously classified as operating leases
expenses in profit or loss when incurred under HKAS
17. From 1 January 2019 onwards, the future minimum
lease payments have been recognised as lease liabilities
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies as set
out in Note 4(l) to the consolidated financial statements.
Details of the lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

41. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

Rental income generated by leasing the investment
properties held by the Group during the year was
approximately HKD65,342,000 (2018: HKD64,062,000).
Tenants who located in those investment properties were
committed with the Group for leasing the properties for the
next one to nineteen years (2018: one to nineteen years).
Included in rental income, the sub-lease rental income
arising from the sub-leasing of retail shops accommodated
in the community mall, where located in Tianjin, the PRC,
generated during the year was approximately HKD8,800,000
(2018: 8,399,000).

The Group had the following future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating lease contracts,
which were entitled to be received as at 31 December 2018
and 2019:

41.

EEHE (F)

FA HEREDEELEZHSRANOR
65,342,000/ 7T (2018%F : 64,062,000
TT) cARERFHERENREMERP
A EAA  ARNF—=+ 1% (2018
F—E2ETAF) ETEEBEHESBARR
REXEHEESGHES WA AFEK
A4 %%8,800,000/% JT (20184 : 8,399,000
BIT) e

MA2018F %2019 12 A31H » A&E B A
FPRINTAIEUEKREHES N 2 R IRFIE
AEWRALLNT:

2019 2018

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FAET

Within one year —FR 83,106 49,506
In the second to fifth year, inclusive F_FE2ERF

(RIEEEMSE) 85,731 80,602

Over five years BiBAF 74,022 84,820

242,859 214,928
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42.

43.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2018 and 2019, the Group had the
following material contractual capital commitments not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements:

42, EEREE

20184 201941231  REEE 5t
THERE LM E RAERZ I KRG AL
B BHmERA

2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
TFHIT FET
Contracted for but not provided: ARSI SA I REEE

— Capital contribution of unlisted equity — B AR B BRI
investment outside Hong Kong ELETMIRAKRE 51,415 51,682

— Construction costs of outlet mall buildings —[L R EEPI M ERS
located in Shenyang and Xiamen, the PRC B HEHT 2 R A AR - 199,605
51,415 251,287

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement plan
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) applied for all its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong, who are eligible to participate. The MPF Scheme is
registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group under the control
of independent trustees. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, both employer and its employees are required to
contribute for the MPF scheme on a specific percentage of
the qualifying employees’ basic salaries. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme, which is
to contribute 5% or HKD1,500 or equivalent per month in
maximum of the employees’ basic salaries under the MPF
Scheme and charged to profit or loss when vested fully.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

43. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME 43. BREFETEI ()

(CONTINUED)

The Company’s subsidiaries operate in the PRC are the
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme,
namely the Central Provident Fund operated by the relevant
PRC tax authorities. The related contributions are determined
based on a certain percentage of the monthly salaries of the
relevant subsidiaries’ employees, and charged to the profit
or loss once the amount of contributions become payable
by these subsidiaries with the rules specified in the scheme.
The Group has no other obligations under the scheme other
than the contributions to the Central President Fund for both
years.

In addition, the Group also participates in defined
contribution retirement schemes organised by the relevant
local government authorities in other jurisdictions where
the Group operates. Certain employees of the Group are
eligible for participating in the retirement benefits schemes
are entitled to the retirement benefits from the relevant
schemes. As a result, the Group is required to contribute to
the retirement schemes upon the retirement of the eligible
employees, excluding those employees who resigned before
their respective retirements, at a percentage that is specified
by the local governments.
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44. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

During the year, the Group entered into the

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

44. FEANLTHE

RER  AEBELATREATET

transactions with the related parties were disclosed as AR5
follows:
Mr. Cheng and his associates: EEREERHEBEANL:
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
Nature of transactions X 5ME FHET FHET
Commission income from securities brokerage & % & & AT 3A & WA 6 39
Interest income from margin financing BPERFERA 692 212
Minimum lease payments under non- TR HUBK EHE
cancellable operating leases EEMRESTH 96 516
Motor vehicle expenses RERX 75 72
Total amount of margin financing RETRESMELHZ
facilities granted (Note (i) @ E (HFEaG)) 10,000 10,000
Maximum outstanding amount of RESHMEERZ
margin loan issued e 8,945 8,745
Mr. Lee Cheung Ming (“Mr. Lee”) FR#EAE ([FXED)
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD’000
Nature of transactions XHME FHT FET
Interest income from margin financing BHEEMSHEESWRA 267
Total amount of margin financing facilities ETRESMELHZ
granted (Note (i) SR (Ha20)) 10,000 -
Maximum outstanding amount of RECHEERZR=THE
margin loan issued 9,878 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

44. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(CONTINUED)

During the year, the Group entered into the
transactions with the related parties were disclosed as

follows: (Continued)

44, FEANTHE (8)

RER REBEEATREATET
TR (#)

Other related parties: HbpABAL:
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
Nature of transactions X5 ME THET FHET
Interest income from non-controlling KEEEEEIFEREE
shareholder of joint ventures 2 HBA 721 1,066
Interest expenses of loan from REFIEBRBREERD
non-controlling interests FEMZ 213 229
Minimum purchases for the sale and $HE R 8 [arena | K
distribution of the “arena” branded PR 2 Jx A b iE B AR 2% -
swimwear and other sportswear, NI s KR
shoes and related accessories (Note (i) (Hazai)) 60,691 103,558

Notes:

On 30 October 2019, Mr. Lee who is the Executive Director of
the Company entered into a margin financing agreement with
the Group, with a facility amount of HKD10,000,000 granted
to Mr. Lee for securities trading transaction. The balance of
margin financing granted to Mr. Lee was secured by a cash
deposit of HKD10,000,000 or assets of equivalent value in his
securities account maintained with the Group, interest-bearing
at Prime Rate plus 3% per annum.

Margin financing agreement granted to Mr. Cheng and a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Cheng, which is secured by a
cash deposit of HKD10,000,000 or assets of equivalent value
in their securities accounts in aggregate maintained with the
Group, interest-bearing at prime Rate plus 3% (2018: Prime
Rate plus 3%) per annum.

After conducting an annual review of the 2018 business
performance, an amendment to the original “arena” Joint
Venture and China-exclusive Distribution Agreement was
entered into on 7 May 2019 under which the price and
minimum level of purchase for “arena” branded swimwear and
other sportswear, shoes and related accessories (the “arena”
branded products) have been adjusted.

Biat

(ii)

F2019510H30R - ITEFF R AR A
ABRF - Wt H %% B & % 571 3210,000,00078
THRFCREGEE BAEFRHNOREDA
AEEFELZBFAREREER WEEFHE
BRIEINB%E TR XA B WARSRES
10,000,00078 7T = [7 % B (B #9 £ 1 & 55 H 17 @
ERER-

MBS RBELERERE 2 ARREHRE
SEEE R WA S /RF$10,000,0007% T3k
RSEEN ETEFERRERER WikEF
HEEFIENN3% (20184F : B EFE HN3% )
8 FHF R B

H2018F X B RBVETFEEM®E  AAAR
20195 R7REET THRE LB E Z A ATEHR]
[arena | TR 5 A H BI85 E K 85 [arena |
SRR K AR 2 R E B B AR S - EE R ARRAED AR A
Bk ST AR TREMZERRREEER
S
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

44. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(CONTINUED)

44, FEANTHE (8)

The related party transactions disclosed in note (i)
and (ii) above are constituted as continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules are provided in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” of the Corporate
Governance Report for both years.

The emoluments of the directors and the members

% ERX BRI TG M (D2 BA LT
IIFAAE TR EZFEBER
- MR EMRRAERRE 2R
SERMENTLEEARSE [FERH
BRP| —fhe

&

FRERATEEEBAEBNERRS

of senior management of the Group, included as key MEBABENFHMMOT :
management personnel Group during the year as
follows:
2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000
T#T TFHET
Salaries, welfare and other expenses Ho BAREMAX 12,040 12,817
Contributions to defined contribution TRIRET IR
retirement plans 144 148
12,184 12,965

The emoluments of the directors and the members
of senior management was reviewed and approved
by the remuneration committee of the Company after
taken into accounts of their relevant experience,
qualifications, business performance, market practices
and competitive market conditions as further disclosed
in the Corporate Governance Report.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

45. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

45. R AT FIRE R

2019 2018
NOTES HKD’000 HKD'000
ok FHET FHET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries ETKH B QA 46 988 988
Intangible assets B EE 45,613 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE L B BB N B R IE 2,669,997 2,743,655
Restricted bank deposit SRFHEITFER = 20,000
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 2,716,598 2,764,643
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables H th fE Y sk IR 851 734
Restricted bank deposit SRFHIEITFER 20,000 -
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 59,722 79,232
Total current assets RBEEEE 80,573 79,966
Current liabilities RB&E
Other payables Hith EFBR X 8,726 2,558
Bank borrowings RITER 137,265 283,315
Total current liabilities MEBEAE 145,991 285,873
Net current liabilities mEaERE (65,418) (205,907)
Non-current liability EREBERE
Bank borrowings RITER 634,590 509,942
Net assets EEFE 2,016,590 2,048,794
Equity i
Share capital fi% 7R 34 297,422 297 403
Reserves B 37 1,719,168 1,751,391
Total equity HmiaE 2,016,590 2,048,794

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors:

CHENG TUN NEI

BER
DIRECTOR

EZE
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DIRECTOR
EF

Annual Report 2019



For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

46. MBS ER
R2019% K2018F12H31H AR AIM =
BHBAFAFENT:

46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2018 and 2019 were as follows:

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Effective interest in issued and
registration paid-up/registered paid-up/registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
ML, ERTREHE FARRAERTREHR
MEAT B REEDHY BikFEH BiRARNES TEEY
2019 2018

Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
B s B Gk

Cosmo Group Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands Ordinary paid-up 100% - 100% - Investment holding
shares of USD10,000
ERRELEE EHREER REZK
10,000% 7T
Tak Jin Management Services Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary paid-up share - 100% - 100%  Provision of accountancy,
of HKD1 secretarial and management
services
BEERRBERAA B EHREERIET REET WEREERRE
Kwan Tai Resources Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid-up - 100% - 100%  Property investment
shares of HKD10
ERERBRAR BE BHREERIOET MERE
Yue Hing Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid-up - 100% - 100%  Property investment
shares of HKD2
HEZERERAT 0 BRREARIET MERE
RS (LE)BERESBRAR The PRC (wholly owned foreign  Registered paid- - 100% - 100% Property investment
enterprise) up capital of
USD3,000,000
FE (I EEERE) BARAMER MERE
3,000,0005 7T
Worldwide Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid- - 100% - 100%  Property investment
up shares of
HKD10,000
EREXBRAA BE EHREER MERE
10,0007 7T
SYM Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid-up - 100% - 100%  Property investment
shares of HKD2
B EHRELER2ET MERE
Chung Wah Elite Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid-up - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
shares of HKD100
REERBRAT B EHREERI0ET REZK
Premier Ever Group Limited The British Virgin Islands Ordinary paid- - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
up shares of
USD63,068,127
EERLES EHREER REEK
63,068,175 1T
Frontlead Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands Ordinary paid-up share - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
of USD1
EEERHS BARLARIET REZK
Rivergold International Limited The British Virgin Islands Ordinary paid- - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
up shares of
USD78,364,080
EEERHS EHRELER RERK
78,364,080 7T
305 2019F E e



For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

46. IR BABIMER (8)

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Effective interest in issued and
registration paid-up/registered paid-up/registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
AL, ERTREHE AATBHERITREHRE
HEAT B REEDY bR 2N E ) BiRAFNES TEEY
2019 2018
Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
B & HiE %
QOrton Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid-up share - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
of HKD1
B0 BHRELERIET RERR
Good Developments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid-up - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
shares of HKD2
HEBERERAF EE BHREERIET REER
BERRABRITENEREEMBAR  ThePRC Registered paid- - 100% - 100% Property investment
(wholly owned foreign enterprise) up capital of
USD70,766,000
FE(OMEEERE) EHRAMER MERE
70,766,000% 70
BHHREEERAR The PRC Registered paid- - 100% - 100% Operation and management of
(wholly owned foreign enterprise) ~ up capital of outlet malls
USD9,800,000
FE(OMEEERE) EHRAMER BERHEERER
9,800,000% 7T
China Rise Finance Group Company Hong Kong Ordinary paid- - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited up shares of
HKD10,000
EZeREEFRAA BE EHRELER RERK
10,000%7T
China Rise Securities Asset Hong Kong Ordinary paid- - 100% - 100%  Provision of securities brokerage,
Management Company Limited up shares of underwriting and placing of listed
HKD100,000,000 securities, margin financing and
financial consultancy services
EERFEEERARAR B0 EHREER RUEFFERL BHEREELTE
100,000,0007% 7 % RESBERMEHARYE
China Rise Finance Co., Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid- - 100% - 100%  Provision of money lending services
up shares of
HKD10,000
B Yl YNG| B BEHREER REEERSE
10,0008 7T
Giant Fortune International Limited The British Virgin Islands Ordinary paid-up share - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
of USD1
REBRERAT KEERHS BEHREERIET REZR
China Rise Capital Co., Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid-up share - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
of HKD1
ZFEETRFRAA BE EHRELERIETT REZRK
JFT Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid- - 100% - 100%  Provision of information, technology,
up shares of corporate services and portfolio
HKD316,000,000 management and investment
RHEBERERAR B EHRERR RIS CERBINREE
316,000,000/ 7T RERAREREE

306

Annual Report 2019



For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

46. IR BABIMER (8)

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Effective interest in issued and
registration paid-up/registered paid-up/registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
MR ERTREHE AARRAERTREHR
MEAT BRREEHY BikAEH BiERAFNES TBED
2019 2018
Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
H#E & EX GiEES
Profit Guaranteed Assets Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid-up - 100% - 100%  Provision of accountancy, legal,
shares of HKD2 secretarial and cruiser services
FIREEBRAR & EHREERIET REG EE WERMARSE
A (LB)RHEHERAR The PRC (wholly owned foreign  Registered paid- - 100% - 100% Trading, retailing and distribution
enterprise) up capital of of swimming apparel and
RMB23,611,365 accessories
TE (I EEERE) BAREMER 25 TERD IR RIS
AR#23,611,3657C
Arena (Shanghai) Industrial Co., Limited The PRC (wholly owned foreign ~ Registered paid- - 70% - 70%  Trading, retailing and distribution
enterprise) up capital of of swimming apparel and
RMB30,000,000 accessories
i ( L8) BEERAR hE (I EEERR) BAREMER 25 TERD KRR
A K #30,000,0007
HEHRBEERERAR The PRC (wholly owned foreign  Registered paid- - 100% - ~ Trading, retailing and distribution
enterprise) up capital of of swimming apparel and
RMB1,000,000 accessories
hE(IEEERE) BAREMER 25 TERD KRR
AR #1,000,0007
MMEAER BRI BRAF The PRC (wholly owned foreign  Registered paid- - 100% - 100% Trading, retailing and distribution
enterprise) up capital of of swimming apparel and
RMB2,000,000 accessories
hE(IEEERE) BAREMER 25 TERD KRR
AR #2,000,0007
MRS BERHRER A A The PRC (wholly owned foreign  Registered paid- - 55% - 55% Online trading platform support
enterprise) up capital of services
RMB2,000,000
hE (D EEERE) BAREMER REB LS TEXERE
AR #2,000,0007T
BAERERGERAF The PRC (wholly owned foreign ~ Ordinary paid-up - 100% - 100% Trading, retailing and distribution
enterprise) USD14,080,000 of swimming apparel and
accessories
hE (D EEERE) BERREAK 25 TERDHIKER RS
14,080,0005 7T
BE(EM)BEERAA The PRC (wholly owned foreign  Registered paid- - 100% - 100% Operation and management of
enterprise) up capital of fashion stores
USD1,000,000
hE (I EEERE) ERREMER EERERRRE
1,000,0005 7T
Pony International Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid-up - 100% - 100%  Sub-licensing of trademark rights,
shares of HKD2 trading and wholesales of
sportswear
B BHREERIET AEBEEE EPREH RBE
Super Jumbo Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands Ordinary paid-up share - 100% - 100% Development and management of
of USD1L “PONY" trademarks
EBRAES BHREBERIET BRRERE[PONY | 1
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46. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

46. IR BABIMER (8)

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Effective interest in issued and
registration paid-up/registered paid-up/registered capital held
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital by the Company Principal activities
AL, ERTREHE AATBHERITREHRE
HEAT B REEDY b 2N -E ) BiRARNES TEED
2019 2018
Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
B & HiE GiEES
Pony, Inc. The United States of America Ordinary paid-up share - 100% - 100%  Sub-licensing of trademark rights
of USD1
£ BHREARIET BREEE
Pony Asia Holdings Pte. Limited Singapore Ordinary paid-up - 100% - 100%  Sub-licensing of trademark rights
shares of SGD100
Eiibe EHREER BREEER
10037 MR T
Perfect Day Ventures Limited The British Virgin Islands Ordinary paid-up share - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
of USD1
EHERERAR KERAHE BHRERRIET RERRK
Aggressive Resources Limited The British Virgin Islands Ordinary paid-up - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
shares of USD50,000
KERAHE BHREER RERK
50,000% 7T
Supremium Bio-Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid- - 100% - 100% Manufacturing, developing and
up shares of retailing of healthcare products
HKD10,000
REENRRERAR B BHRLAR REBRRABRBER
10,000 7T
Kingxin International Investment Limited The British Virgin Islands Ordinary paid-up - 100% - 80% Investment holding
shares of USD50,000
EERREERAR EBRLES EHRERER REZK
50,000% 7T
HK Asia Gain International Investment  Hong Kong Ordinary paid- - 100% - 80%  Investment holding
Limited up shares of
HKD28,000,000
ERTAEERREBRAR EE EHREER REZK
28,000,000/ 7T
EEEARGRHEELER The PRC (wholly owned foreign ~ Registered paid- - 100% - 80%  Property investment
BRAR enterprise) up shares of
RMB260,000,000
FE (O EBEERE) BARIMERARS MERE
260,000,0007T
Majestic City Group Limited The British Virgin Islands Ordinary paid-up - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
share of USD1
EHEEERAR ERRIHE BHREBRIET RERRK
Majestic City (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid-up share - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
of HKD1
i (B8)BERDA Bk BARERRIET REER
EFHRRKEEERAR The PRC (wholly owned foreign  Registered paid- - 100% - 100% Property investment

enterprise)

TEEBALE)

up shares of

USD51,000,000
ERREMER

51,000,000% 7T
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46.

47.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and
registration paid-up/registered
Name of subsidiary and operation share capital
MR ERTREHE
MEAT BRREEHY BikAEH

46. IR BABIMER (8)

Effective interest in issued and
paid-up/registered capital held

by the Company Principal activities
AATHECBRITREMR
BiRARNES TEEY
2019 2018

Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
i GIE: B Gk

ERNMHBREEEEERDNR The PRC (wholly owned foreign  Registered capital

(note i) enterprise) shares of
RMB50,000,000
RESEBERR) TMERARE
50,000,0007C
Grand Galatica Limited The British Virgin Islands Ordinary paid-up
shares of USD100
HEBRAES B#REARI0%ET
State Glory (Hong Kong) Trading Limited Hong Kong Ordinary paid-up share
of HKD1
B (FE)EHERAA Bk EHREBRIEL
SYM ITO Sales & Distribution Company  Hong Kong Ordinary paid-up share
Limited of USD1
HEFEEERAHERAR EE BHREARIET
Notes:

(i) According to the revised Article of Association kept by the PRC
subsidiary, the amount of registered capital was increased
subsequently from RMB10,000,000 to RMB50,000,000 before the
end of reporting period.

(i) None of the Company’s principal subsidiaries listed above issued or
had any debt securities outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

(iii) The Company’s principal subsidiaries listed above of which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected either the Group’s financial
position or financial performance for the year. In addition, in order to
give details of other subsidiaries of the Company will be, in the opinion
of the directors, resulted in excessive length of particulars to be shown
after an extensive level of efforts exerted.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had material non-
controlling interests (“NCIs”) arising from its 70% equity
interests in Arena (Shanghai) Industrial Co., Limited (“Arena
Shanghai”) and 80% equity interests in Kingxin International
Investment Limited (“Kingxin”).

On 18 October 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of
the remaining 20% equity interests in Kingxin and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, which owns commercial properties in
Chongging, the PRC. Pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement, the total cash consideration of HKD40,490,000
are comprised of HKD39,890,000 for the sale shares and
HKD600,000 for the shareholder’s loan.

- 100% - - Operation and management of
outlet malls

ARRHLERER

- 100% - 100% Holding of a club debenture
RERMES

- 100% - 100%  Trading and wholesales of “SKINS”

products
Z5R#EISKINS ] Em

100% - - - Inactive
NER
B 7 -

0] IRIE BB A RS RT R M A ETZ AR - 73R
& HIRAY - & AR ARW10,000,0007HE %=
A R #50,000,0007T ©

(i)  RENEEER SENBIRSHTEMNER

Bt

(i) EERR ERAIINARTAMNBRRAAIEY
EAREER BN KI B RANAF - EERR
et E M B AR MFAEH T ERMER
AERSDBRITR.

47. FiEREm

#2018 12 H31H - A& E A A B 3k 1
(L&) BEXERAT ([FHHFLEE])70%
A hEBERRERRAR (2
£ | )80% R AN 2 1 #5045 7 B K FEHR LA

o °

2019107188 AEBE ek WE &
ENHE2EWBARFIER20% AR
MBEAENARTEEEME-RELEES
4 - 4838 ¢ (& 540,490,000 7T » 7 Al A
A 4 84 & AL 1) /4539,890,0005 7T M IR &
T A600,00058 7T ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {7 & M & R X
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #; 2019412831 H [t F &

47. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(CONTINUED)

The NCls of both Arena Shanghai and Kingxin are
considered as material NCls. The NCls of other subsidiaries
that not 100% owned by the Group are considered as
immaterial and their financial information is not disclosed as

follows.

Summarised financial information in relation to the material
NCls before intra-group eliminations was presented as

47. FizixER (&)

MR EMR SR e BRARRAEA
B FE AR 2 - T A R RN E o 2 E R
D FRA T 3E100% 575 ) SEHE A HE 25 8
BUFEX BUEMNORBEENTER
AT B8

BRAEASHEBREDS M BERBE OCR
EEEAREREE) 250 T :

follows:

Arena Shanghai Kingxin

P B L i %
2019 2018 2019 2018
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000

TER FET TFET FEL
Current k)|
Assets EE 65,961 77,745 N/A 2,090
Liabilities =L (29,371) (46,047) N/A (276,632)

36,590 31,698 N/A (274,542)

Non-current FERED
Assets BE 3,885 2,388 N/A 495,925
Liabilities afE - - N/A (53,682)

3,885 2,388 N/A 442 243
Net assets EEFE 40,475 34,086 N/A 167,701
Accumulated non-controlling REtFEIERES

interests 11,595 10,226 N/A 33,540

Symphony Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & & M #E#R R M sE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

47. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

47. FizixtEm (4)

(CONTINUED)
Arena Shanghai Kingxin
P L i 2%
2019 2018 2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FERT FHET TERT FHAT
(Note)
(B&E)
Revenue WA 170,434 164,279 14,546 17,180
Profit/(loss) before income tax BrET1S B S Al
expense w5, (EE) 5,465 (12,177) 44,223 (6,192)
Income tax expense FTiSHif X - - (1,167) 7)
Profit/(loss) for the year/period R,/ HREF],/ (E#E) 5,465 (12,177) 43,056 (6,199)
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 mEK S (900) (2,623) (16,263) (20,691)
Total comprehensive income FE/PrEemRsaE
for the year/period 4,565 (14,800) 26,793 (26,890)
Total comprehensive income for ~ FEIE3EIEIRIE R EE
the year/period attributable to HRE2EkEEHE
non-controlling interests 1,369 (4,440) 5,359 (5,378)

Note: The total comprehensive income of Kingxin shared by the non-
controlling interests was for the period from 1 January 2019 to 18
October 2019 (the date it became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Company).
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(CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

47. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

47. FEiERxtEm (48)

Arena Shanghai Kingxin
F 3w L i %
2019 2018 2019 2018
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD’'000
TER TET TFERT FET
(Note)
(BifEE)
Cash flows from REEEEHZHLRE
operating activities
Net cash from/(used in) KRB/ (AR)EEEH
operating activities ReFE 7,981 (19,592) (19,404) (14,989)
Cash flows from KEHETHZRERE
investing activities
Net cash (used in)/from (AR)/REZBEES
investing activities ReFeE (1,192) 16,849 (138) (194)
Cash flows from RKEMETHZHEERE
financing activities
Net cash (used in)/from (AR) /REBEES
financing activities ReFE (6,535) 2,349 15,321 15,619
Net increase/(decrease) in RERFEELEEY
cash and cash equivalents i, (L) B8 254 (394) (4,221) 436
Cash and cash equivalents 9,/ BEER
at the beginning of the He%EY
year/period 5,423 3,978 1,710 1,274
Effect of foreign exchange rate  JMEEXRZEHHIRE N
changes on cash and ReSBYeyE
cash equivalents 1,348 1,839 7,270 -
Cash and cash equivalents at ~ EX HKRER
the end of the year/period R&EEED 7,025 5,423 4,759 1,710

Note: The information of cash flows of Kingxin was for the period from 1

January 2019 to 18 October 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

47. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 47. FEI=RRHELR (48)

(CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of loan from non-controlling interest
(the “Loan”) of approximately HKD2,114,000 (2018:
HKD8,649,000) was unsecured, interest-bearing at 2.5%
(2018: 2.5%) per annum and with no fixed term (2018: no
fixed term) of repayment. The remaining carrying among
of HKD600,000 as at 31 December 2018 was unsecured,
interest-free and with no fixed term of repayment.

The non-controlling shareholders of the Loan have agreed
not to demand the repayments of the Loan within the next
twelve months from the end of reporting period. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company believe that the Group has
unconditional rights to defer settlements of the Loan for
at least twelve months after the end of reporting period,
and therefore classified the Loan as a non-current liability
presented in consolidated statements of financial position.

During the year, the aforesaid balance of the Loan of
HKD600,000 was repaid arising from the acquisition of
remaining 20% equity interests of Kingxin from the non-
controlling shareholder as disclosed above.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

48 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 48. HEMIB AT

On 4 April 2018, the Group signed a Conditional Co-
operation Agreement (the “Agreement”) with an independent
third party (the “Purchaser”), to dispose of the entire equity
interests of two groups of the Company’s subsidiaries
(the “Target Companies”), at an agreed consideration of
approximately HKD589,045,000 as equivalent. The assets
and liabilities of the Target Companies were classified as
held for sale in the consolidated financial statements as of 1
January 2018.

The disposals of subsidiaries were completed on 29 August
2018. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, such
disposals transactions do not constitute as a discontinued
operation since the Target Companies do not represent a
major line of business or geographical area of business
operation. The net assets of the Target Companies at the date
of disposals was disclosed as follows:

M2018F4H4R  REFE —ZHILE =
FUERDEZEBERGENEERZ ([Z
wEl) NEEMEARBAR ([BEEA
AR AER  ZHEREBSER
#7589,045,0007% 7T ° 7A2018F 1 A1 H K48
EHMBEREXERARNEENEGEAR
NERFELEER-

tHEM B QA= HE R2018F8A29H =
K-ARAREERA BRALERSWERE
R—IHEKIEWEEEBAREBEEARN
FRE-BFEEBH AL EHEHLET
H-EEQARRHERPNEEFERE
U

HKD’000
T
Investment properties "B 538,721
Tax prepayments IETEA 25,967
Other payables H A fE T BR SR (114,170)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEEE (30,685)
Net assets disposed of BREFEE 419,833
Translation reserve released to profit or loss HEMBARERRELHERZER
on disposals of subsidiaries 27,273
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR BN 117,764
Disposals transactions related costs HERSEBEER 24175
Total consideration wRAE 589,045
Satisfied by: AR
Cash consideration ReRE 589,045
Less: Disposals transactions related costs B HERSEBEER (24,175)
Net cash consideration FEERE 564,870
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48.

49.

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

An analysis of net cash inflows of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposals of the Target Companies was
disclosed as follows:

48. HEMBAE] ()

EREHERRARZFRRE MRS RA
FEYMRAFESFTAT

HKD’000
FHET
Net cash inflows arising on the disposal HRHEMELENFRERERAN
Net cash consideration FEERE 564,870
Less: Consideration receivable (Note) B R E (B ) (314,365)
Net cash inflows from disposal of subsidiaries, HEMBRAR (MBREEZRE)M
net of cash disposed of FEREBMA 250,505

Note: The remaining consideration receivable of approximately
HKD314,365,000 as equivalent was payable by the Purchaser to the
Group upon the satisfaction of the earlier of: (i) obtained “Pre-sale
Permit of Commercial Houses” of three parcels of spare land; or (ii)
6 months after the sale shares have been transferred. On 11 March
2019, the outstanding consideration was fully received by the Group
from the Purchaser.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 12 October 2018, the Group completed the acquisition
of the remaining 40% equity interests in Aggressive
Resources Limited, of which the Group was previously
owned 60% equity interests before the date of acquisition,
for a consideration of HKD72,200,000 satisfied by cash.
The principal activities of Aggressive Resources Limited and
its subsidiary are engaged in sourcing, manufacturing and
trading of healthcare products in Hong Kong. The reasons
of such acquisition were the directors of the Company
believe that it represented a good business opportunity and
an important step for the Group to tap into the healthcare
products market, diversify and broaden the business horizon
and income source to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

49. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Upon the completion of the acquisition, the existing 60%
equity interests in Aggressive Resources Limited, being
a joint venture company held by the Group, which was
accounted for as being disposed of and immediately
re-acquired at fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities on
the date of obtaining the control of the joint venture company.
As a result, the fair value gain on re-measurement of equity
in a joint venture of approximately HKD5,363,000 was
recoghised and included in other income presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired
at the date of acquisition were determined by the Group's
management with the assistance of an independent qualified
professional valuer namely Greater China Appraisal Limited
were as follows:

49. WESM B A E] (4)

RERWER AEBERBZEEREDN
Aggressive Resources Limited #9238 1760% A%
RERENGESE s BRRIELEIL 7
Bz HrAIENEERABNATEER
EFWEEASR - At - HE2018412A31H
LtFERENAENEELERERRAA
FEE W4 A5,363,000/8 7T W EFHA
FEBERTMEMWAA -

AHBlEERABENAFEEEEERR
CEEREEABR - MBLAEBRERME
AEEFEARABEEWT

Fair value
AFEE
HKD’000
FET

Identifiable assets and liabilities acquired: FRESMOHENEEREE
Property, plant and equipment R =N 374
Intangible assets ELEE 56,629
Inventories FE 5,930
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H YRR 8,485
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 8,225
Trade and other payables E 5 REMBEMRR (1,828)
Bank borrowings RITEN (698)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEAE (8,307)
Tax payables FES R IE (2,015)
Total identifiable assets acquired FrES R n &R & ERE 66,795

Goodwill arising on acquisition: W EARRE:

Cash consideration for additional 40% equity interests YW EEZEIMO%AT AN HEZE A IR & R E 72,200
Add: Fair value of the 60% equity interests already held 5l : 2 B60% & AR A FEE 108,300
Total consideration paid B ERE 180,500
Less: Net identifiable assets acquired B FTERR A R B E R E (66,795)
Goodwill (Note 21) B (Hatel) 113,705
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

49. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

An analysis of net cash outflows of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries was
disclosed as follow:

49. WESM B AE] (4)

ERLENEAT 2 He RASEENY
OB AT

HKD’'000
FHET
Net cash outflows arising on the acquisition: AU EERIR & HFEE

Cash consideration paid (Note) ENBEeRE (Hit) (62,200)
Bank balances and cash acquired FTIERIRITEBR MRS 8,225
Bank borrowings acquired FrERRITER (698)

Net cash outflows from disposal of subsidiaries, AWENB AR (HIRFAE2EHES)H
net of cash acquired FIR R (54,673)

Note: The remaining consideration of HKD10,000,000 was paid on 15
April 2019 since the unaudited financial statements of Aggressive
Resources Limited indicates that there was an unaudited profits for
the year of HKD11,000,000 for the financial year ended 31 December
2018.

The goodwill of approximately HKD113,705,000, which was
not tax deductible and recognised upon the completion of
the acquisition of the remaining 40% equity interests in
Aggressive Resource Limited, which is mainly attributable to
the significant future prospect of the acquired business.

The fair value of the 60% equity interests in Aggressive
Resources Limited, which is an unlisted company already
held by the Group, was estimated with reference to the
consideration paid for the acquisition of additional 40%
equity interests by the Group on the date of acquisition.

Had the acquisition been completed as of 1 January 2018,
the unaudited amount of the Group's revenue and profit
for the year would have been increased approximately
HKD38,672,000 and HKD11,051,000 respectively. The pro-
forma information is for illustrative purpose only and is not
necessary an indication of the Group’s revenue and results of
operations for the year that would neither have been actually
achieved when the acquisition had been completed as of 1
January 2018, nor it is intended to be a projection of future
performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {7 & M & R X
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #; 2019412831 H [t F &

50. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 50. ZFERERERMT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2019 2018
HKD'000 HKD'000
TFHT FHET
Bank balances and cash available BHERREHRLY
on demand RITEH LIRS 56,696 29,496
Bank balances and cash restricted PR HI R P B Y
in the PRC RITHEBR KRS 53,612 48,508
Time deposits with banks SRITEHITFR 19,483 53,586
Bank overdrafts (Note 30) RITEZ (H7730) (7,804) (6,461)
121,987 125,129
Significant non-cash transactions BEXFERE&XSMT:
arising from:
Investing activities REZE)
Payment for additional of property, plantand EX—@&HRES O
equipment under a finance lease contract 1% - FE &
RS N FRIE - 651
Additions of right-of-use assets arising R EFTET LR HEFTIE AN
from entering into new leases ERAEAE 1,614 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

50. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)

The table below details changes in the Group's
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash flows
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

50. ZRERMERERME (&)

THRANEEREFHFESZ Al
FHHE BEESRIRE S
REZDFEL AERARSTE

FARKRERERAEELGE

BaR

EXRDERBETYREREZE

Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash S
flows from financing activities.
Loan from Amount
Bank non-controlling Finance duetoa Lease
borrowings interests  lease payable  related party liabilities Total
REFER EftRLE -
RITER BRER HE WHAIRE HEAR st
(Note 30) (Note 47) (Note 31) (Note 33) (Note 32)
(H1#230) (Hrz247) (Hrz31) (H7##33) (Hi32)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
T T T Tt Tt T
As 31 December 2018 R2018%12A317 1,281,054 9.249 651 10541 - 13014%
Initial adoption of HKFRS 16 (Noie 24) MR M EH RS ER
F16% (H1724)) - = (651) - 185,468 184,817
At 1 January 2019 R0I9%E1A18 1,281,054 9.249 - 10541 185468 1486312
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BIEH&HEZEH:
Proceeds from bank borrowings FIETNE 299,947 = = = - 299,947
Repayments of bank borrowings FOETER (163,584) - - - - (163,584)
Repayment to a related party RE—BBBARER - - - (10369) - (10369)
Repayment to non-controlling shareholder 7 & JEEE B3R B 3 - (6,485) - - - (6,485)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests ~ WiBE SERRIIE 25 (f:247)

(Note 47) - (600) = = - (600)
Repayments of lease liabilities HEABER - - - - (11,516) (11,516)
Total changes from financing cash flows BEREREZ 2HBE 136,363 (7,085) - (10,369) (11,516) 107,393
Other changes: Hivgs:

Exchange realignment ERET| (6,516) (50) = (60) (3429) (10,055)
Increase in lease liabilities from entering  WAF I U HRE

into new leases during the year MENNEEEE - - - - 1,614 1614
Interest expenses of lease liabilties BESENS L (H28)

(Note 8) - - - - 12,762 12,762
Total other changes EnEnas (6,516) (50) - (60) 10,947 4321
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12R318 1,410,901 2,114 - 112 184,899 1,598,026
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

50. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 50. IFE R ERERMEE (8)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)
Loan from Amount
Bank  non-controlling Finance duetoa
borrowings interests lease payable related party Total
KEFEER EfRE -
RITER ELER HE  BBAIRE @t
(Note 30) (Note 47) (Note 31) (Note 33)
(Hi230) (Hist47) (H#31) (H233)
HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
TAR T TET THT Tz
At 1 January 2018 R201851A1A 1,156,927 600 - - 1,157,527

Changes from financing cash flows: ~ FER&HEZEH:

Proceeds from bank borrowings RIETYE 639,041 = - - 639,041
Repayments of bank borrowings RITETER (516,141) - - - (516,141)
Advance from a related party RE—ZEBAABH - - = 10,541 10,541
Advance from non-controlling REGFERRRSET

shareholder - 8,649 - - 8,649
Principal element of finance lease BERETER

payment X EH = = 651 - 651
Total changes from financing cash flows REREREZEHLE 122,900 8,649 651 10,541 142,741
Other change: Hip2s:
Exchange realignment L EF| 1,227 - - - 1,227
At 31 December 2018 1A2018F12A31H 1,281,054 9,249 651 10,541 1,301,495

320  Annual Report 2019



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & & M #E#R R M sE
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 201912 A31 B It F &

50. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

50. ZFEIRERERMEE ()

(CONTINUED)

Included in the consolidated statement of cash flows, R HERERPBEIEUTHEE

the total cash outflows for leases comprised the WIS

following activities:
2019 2018
HKD HKD
T BT

Within cash flows used in operating activities AR & EERNAIR© R 23,491 45,826

Within cash flows used in financing activites R EE EBRNAIRE R 11,516 651

Total net cash outflows for leases ARHEEmNERES T H 35,007 46,477

The total cash outflows for leases also related to the

TSRS BIEREN @RS H

following items: EEEIEE
2019 2018
HKD HKD
T Vow
Operating leases expenses paid B ERERE 35,007 45,826

Payment for addition of property, plantand FAX—FEHREES L
equipment under a finance lease contract ~ PTXMEIWI % - = &

Bk e = 651
35,007 46,477
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 A31 8 It & &

51.

52.

53.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 by using the modified
retrospective approach at 1 January 2019. Under this
approach, comparative information presented in 2018 has
not been restated and continued to be reported under
HKAS 17 and related interpretations as permitted under
the transitional provisions of HKFRS 16. Further details of
the adoption of HKFRS 16 are disclosed in Note 2(A) to the
consolidated financial statements.

In addition, there are certain comparative figures disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements have been adjusted or
reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Since the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19”) in January 2020, a series of precautionary and
control measures of the COVID-19 has been implemented
throughout different countries and regions. Given that
COVID-19 arises certain extent of adverse impact against
the current business operations of the Group and the overall
economic environment surrounded in some operating
segments particularly. The Group will keep continuous
attention on the latest development of COVID-19, in order
to assess and react actively to its associated adverse impact
on the consolidated financial position and operating results
of the Group. Up to date when the consolidated financial
statements were approved and authorised for issue, the
estimation on the possible range of financial impact is still in
progress.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 March
2020.
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Financial Summary

For the year ended 31 December

HEF12A31BILEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD’'000 HKD’000
FERT FET FET FET FET
OPERATING RESULTS mEE
Revenue WA 388,944 381,848 348,919 363,856 351,067
Profit before income tax B BTS2 Al
expense gl 80,657 162,706 116,700 30,190 195,053
Income tax credit/(expense) FTEFEM, (Fx) 1,248 (50,034) (58,951) (16,145) (38,975)
Profit for the year FERF 81,905 112,672 57,749 14,045 156,078
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ FE{GZE#H], (E548) :
attributable to:
— Owners of the —ARAREAA
Company 71,705 118,213 41,018 27,746 180,822
— Non-controlling — IR R RS
interests 10,200 (5,541) 16,731 (13,701) (24,744)
81,905 112,672 57,749 14,045 156,078
As at 31 December
"12A318
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000 HKD'000
FET FET FET FET FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BER & &
Total assets EERE 5,160,413 4,353,474 4,234 441 3,395,176 3,724,613
Total liabilities BERE (2,232,088) | (1,739,607) (1,637,078)  (1,227,866)  (1,254,899)
EQUITY W 2,928,325 2,613,867 2,597,363 2,167,310 2,469,714
Equity attributable to KRBEBA
owners of the Company ~ JE{5#ERS 2,917,487 2570,828 2,543,867 2,177,817 2,319,135
Non-controlling interests ~ 3E¥2 A i %5 10,838 43,039 53,496 (10,507) 150,579
Total equity EREE 2,928,325 2,613,867 2.597,363 2,167,310 2,469,714
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Particulars of Major Properties

(A) PROPERTIES HELD AS PROPERTY, PLANT (A) DEBYE BERREHME

AND EQUIPMENT / RIGHT-OR-USE ASSETS SEREESE
Effective
% held
by the
Group
Lease term Area  Sitearea  Use REE
Location 2 HEH miE AR AR AR
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
Units 1 to 10 on 10th Floor, B Medium 1,283 N/A  Commercial 100
Island Place Tower, A R (saleable) TER B
No. 510 King's Road, 2 E5109% (ATSEE)
North Point, BEAEL0R
Hong Kong 121057 ER
Nos. 98-1, 98-2 and 98-3, Puhe HZEAREFIE Medium N/A 100,146 Commercial 100
Road, Shenbei New District, BEREGT  Hf i A EES
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, ‘&1t # &
PRC S BK98-1
98-2 }:98-3%%
No. 97, Pufeng Road, PEARAAE Medium N/A 45166  Industrial 100
Shenbei New District, FEREGT o HA TEA I%¥
Shenyang, Liaoning Province, &L #1[&
PRC B2 K975
Units 1 and 2 on FEARAME Long 748 N/A  Commercial 100
6th Floor, EEmRETRE K (gross floor) NER B
Jiuge Business Centre, B (ZEME)
No. 2301 Yi Shan Lu, 23015%
Minhang District, Shanghai, NRBEEH L
PRC BE1Z 25 B
North crossroad of i AR Medium 104,400 60,273  Wholesale 100
Haixiang Avenue and BREEEMT 5 (gross floor) and retail
Tianshui Road, Jimei District, SEXREHNE (EE£|RE) (commercial)
Xiamen, Fujian Province, HRIKER X HELTE
PRC mEIA] (F%)
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(B) PROPERTIES HELD AS INVESTMENT

(B) HEAIREMERNME

PROPERTIES
Effective
% held
by the
Group
REE
Lease term Area  Sitearea  Use Z
Location 2 HEH miE AR AR BFHLE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
Units 1 to 10 on B Medium 1,283 N/A Commercial 100
3rd Floar, Island Place Tower, b/ H Hj (saleable) TEA  EE
No. 510 King's Road, 2 E5109% (ATHE)
North Point, BEAE3ME
Hong Kong 121058 AL
Unit C on 2nd Floor, BB Long 398 N/A  Industrial 100
Hop Ming Factory Building, e R (saleable) TER IFE
No. 8 On Yip Street, 7 E A8 (ATEEE)
Chai Wan, SHIBAE
Hong Kong MECE(L
12th, 14th, 16th and I ARAEFE Medium 10,472 N/A - Commercial 100
18th Floors, Central Tower, S i) HHR (gross floor) TEBR B
Beijing Junefield FHPIINRAEG - (BEER)
Plaza, 10th Building, 81012 *16 % 185%
Nos. 6, 8, 10, 12, 16, 18 I REBESHRRAK
Xuan Wu Men Outer Street, 105712 1416
Xi Cheng District, Beijing, N 18E
PRC
Unit 2 on 7th Floor, PEARANE Long 374 N/A  Commercial 100
Jiuge Business Centre, EEmRETRER = H (gross floor) TEBA B
No.2301 Yi Shan Lu, HILBE23015% (BEmE)
Minhang District, NIBE B L
Shanghai, PRC TE2R E AL
Various retail units, car parking A R MEH Medium 39,548 N/A  Commercial 100
spaces and ancillary facilities EETRILE R HA (gross floor) TEA  EE
of “Meiyue Xingdao”, INZREE705% [=1HE (BEMmE)
No. 70 Shancha Road, #WIIEEERARE
Yubei District, FERRE REAM (R
Chongging City, PRC 1B ) M
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Information to Stakeholders

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Details of the Annual General Meeting are set out in the Notice of
Annual General Meeting to be despatched to Shareholders together
with a proxy form.

Date: Friday, 12 June 2020
Time: 10:00 a.m.
Venue: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, No. 510 King's

Road, North Point, Hong Kong

ANNUAL REPORT

The Annual Report prepared in English and Chinese for the year
ended 31 December 2019 has been published on the websites
of the Company (www.symphonyholdings.com) and the Stock
Exchange (www.hkex.com.hk).

REGISTERED OFFICE

Address: Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Address: 10th Floor, Island Place Tower, No. 510 King's
Road, North Point, Hong Kong
Email: info@symphonyholdings.com

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Name:
Address:

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Name: Tricor Tengis Limited

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2980 1333

Facsimile: (852) 2810 8185

BRERXE

BRAFASERFBERARRZERRTET
BERAEI KB RBFAGBEA

B 202056 A12R B IR

FF R 108 IF

1 B - BB AEK2E510%
BEAEL0E

FERE

B Z2019F12A31H L FE H AIAE X R H X
RENFERESNTIBE IR

K2 F] + www.symphonyholdings.com

B 22 BT - www.hkex.com.hk

at i 3% 5 B2

M3k : Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda

MMEERBTETEERME,

ik . FEIL AR 2E51058 58 K E 106
BH : info@symphonyholdings.com
FERBBRELERE

%8 Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited

#ik : Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11 Bermuda

R4riBF B REE 7 A
£ SEBEBERAT
Spit:  FE2EAERISIHA M L54E

BT (852) 2980 1333
BEH: (852) 28108185
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“Annual General Meeting”

[BERBAFERE ]

“Board”

[EF=2)

“CG Code”
[{bZEE A~

“Company”

[AnE]

”

“Director(s)

[E%]

“Group”
[AREE]

“Hong Kong”
[ &%

“HKD”
[%&7t]

“Listing Rules”

[EmARA

“PRC”

[ B

“RMB”
AR

“Share(s)”

[ R

Glossary

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday 12th June
2020 at 10:00 a.m. or any adjournment thereof

AAREFTR2020F6 A 12HEMA LT TR EEMOREBF A RE
EhEE

the board of Directors of the Company

ARmEES

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

ErR RIS E N B EER TR

Symphony Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda on 24
November 1993 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and its shares have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange since 1 March 1995 (Stock code: 1223)
eEBEARAE —HRBARZEIBIFARNENIO3FIIA24BER
REFMA L BREAEREME DT HRH B1995F3A 1B B RBEZ P
FHR BT (B U5 - 1223)

the director(s) of the Company
RRRIES

the Company and its subsidiaries
AR REKBAF

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
H B BB AT R

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BENEEEY

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B¢ AZ P RE F L AR A
The People’s Republic of China excluding Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

hEARAME MEREEBRFITRE RFIFHTRERREE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR® PEEEEEE

ordinary share(s) of HKDO.10 each in the share capital of the Company
RRATR/RATRFREMFEO.10E T 2 E B
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“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% ER

“Stock Exchange’
[ g6 22 FFr |

“Warrant(s)”

AR RE

7

holder(s) of the issued share(s) of the Company

RRBZBETROFEA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMERHMARAR

the warrant(s) issued by the Company which carries(carry) the right to
subscribe for Share(s) at the subscription price of HKD1.00 per Share, subject
to adjustments

RRABET 2 RRAET - B SRR AT R 5 IR AR5 1.00/8 7T 2 BB E (7]
FIHE) RERNG
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